
 
 

Code s and Ordinances Committee 

Councilor Peter Lachapelle, Chair 

Councilor Elaine Lauterborn, Vice Chair 

Councilor Tom Abbott 

Councilor Donna Bogan 

Councilor Robert Gates 
 

 
 

 

    
      

   

     
   

 

 

 
 

  

 

  

 

    

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

    

 

    

 

   
 

Adjournment11.

Other10.

Ordinance Enrollment: Chapter 275  P. 219.

Fireworks 8.

Waiver to Certain Building Permit Fees, Which Do Not Require an Inspection P. 137.

Rental Inspection Program P. 136.

Proposed definition of “Donation Bin”   P. 95.

Chapter 28 Animals – Nuisance    P. 74.

Acceptance of the Minutes: August 1, 2019   P. 33.

Public Input2.

Call to Order1.

Agenda

6:00 PM

City Council Chambers
31 Wakefield Street, Rochester, NH

  Thursday, September 5, 2019

Of the Rochester City Council
CODES AND ORDINANCES COMMITTEE

8/29/19 

1 



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

8/29/19 

2 



 

 

CODES AND ORDINANCES COMMITTEE 
Of the Rochester City Council  

Thursday, August 1, 2019  

31 Wakefield Street, Rochester, NH  
City Council Chambers 

6:00 PM 

 

Code s and Ordinances Committee                     Other Present   

Councilor Peter Lachapelle, Chair                     Jim Grant, Director of BZLS 

Councilor Elaine Lauterborn, Vice Chair               Joe Devine, Compliance Officer 

Councilor Tom Abbott                                                     Jaqueline Rabb, Resident 

Councilor Donna Bogan                                   Lisa Stanley, Police Commissioner 

Councilor Robert Gates                                                    Dave Stevens, Police Commissioner 

Minutes 
 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

Councilor Lachapelle called the Codes and Ordinances Committee Meeting to Order at 6:00 PM. 

  Susan Morris, Clerk Typist II, took a silent roll call.  All Committee members were present. 

 

2.    Public Input 

 

Jacqueline Raab of East Rochester spoke about fireworks being set off illegally and what the 

Committee can do about this such as making changes to the Fireworks Ordinance.  She stated that in 

addition to the fireworks being set off illegally, there is not the proper amount of clearances with neighbors, 

trees, and power lines etc.  Ms. Raab questioned whether or not surrounding towns permit the use of 

fireworks other than at town sponsored events.  She spoke further on different scenarios.  

 

  Lisa Stanley, Police Commissioner Representing Wards 5 & 6, spoke regarding the issues with 

fireworks.  She stated that the council has made great strides with passing the current ordinance, it is 

unfortunate that tight areas such as East Rochester are still affected.  She suggested creativity in enforcing 

the ordinance.  She stated that she spoke with Code Enforcement informally and was told that the Fire 

Department could enforce the fireworks ordinance.  She questioned if the Fire Department could enforce 

such an issue.   

 

David Stevens, Police Commissioner Representing Wards 1 & 2, indicated that the current Police 

Commission is hoping to have the police department at full staff soon.  Once the Police Department is 

fully staffed, then a potential solution might be, to have dedicated patrols specifically assigned to enforce 

the fireworks ordinance. Commissioner Stevens said he would bring this topic back to the next Police 

Commissioners meeting and keep the Committee and/or Council updated on the process. 

 

3. Acceptance of the Minutes: June 6, 2019 

 

Councilor Lauterborn MOVED to ACCEPT the minutes of June 6, 2019.  Councilor Bogan 

seconded the motion.  The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote. 

 

8/29/19 

3 



 

 

 

4. Ward 2 Polling Location  

 

Kelly Walters, City Clerk, spoke regarding changing the Ward 2 Polling location to Chamberlain 

Street School.  Discussion was held among committee members. 

 

  Councilor Gates MOVED to send the Ward 2 Polling location change to Chamberlain Street School 

to full Council. Councilor Bogan seconded the motion.  The MOTION CARRIED by a majority voice 

vote. 

 

5. Fireworks Ordinance discussion 

 

Councilor Lauterborn stated that she does not see where there currently can be any changes made 

to the ordinance to improve it; however, she offered two corrections to the current ordinance.  

 

Councilor Lauterborn MOVED to send to full Council the following changes to the Fireworks 

Ordinance:  

 

 

75-16 D.      (2) No display of permissible fireworks shall be permitted within the City except between the 

hours of 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. on the following holiday:  Fourth of July (including the 

evening of July 3 beginning at 6:00 p.m., including from such time until 12:00 midnight on 

any rain date established for the City –wide fireworks display.) held at the Rochester 

Fairgrounds. 

  * 

  * 

  * 

  * 

 (7) Display of permissible fireworks shall be permitted on public property the evening of July 

3 beginning at 6:00 p.m. including from such time until 12:00 midnight on any rain date 

established for the annual City-wide fireworks display, held at the Rochester Fairgrounds. 

provided that such display shall be authorized in a duly issued block party/permit from the 

City’s Licensing Board covering the public property on which the display is to occur. 

 

  

  Councilor Bogan seconded the motion.  The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote. 

 

 Councilor Lachapelle supported Commissioner Stevens’s idea about discussing enforcement issues 

at the next Police Commission meeting. He added that this topic will stay in committee at this time.  

 

6. Rental Inspection Program 

 

 Jim Grant, Director of Building, Zoning and Licensing Services, stated that he is looking for 

direction from the Committee about the idea of a Rental Inspection Program. His staff would like to 

reach out to the Landlords Association to receive feedback about a potential program. Ultimately, he 

would come back to the committee with a more defined program for review.  He said this program is 

8/29/19 

4 



going to take some time and resources to develop.   

 

 

 Joe Devine, Compliance Officer, gave an overview of the proposed program. 

 

 Councilor Lauterborn stated that the material being present this evening is different than what 

had been previously discussed.  She went through the handout in detail from the prior meeting and 

stated that she is not prepared to approve the program at this time and would like it kept in committee.   

 

Councilor Abbott stated that he agrees with the concept; he was envisioning a point system 

similar to the health/food inspections.  He suggests creating a separate checklist apart from the Property 

            Maintenance Code and applying a point system to it.  He stated that he felt more serious offense should 

be addressed; the City doesn’t want to get into the torn screen, chipped paint debate.   

 

Councilor Lachapelle indicated he supports this idea and moving forward with the program to bring to 

the Landlords Association. 

 

Councilor Lauterborn stated that Jim Grant is asking the committee to endorse something that is 

not developed yet and she is not yet ready to endorse this.  Jim Grant stated that he is just looking for 

a consensus of support to move forward.  

 

Councilor Lachapelle asked for a show of hands from the committee if they are in support of 

the idea of this type of program.  Councilors Bogan, Abbot, Gates and Lachapelle raised their hand in 

support, Councilor Lauterborn said she is neither for nor against this program at this time. She added 

that there simply is not enough information for her to make a decision at this time.  She requested that 

information be provided in the Committee packet in advance of the Committee meeting in order for 

members to have ample time to review.  

 

 Councilor Lauterborn referenced the minutes from the last set of minutes (page 6 in the packet), 

it reads “It was suggested that the Re-development Zone of the City would be a good place to start.  

This item has been kept in Committee.  The City Attorney will work with BZLS to work on a proposed 

amendment to the Re-development Zone that could potentially tie into a Rental Inspection Program 

for the Committee to review.”  Councilor Lauterborn inquired on the status of this item.  Mr. Grant 

responded that there is not a zone for “Re-development” in the City which fall into the neighborhoods 

of these problematic areas. Therefore, this proposal is not going to forward.  He apologized for not 

stating that earlier in the meeting.  

 

 Councilor Lauterborn asked Mr. Grant if by developing a Rental Development Program the 

BZLS Department would be requesting more staff to enforce all the new standards. She stated that he 

may want to think about the potential need for additional staff while setting up this complicated 

program with inspections and re-inspections.  This information may be helpful for the council as to 

whether or not they will support the program.  Mr. Grant stated that he envisioned that once this 

program gets going and Council sees how the program is working, they may want to see more of this 

done and at that time his department can move forward with such a request.   

 

7. Ordinance Enrollment: Chapter 275  

 

Councilor Lachapelle stated this item has been postponed, as the materials did not get to the City 

8/29/19 

5 



Clerk in time for this meeting.  This will go forward at the next meeting on September 5, 2019. 

 

8.  Other  

 

 Councilor Lauterborn addressed Mr. Grant regarding the minutes from the last meeting which reads 

as follows:  “Mr. Grant agreed with reviewing the higher permit fees and removing the fees for such items 

that do not require inspection.  Councilor Lachapelle requested that the Director of Building, Zoning, and 

Licensing Services, bring back a proposal for the Committee to review.”  Councilor Lauterborn questioned 

the status of this request. Mr. Grant said he would have something for the next meeting on September 5, 

2019. The Committee briefly discussed the matter.  

 

Councilor Lachapelle stated that he expected something at this meeting relative to a definition of 

“Donation Bins”.  He requested that Kelly Walters, City Clerk, reach out to Attorney O’Rourke regarding 

this Amendment.  

 

9. Adjournment 

 

 Councilor Gates MOVED to ADJOURN the Committee meeting at 7:04 PM.  Councilor Bogan 

seconded the motion.  The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Susan Morris  

Clerk Typist II 

 

8/29/19 

6 



Chapter 28

ANIMALS

GENERAL REFERENCES

Parks, recreation and Arena — See Ch. 158.

§ 28-1. Animal Control Officer. [Amended 8-5-1997]

The Animal Control Officer shall be appointed by the City Manager in
accordance with the provisions of Section 15 of the Rochester City Charter.
The Animal Control Officer shall be sworn in by the Chief of Police as
the Animal Control Officer. The Animal Control Officer's salary shall be
established by the Merit Plan adopted pursuant to Section 60 of the
Rochester City Charter.

§ 28-2. Powers and duties of Animal Control Officer. [Amended
11-9-2004]

The Animal Control Officer shall attend to all complaints pertaining to
dogs and other animals, shall investigate and report on all damage caused
by dogs and other animals, shall enforce the licensing laws, and shall
enforce all other statutes which are violations, ordinances, and regulations
pertaining to dogs and other animals. The Animal Control Officer shall pick
up and dispose of all dead animals found upon public property. The Animal
Control Officer shall have the power to issue complaints and make arrests
in the performance of the Animal Control Officer's duties.

§ 28-3. Dogs running at large.1

§ 28-4. Nuisances. [Added 4-5-2011]

No person shall permit any dog to run at large within the City of
Rochester, except when such dog is engaged in hunting, herding,
supervised competition and exhibition or training for such. This section
shall apply to all public places and to all private property. Except as
provided for herein, no person shall permit any dog to be out of doors
off the owner's property unless said dog is on a leash held by a person
able to control the dog.

A.

For the purposes of this section, the term "running at large" shall mean
running without the property owned or otherwise controlled by the
owner, while not on a leash held by a person able to control the dog.

B.

1. Note: For state statutes relative to control of dogs, see RSA 466, all provisions of which
have been adopted by the City of Rochester, effective November 1980.

28:1

8/29/19 

7 



§ 28-5. Removal of dog excrement. [Amended 3-5-2019]

It shall be unlawful for the owner or person in control of any dog to allow
that dog to appear in any public place or upon the property of any other
person unless said owner or person in control has in his/her possession a
mechanical or other device for the removal of excrement, nor shall said
owner or person in control fail to expeditiously remove any such excrement
deposited by said dog in any such place. This section shall not apply to a
blind person while walking his/her guide dog.

§ 28-6. Violations and penalties. [Added 3-5-2019]

Unless otherwise provided, any person who violates any provision of this
chapter shall be punished by a fine of not more than fifty dollars ($50.)

This section and any penalties established herein are adopted and/or
imposed pursuant to the authority granted in RSA 466:39 and 47:17, II
and XV.

A.

Under this section, an animal is considered to be a nuisance if:

Any animal or bird causes frequent, or long continued, noise which
disturbs the comfort or repose of any person in a neighboring
premises, not including a dog which is guarding, working, or
herding livestock, as defined in RSA 21:34-a, II(a)(4).

(1)

B.

A person who is the owner, keeper, or person in control of an animal
found to be a nuisance by reason of conduct contrary to the provisions
of Subsection B above, and who fails to comply with an order to abate
the nuisance caused by such animal, shall be guilty of a violation of
this section and, after conviction, such person shall be subject to such
penalties as are provided for in this chapter. [Amended 3-5-2019]

C.

§ 28-4 ROCHESTER CODE § 28-6

28:2

8/29/19 

8 



Amendment to Chapter 167 of the General Ordinances of the City of Rochester Regarding 

Drop-Off Bins 

THE CITY OF ROCHESTER ORDAINS: 

That Chapter 167 of the General Ordinances of the City of Rochester and currently before the 

Rochester City Council, be amended as follows: 

ARTICLE V Drop-Off Bins 

§ 167-24 DEFINITIONS 

 

    CODE OFFICIAL:  The Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services, the Code 

Compliance Officer or any duly authorized representative who is charged with the administration 

and enforcement of this chapter.   

 

    DROP-OFF BIN:  Any receptacle or container located outside of an enclosed building and 

designed, intended or used for collection and temporary storage of donated items or materials 

including, bit not limited to, clothing, shoes, books, toys, furniture, household materials and other 

like items.  Drop-off bins are also known as donation collection bins/boxes, charity bins/boxes, 

clothing bins/boxes, clothing donation containers, or any combination thereof. 

  

    OWNER:  A person, association, corporation, partnership, or other legal entity having a legal 

or equitable title in real property. 

 

    PREMISES:  A lot, plot or parcel of land including any structures thereon. 

 

    STRUCTURE:  That which is built or constructed or a portion thereof. 

  

§167-25 LICENSES AND PERMITS REQUIREMENTS  

Whether for the owner of the premises or the person who has obtained the written permission of 

the owner, the fee to obtain the initial license to own, install, operate, or use a drop-off bin is $200 

that must be tendered at the time of license application. Such license may be annually renewed on 

or before the anniversary date of the application for an annual renewal fee of $200. Regardless of 

the number of drop-off bins owned, installed, operated, or used by a license applicant, the 

applicant shall only pay one annual license fee. The initial permit fee for a drop-off bin is $50 per 

bin payable at the time of application for the license. The annual renewal fee for each drop-off bin 

permit is $50 payable on or before the anniversary date of the initial application. Each drop-off 

bin shall display its current permit at all times.  

§167-26 COMPANY TYPE AND BIN LABELS 

To best inform the public and potential donors, bins shall be labeled according to Company Type 

as follows:  

(a) Shall have a label or appended sign that states "PLEASE REPORT ANY OVERFLOW OF 

ITEMS, DAMAGE, OR MALFUNCTION TO [PERMIT HOLDER'S NAME] AT [PERMIT 

HOLDER'S TELEPHONE NUMBER] OR TO THE DIRECTOR OF BUILDING, ZONING, 

AND LICENSING SERVICES AT [TELEPHONE NUMBER DESIGNATED BY 

8/29/19 

9 



DIRECTOR]." Such label or appended sign shall be in lettering no less than three inches in height 

and no less than one-half inch in width, and; 

(b) If none of the proceeds from the sale of the items collected in the drop-off bin will be given to 

a "charitable organization" as that term is defined in RSA 72:23-l, there shall be a label or sign 

permanently attached to the drop-off bin which identifies the permit holder's name and address 

and states: "DONATIONS ARE NOT FOR CHARITABLE PURPOSES AND WILL BE SOLD 

FOR PROFIT. DONATIONS ARE NOT TAX DEDUCTIBLE." Said label or appended sign shall 

be prominently displayed on the receptacle in the largest lettering on the receptacle or appended 

sign but said lettering shall be no less than three inches in height and no less than one-half inch in 

width, or; 

(c) If 100% of the items, or the proceeds from the sale of the items, collected in the drop-off bin 

will be used for the benefit of a "charitable organization" as that term is defined in RSA 72:23-l, 

there shall be a label or sign permanently attached to the drop-off bin that identifies, at least, the 

legal name of the charitable organization receiving the benefit of the donated items, as it appears 

on the certificate of registration issued to the charitable by the New Hampshire Attorney General’s 

Charitable Trust Unit in the largest lettering on the drop-off bin or appended sign but said lettering 

shall be no less than three inches in height and no less than one-half inch in width, or; 

(d) If a professional solicitor owns, installs, operates, or uses a drop-off bin pursuant to a 

contractual arrangement with a charitable organization whereby the professional solicitor receives 

either a flat fee or a percentage of the proceeds from the sale of the donated items, have a label or 

sign permanently attached to the drop-off bin which states: "SOLICITATIONS FOR 

DONATIONS ARE MADE BY (NAME OF PROFESSIONAL SOLICITOR) ON BEHALF OF 

(NAME OF CHARITABLE). DONATIONS WILL BE SOLD FOR PROFIT BY (NAME OF 

PROFESSIONAL SOLICITOR)." Said label or appended sign shall be prominently displayed on 

the donation drop-off bin in the largest lettering on the thereon but said lettering shall be no less 

than three inches in height and not less than one-half inch in width, and; 

(e) Shall be placed only on premises commercially used by an established business or on church 

property and drop-off bins shall not be permitted in any Residential Zone or in the Downtown 

Commercial Zone. 

§167-27 APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS – COMPANY LICENSES AND BIN PERMITS 

Any party seeking to obtain the requisite license to operate drop-off bins and permits for each 

drop-off bin shall submit a written application to the Director of BZLS upon a form provided by 

the Director. The application shall require the following information: 

(a) The name, physical address (no P.O. boxes), telephone number, and electronic mail address of 

the applicant, and; 

(b) A photograph of the drop-off bin and the proposed location for which a permit is sought. If the 

application is for more than one location, the applicant may submit a single application with a list 

of preferred locations and only one photograph of the type of drop-off bin to be used unless 

different types of bins will be used at different locations. In the event the applicant is using 

different types of bins at different locations, a photograph of each type of bin must be submitted, 

and; 

(c) Whether the applicant would prefer to receive notice and orders by regular mail or electronic 

mail, and; 

8/29/19 

10 



(d) The signature of the applicant, and; 

(e) The required license and permit fees, and; 

(f) If placed on property not owned or leased by the operator of the drop-off bin, a written 

agreement with the owner of each premises where a bin is to be located which evidences the 

agreement of the owner(s) to the placement of a drop-off bin on the property. The applicant shall 

also provide a certificate of liability insurance in an amount not less than $500,000 showing each 

owner of the premises where a bin is located as an additional insured, and; 

(g) A maintenance agreement on the form provided from the Director wherein the applicant 

affirms that each drop-off bin location will be monitored on a daily basis, emptied no less than 

twice every calendar week, except in the event of a declared weather emergency by the National 

Weather Service or other natural disaster, and no overflow of items from the bin shall remain on 

the ground for more than 24 hours after actual or constructive notice of said overflow. 

(h) The information supplied pursuant to this subsection shall be used for all notices, 

correspondence, or communications from the Director.  

(i) Currently operated drop-off bins do not enjoy grandfathered status and must comply with all 

the requirements of this Article. 

§167-28 BIN PLACEMENT  

(a) Drop-off bin(s) shall be located on a hard and durable surface such as asphalt, concrete, 

aggregate, crushed rock and the like and all ingress and egress from each bin shall also be of a 

similar surface. In no event shall the placement of a drop-off bin or any means of ingress or egress 

be composed of sod, dirt, sand, or similar porous material. All drop-off bins shall be located on 

the designated premises so as not to interfere with sight triangles, on-site circulation of vehicular 

or pedestrian traffic, required setbacks, parking, landscaping, and all other applicable 

requirements imposed on the property as part of any governmental approval, including any zoning 

requirement; 

(b) The placement of drop-off bins shall be restricted to an area within 75 feet from any wall of 

the largest permanent building on the premises or against a well-lit exterior wall of such building; 

(c) A drop-off bin shall not be within a 1,000 foot radius of any other drop-off bin operated by the 

same licensee; 

(d) Drop-off bins shall not be larger than six feet high by six feet wide by five feet deep; 

(e) Drop-off bins shall be enclosed and operate by use of a securely locked receiving door so that 

the contents of the bin may not be accessed by anyone other than those persons authorized by the 

licensee to collect the contents; 

§167-29 BIN MAINTENANCE 

(a) The drop-off bin must be regularly emptied, no less than twice every calendar week, to prevent 

overflow of clothing or other items that may be strewn about the premises. No overflow of items 

from a bin shall remain on the ground for more than 24 hours after actual or constructive notice of 

said overflow; 

8/29/19 

11 



(b) Any person found illegally dumping at a drop-off bin shall be guilty of a misdemeanor 

pursuant to RSA 163-B:3 and will be subject to the penalties set forth in RSA 163-B:4. 

(c) Any graffiti placed on the drop-off bin must be removed within 72 hours following notice of 

its existence. However, within the 72 hours, the owner has the option to notify the Director in 

writing of the owner's intent to replace the drop-off bin within five days and along with said 

written notice submits a photograph of the new drop-off bin. 

(d) If a drop-off bin is damaged to the extent the locking mechanism or receiving door has been 

compromised or one of its sides has been breached, it shall be repaired, replaced or removed 

within five days of receipt after notice of such damage from the Director unless the Director 

determines the damage is such that the drop-off bin constitutes a danger to persons or property in 

which case it shall be made safe or removed within 24 hours of notice of said condition. 

§167-30 VIOLATIONS 

Any violation of the provisions of this Article or any order of the Director or the Code 

Compliance Officer related thereto are subject to citation and the civil penalties set forth in RSA 

47:17 and Ordinance §54-3.  

 

The effective date of these amendments shall be upon passage. 

 

8/29/19 

12 



 From: Kelly Walters
 Sent: Thursday, August 29, 2019 12:39 PM

 To: Susan Morris
 Subject: FW: Rental Inspection Program

From: Joe Devine  
Sent: Tuesday, August 27, 2019 2:50 PM 
To: Kelly Walters <kelly.walters@rochesternh.net> 
Subject: Rental Inspection Program

Afternoon Kelly,

We will not need to present at the September Code and Ordinance Meeting. 

We are meeting with the Strafford County Rental Properties Association on October 
3rd. The 
hope is we can solicit the landlord involvement in the process so the program can 
benefit all 
parties involved. 

Joe
Sent from iPhone

8/29/19 

13 



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

8/29/19 

14 



Current Regulations 

City of Rochester - § 40-15 Permits.  

A. Permits shall be obtained from the Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services for 

the construction, alteration, removal, demolition, or repair of any foundation, footing, building or 

structure or for the installation of plumbing, use of concrete, masonry, metal, iron and wood, and 

other building material, the installation of electric wiring, and fire protection incident thereto for 

the prevention of fires, including but not limited to swimming pools, signs, and fences, except 

that no permit shall be required for painting, papering, laying floors, or upkeep in maintenance of 

any structure. …etc…….. 

State adopted - International Code Council – International Residence Code 
SECTION R105 

PERMITS 
 

R105.1 Required. Any owner or owner’s authorized agent who intends to construct, enlarge, 

alter, repair, move, demolish or change the occupancy of a building or structure, or to erect, 

install, enlarge, alter, repair, remove, convert or replace any electrical, gas, mechanical or   

plumbing system, the installation of which is regulated by this code, or to cause any such work to 

be performed, shall first make application to the building official and obtain the required permit. 

 

R105.2 Work exempt from permit. Exemption from permit requirements of this code shall not 

be deemed to grant authorization for any work to be done in any manner in violation of the 

provisions of this code or any other laws or ordinances of this jurisdiction. Permits shall not be 

required for the following: 

 

Building: 

1. One-story detached accessory structures, provided that the floor area does not exceed 200 

square feet (18.58 m2). 

2. Fences not over 7 feet (2134 mm) high. 

3. Retaining walls that are not over 4 feet (1219 mm) in height measured from the bottom of the 

footing to the top of the wall, unless supporting a surcharge. 

4. Water tanks supported directly upon grade if the capacity does not exceed 5,000 gallons (18 

927 L) and the ratio of height to diameter or width does not exceed 2 to 1. 

5. Sidewalks and driveways. 

6. Painting, papering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, counter tops and similar finish work. 

7. Prefabricated swimming pools that are less than 24 inches (610 mm) deep. 

8. Swings and other playground equipment. 

9. Window awnings supported by an exterior wall that do not project more than 54 inches (1372 

mm) from the exterior wall and do not require additional support. 

10. Decks not exceeding 200 square feet (18.58 m2) in area, that are not more than 30 inches 

(762 mm) above grade at any point, are not attached to a dwelling do not serve the exit door 

required by Section R311.4. 

 

 

8/29/19 

15 

https://www.ecode360.com/32216494#32216494
https://www.ecode360.com/32216495#32216495


Electrical: 

1. Listed cord-and-plug connected temporary decorative lighting. 

2. Reinstallation of attachment plug receptacles but not the outlets therefor. 

3. Replacement of branch circuit overcurrent devices of the required capacity in the same 

location. 

4. Electrical wiring, devices, appliances, apparatus or equipment operating at less than 25 volts 

and not capable of supplying more than 50 watts of energy. 

5. Minor repair work, including the replacement of lamps or the connection of approved portable 

electrical equipment to approved permanently installed receptacles. 

 

Gas: 

1. Portable heating, cooking or clothes drying appliances. 

2. Replacement of any minor part that does not alter approval of equipment or make such 

equipment unsafe. 

3. Portable-fuel-cell appliances that are not connected to a fixed piping system and are not 

interconnected to a power grid. 

 

Mechanical: 

1. Portable heating appliances. 

2. Portable ventilation appliances. 

3. Portable cooling units. 

4. Steam, hot- or chilled-water piping within any heating or cooling equipment regulated by this 

code. 

5. Replacement of any minor part that does not alter approval of equipment or make such 

equipment unsafe. 

6. Portable evaporative coolers. 

7. Self-contained refrigeration systems containing 10 pounds (4.54 kg) or less of refrigerant or 

that are actuated by motors of 1 horsepower (746 W) or less. 

8. Portable-fuel-cell appliances that are not connected to a fixed piping system and are not 

interconnected to a power grid. 

 

Plumbing: 

1. The stopping of leaks in drains, water, soil, waste or vent pipe; provided, however, that if any 

concealed trap, drainpipe, water, soil, waste or vent pipe 

becomes defective and it becomes necessary to remove and replace the same with new material, 

such work shall be considered as new work and a permit shall be obtained and inspection made 

as provided in this code. 

2. The clearing of stoppages or the repairing of leaks in pipes, valves or fixtures, and the removal 

and reinstallation of water closets, provided such repairs do not involve or require the 

replacement or rearrangement of valves, pipes or fixtures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8/29/19 

16 



Suggested Regulations 

 

 

§ 40-15 Permits.  
A. Permits shall be obtained from the Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services for 

the construction, alteration, removal, demolition, or repair of any foundation, footing, building or 

structure or for the installation of plumbing, use of concrete, masonry, metal, iron and wood, and 

other building material, the installation of electric wiring, and fire protection incident thereto for 

the prevention of fires, including but not limited to swimming pools, signs, and fences, except 

that no permit shall be required for painting, papering, laying floors, or upkeep in maintenance of 

any structure. Separate permits shall be required for building, electrical, plumbing, mechanical, 

fire protection, and demolition. Prior to the issuance of a foundation or building permit by the 

Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services, the applicant for such permit shall file 

with the Department of the Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services a foundation certification 

plan bearing the stamp of a New Hampshire licensed land surveyor and containing a statement 

from such surveyor to the effect that the proposed building or structure complies with all 

applicable building or structure setback requirements and that no portion of the new building or 

structure is located within any of the setback areas required by law. The requirement for a 

foundation certification plan may be waived, in writing, by the Director of Building, Zoning, and 

Licensing Services if, in the discretion of the Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing 

Services there are reasonable grounds to conclude that the preparation and submission of a 

foundation certification plan is unnecessary to ensure that the new building or structure does not 

violate any required setback. 

(1)  The following fees shall be charged for said permits, based upon the estimated cost of 

construction as presented to the Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services upon 

application forms provided by him: on proposed work, the fee of nine dollars ($9.) per one 

thousand dollars ($1,000.) of estimated cost of work, or any portion thereof, with a minimum fee 

of ten dollars ($10.), in addition to an application fee of ten dollars ($10.) for each permit. The 

following permits shall be a charged only the minimum permit fee of ten dollars ($10.), in 

addition to an application fee of ten dollars ($10.) for each permit. 

(a) Fences 

(b) Roofing (Re-shingling only) 

(c) Siding 

(d) Sheds under 200 square feet 

 

(2)  Each building permit shall expire 12 months from the date of issuance unless renewed by the 

Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services prior to the expiration date. Any renewal 

shall require reapplication and payment of required fees based on the remaining work to be done. 

The Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services may issue no building permit until 

such other permits or approvals as may be required by any code, other ordinances, or state 

statutes have been acquired. 

(3)  A separate permit shall be required for staging, scaffolding, platforms, or other similar 

equipment to be erected on private property that is to be erected for a period exceeding 30 days. 

Said permit shall expire 12 months from the date of issue and all equipment shall be removed 

upon said expiration or upon completion of the work, whichever comes first. The fee for said 

8/29/19 

17 

https://www.ecode360.com/32216494#32216494
https://www.ecode360.com/32216496#32216496
https://www.ecode360.com/32216497#32216497
https://www.ecode360.com/32216498#32216498


permit shall be five dollars ($5.). The City reserves the right to revoke, deny, or not reissue said 

permit if work required is not being actively pursued in a timely or otherwise reasonable manner. 

(4)  Fees for building permits shall be waived for an honorably discharged veteran or an active 

duty, National Guard or reserve member of the United States Armed Forces who plans to 

construct or have constructed for himself/herself a home or appurtenance to a home already 

owned by him/her for exclusive occupancy by himself/herself and his/her immediate family. 

(5)  Permits issued to or for the City of Rochester are exempt from the above fees. 

 

B.  The estimated cost of construction for purposes of Subsection A of this section shall be 

calculated on the following basis: 

(1)  For contract work, new buildings and newly constructed additions, the building permit fee 

shall be based on the greater of all contract/construction costs associated with the total 

construction project or the cost of construction as determined using the latest "Building 

Valuation Data" as published periodically by the International Code Council. When construction 

costs are determined using the "Building Valuation Data" as published by the International Code 

Council, such costs shall be multiplied by a modification factor of 0.60. Construction costs shall 

include, but not be limited to, pile driving, foundations, structural and nonstructural framing, 

interior finish (as regulated by this chapter), fire protection systems and any other work which 

would render the building complete and ready for occupancy. 

(2)  For non-contract work, not covered under Subsection B(1), such as when a homeowner 

furnishes his/her own or has furnished free labor but purchases the materials, the fee shall be 

based on the actual cost of all materials with a multiplier of two applied. For example, total 

materials of five thousand dollars ($5,000.): $5,000 x 2 = $10,000. The permit fee would 

therefore be ninety dollars ($90.) (or 10.0 x $9). If, in the opinion of the Building Official, the 

cost of construction is underestimated on the application, the permit shall be denied, unless the 

applicant can show detailed documentation to meet the approval of the Building Official. Final 

building permit cost of construction shall be approved by the Building Official. 

(3)  Any person who is found to have demolished, constructed, altered, removed, or changed the 

use of a building or structure without the benefit of a building, electrical, plumbing, mechanical, 

fire protection or demolition permit shall, upon application for said permit(s), be assessed a 

permit fee of twice the normal rate outlined in Subsection A of this section or twenty-five dollars 

($25.), whichever is greater. Example: Cost of materials = $15,392; Labor = Self; Permit Fee = 

16.0 x $9 x 2 (self-labor) x 2 (added fee) = $576. 

(4)  In the case of a revocation of a permit or abandonment or discontinuance of a building 

project, the portion of the work actually completed shall be computed and any excess fee for the 

uncompleted work shall be returned to the permit holder upon written request. All plan 

examination and permit processing fees and all penalties that have been imposed on the permit 

holder under the requirements of this chapter shall first be collected. The permit processing fee 

shall be 10% of the building permit application fee with a minimum fee of ten dollars ($10.). 

 

8/29/19 

18 

https://www.ecode360.com/32216499#32216499
https://www.ecode360.com/32216500#32216500
https://www.ecode360.com/32216501#32216501
https://www.ecode360.com/32216495#32216495
https://www.ecode360.com/32216502#32216502
https://www.ecode360.com/32216503#32216503
https://www.ecode360.com/32216502#32216502
https://www.ecode360.com/32216504#32216504
https://www.ecode360.com/32216495#32216495
https://www.ecode360.com/32216505#32216505


Const Cost Fee New Fees Deficiency New Fees Deficiency 

Fences 56 $199,959 $2,571 $1,120 $1,451 $560 $2,011

Roofing 131 $1,137,481 $12,499 $2,620 $9,879 $1,310 $11,189

Sheds 52 $179,858 $2,301 $1,040 $1,261 $520 $1,781

Siding 19 $225,829 $2,911 $380 $2,531 $190 $2,721

Totals 258 $1,743,127 $20,282 $5,160 $15,122 $2,580 $12,542

Based on FY 19

Current Fees Proposed Flat Fee

$20 $10$9 per $1000

8/29/19 

19 



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

8/29/19 

20 



G E N E R A L  C O D E  
 

INSTRUCTIONS 
 

City of Rochester Code Supplement No. 2 
 
The enclosed new and/or replacement pages should be placed in your Code volume immediately! 
The dateline, on the bottom of the page, does not indicate the adoption date of the Code changes, 
but rather identifies the pages printed with this supplement. This instruction page should be 
placed in the front of your Code volume. 
 
 
REMOVE INSERT 
  
275:29 – 275:30 275:29 – 275:30 
––– 275:30.1 
275:53 – 275:56 275:53 – 275:56 
275:117 – 275:124 275:117 – 275:124 
––– 275:124.1 
275:129 – 275:138 275:129 – 275:138 
––– 275:138.1 
275 Attachment 1:1 – 1:2 275 Attachment 1:1 – 1:2 
275 Attachment 3:1 275 Attachment 3:1 
275 Attachment 4:1 – 1:2 275 Attachment 4:1 – 4:2 
275 Attachment 7:1  275 Attachment 7:1  
DL:1 – DL:2 DL:1 – DL:2 
Index Pages 1 – 41 Index Pages 1 – 41 
 

8/29/19 

21 



275:29

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-2.2§ 275-2.2

OFFICE, MEDICAL (or HEALTH CLINIC or MEDICAL FACILITY) — A building,
portion of a building, or leasable space in which on-site mental and physical health care on
an outpatient basis is provided. Practitioners may include physicians, surgeons, nurses,
dentists, chiropractors, psychologists, mental health counselors, and other such similar health
care professionals. (Also see "hospital.")

OFFICE, PROFESSIONAL — A building, portion of a building, or leasable space housing
professionals such as lawyers, architects, engineers, surveyors, designers, teachers,
accountants or others who through training are qualified to perform services of a professional
nature and where no storage or sale of merchandise (other than limited incidental
merchandise) exists. "Office, professional" excludes "office," "office, medical" and "retail
services" (see those definitions).

OPEN SPACE — A separate lot ("open space lot") or portion of a buildable lot (also called
"green space") designated as protected, undeveloped land. (Also see "buildable lot" and
"green space" in this section and open space requirements in Article 19, Dimensional
Regulations.)

PARCEL (or TRACT or LAND UNIT) — A lot, a portion of a lot, or multiple lots (or
portions thereof) on which development may occur.

PARKING FACILITY, COMMERCIAL — A parking lot or parking garage used as an
independent business venture for the short-term parking of automobiles on an hourly, daily,
weekly, or monthly basis for a fee. [Added 5-7-2019]

PARKING FACILITY, PUBLIC — A parking lot or parking garage, owned by a municipal
or public entity, used for the short-term parking of automobiles on an hourly, daily, weekly,
or monthly basis, and which may require permitting or usage fees. [Added 5-7-2019]

PARKING GARAGE — A multilevel structure used for the storage of automobiles.

PARKING LOT — An off-street, ground-level open area that provides storage for motor
vehicles.

PERMANENT FOUNDATION — A continuous perimeter foundation of masonry
constructed underneath a building in accordance with the City of Rochester Building Codes.

PERMITTED USE — Any use allowed in a zoning district "by right" in contrast to a
conditional use, a use permitted by special exception, or an accessory use. Nonetheless, there
are numerous requirements which may apply and there is a significant review process
involved for most permitted uses in accordance with the requirements of this chapter and the
Site Plan Regulations and Subdivision Regulations. (Also see "accessory use," "conditional
use," and "special exception" in this section and Article 20, Standards for Specific Permitted
Uses.)

PERSONAL SERVICES ESTABLISHMENTS — Establishments serving individual
necessities, including but not limited to barbershops, beauty salons and spas, massage
services by masseurs/masseuses, personal laundry/dry-cleaning services, tattoo parlors, and
travel agencies.

PHARMACY — See "retail establishments."

8/29/19 

22 



275:30

ROCHESTER CODE § 275-2.2§ 275-2.2

Supp 2, May 2019

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (or PUD) — A special zoning designation that allows
the owner of a large parcel of land to propose his/her own development project largely
independent of current land use requirements.

PLANNING BOARD — The Planning Board of the City of Rochester.

PLANT NURSERY — Land and associated structures, including greenhouses, used to raise
trees, shrubs, flowers, and other plants for sale on site or at another location. Limited related
landscaping and decorative items are frequently sold on site as well.

PLAT — A map of a subdivision showing surveyed lot lines with bearings and dimensions.

PORCH — A roofed projecting structure connected to a building that may be enclosed by
screen, latticework, broad windows, or other light frame walls extending from the main
structure. A front porch is elevated above the surface of the ground, has front steps, a railing,
and porch posts or columns. It provides direct access to the building but is not habitable year
round.

PORKCHOP SUBDIVISION — A special subdivision that allows a limited number of flag
lots in order to help preserve scenic roads and discourage development of new culs-de-sac on
back lots. (See "porkchop subdivisions" in Article 21, Conditional Uses.)

PRESITE BUILT HOUSING — See "modular housing."

PRINCIPAL BUILDING — A building in which the principal use is conducted (in contrast
to an accessory structure). (Also see "accessory structure.")

PRINCIPAL USE — The primary activity that occurs on a lot, i.e., that activity which is the
most prominent and visible, engages the most people, and has the most significant impacts.
(Also see "accessory use" and "secondary use.")

PRINTING FACILITY — A large-scale establishment (over 3,000 square feet) for printing
services. It is oriented toward commercial customers rather than walk-in retail customers.
(See also "retail services" which encompasses photocopying.)

PRIVATE ROAD — A private travel way, providing access to two or more lots, which has
its own platted right-of-way, separate from any of those lots. (Does not include "shared
driveway.")

PROFESSIONAL OFFICE — See "office, professional."

PROHIBITED USE — A use which is not specifically permitted by right, by conditional use,
or by special exception and which is not an accessory use.

RECREATION, INDOOR — A commercial facility within a building devoted to active
sports and recreation. "Indoor recreation" may include billiard parlors, pinball/video arcades,
health clubs, fitness centers, paintball, bowling alleys, indoor sports arenas, swimming pools,
and gymnasiums.

RECREATION, OUTDOOR — An open air commercial facility, including open air roofed
structures, devoted to active sports and recreation. "Outdoor recreation" may include ball
fields, miniature golf, driving ranges, archery ranges, outdoor paintball, sports arenas,
amusement parks, skating rinks, swimming pools, tennis courts, cross-country ski centers, and

8/29/19 

23 



275:30.1

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-2.2§ 275-2.2

water slides. "Outdoor recreation" does not include shooting ranges or facilities with
individual motorized vehicles such as go-carts, race cars, or motorcycles.

RECREATION, PARK — A noncommercial outdoor passive or active recreational facility
serving the general public or residents of a particular neighborhood. It is owned or managed
by the government, a land developer, a homeowners' association, or similar entity.

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE (or RV) — A vehicular-type portable structure without
permanent foundation that can be towed, hauled, or driven and is primarily designed as a
temporary living accommodation for recreational and camping purposes. An RV is not
considered a dwelling unit.

8/29/19 

24 



275:53

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-6.1§ 275-5.5

(2) Setbacks.

(a) Build-to zone. There is a build-to zone between zero and 20 feet. This zone
may be altered by conditional use where appropriate for civic uses, where
not practical, or for other design considerations.

(b) Side/rear setbacks. There are no minimum side setbacks except for spacing
between buildings as specified in the Building/Fire Code. The Planning
Board may alter the rear setbacks by conditional use, where appropriate,
such as to accommodate rear decks for dining, to accommodate pedestrian-
oriented facilities, or to allow for optimal uses of lots consistent with the
intent of this section, provided that any reduction does not interfere with or
negatively impact abutting properties, particularly residential properties.

(3) Parking areas.

(a) Rear setbacks. Within the NMU District parking is allowed in rear yards
but may be permitted in side yards by conditional use. Parking is not
allowed in front yards.

(4) Architectural standards.

(a) The building footprint for any individual nonresidential building shall not
exceed 4,000 square feet. The maximum length of building frontage is 75
feet. The Planning Board may waive either of these requirements by
conditional use where it determines that the intent of providing for smaller-
scale buildings in the NMU Zone is met through special design approaches.

(b) The architectural regulations under the Site Plan Regulations should be
strictly applied to ensure that new buildings and renovations are harmonious
with the character of nearby residential neighborhoods.

ARTICLE 6
Commercial Zoning Districts

[Amended 1-12-2016]

§ 275-6.1. Introduction.

The Downtown Master Plan provides guidance in revitalizing the downtown. It is hoped that
downtown Rochester remains the heart of the City, as an active place that is densely
populated and used by all citizens, in different ways and at different times. It is emphasized
that carefully crafted laws, pertaining to driveway access, parking, signage, lighting, and
building layout and design, are necessary to ensure that the Downtown Commercial District
remains vibrant.

A. Pedestrian orientation. The DC, NMU and OC Zoning Districts have a strong
pedestrian orientation. The districts are structured to accommodate the automobile as
well, but not at the expense of pedestrian character.

B. Automobile orientation. The HC, and some areas of the OC, Districts have a strong
automobile orientation. Nonetheless, quality of design and attention to pedestrian

8/29/19 

25 



275:54

ROCHESTER CODE § 275-6.3§ 275-6.1

Supp 2, May 2019

5. Editor's Note: Former Subsection C(1)(a), First floor, was repealed 5-7-2019.

character is still important in these zones as people will still be walking to and within
the sites.

§ 275-6.2. General terms.

Uses which are permitted by right, conditionally, or by special exception are listed in Article
18, Use Regulations. Dimensional regulations are presented in Article 19, Dimensional
Regulations. Other applicable requirements for development within commercial zoning
districts are presented throughout this chapter.

§ 275-6.3. Downtown Commercial District (DC).

A. District location. The most intensive pedestrian-oriented commercial area in the City is
the DC District where there is the strongest sense of enclosure. Buildings are
predominantly multistory, of masonry construction, and built right to the sidewalk, with
a clear, consistent, relatively uninterrupted street wall (with the side walls of buildings
butting up to each other).

B. Objectives.

(1) Provide for a mix of uses within the zone.

(2) Preserve existing historic architectural structures and designs.

(3) Provide for the adaptive reuse of existing historic and non-historic structures.

(4) Encourage commercial and City-wide redevelopment.

(5) Provide for safe pedestrian and non-automotive travel within the district.

(6) Provide for minimum to no restrictions on hours of operations.

(7) Encourage both rental and ownership opportunities for residential housing in the
district.

C. Development standards.

(1) Uses.

(a) (Reserved)5

(b) Drive-through facilities. Drive-through facilities are permitted in the DC
District by conditional use only. Where permitted, they must be situated in
the rear of the building or in the side of the building only if location at the
rear is not practical.

(c) Outdoor uses. Outdoor uses, such as dining, cafes, seating (all of which
shall be accessory to an allowed primary approved use) and sidewalk
vendors, may be established within the public right-of-way or on other City
property by approval of the City Council.

8/29/19 

26 



275:55

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-6.4§ 275-6.3

6. Editor's Note: Table 19-B is included as an attachment to this chapter.

(2) Setbacks.

(a) Front build-to line/zone.

[1] In the DC District a build-to line of five feet is established for all
commercial buildings and for additions to such buildings fronting on
the street (it is preferred that the building be built right up to the
sidewalk with no setback).

[2] In the DC District a build-to zone between five feet and 10 feet is
established for all noncommercial buildings and for additions to such
buildings fronting on the street.

[3] The build-to line and build-to zone may be altered by conditional use
where appropriate, such as for churches and civic-type buildings,
which may warrant a larger front setback and landscaped or
hardscaped yard, or to create pedestrian-oriented amenities such as
pocket parks or plazas or upon a finding that the build-to line or zone
is not practical or to conform to prevailing existing setbacks.

(b) Side/rear setbacks.

[1] There are no minimum side setbacks except for spacing between
buildings as specified in the Building and Fire Codes. Also see
special setbacks in Note 1 on Table 19-B.6 [Amended at time of
adoption of Code (see Ch. 1, General Provisions, Art. II)]

[2] The Planning Board may alter the rear setbacks by conditional use,
where appropriate, such as to accommodate rear decks for dining, to
accommodate pedestrian-oriented facilities, or to allow for optimal
uses of lots consistent with the intent of this section. The Planning
Board must determine that any reduction does not measurably
interfere with or negatively impact abutting properties, particularly
residential properties.

(3) Parking requirements. [Amended 5-7-2019]

(a) See site plan regulations.

(4) Parking areas. Within the DC District parking is not allowed in front yards and is
allowed in rear and side yards by conditional use.

§ 275-6.4. Office Commercial District (OC).

A. District location. This district is located in transitional areas as well as along the major
nodes and corridors. The OC District includes some older structures that have been
converted to commercial uses and also includes some larger, undeveloped sites.

B. Objectives.

8/29/19 

27 



275:56

ROCHESTER CODE § 275-6.4§ 275-6.4

Supp 2, May 2019

(1) The purpose of the district is to preserve the wood-frame architecture, as much as
feasible, with a mix of residential and low-impact nonresidential uses (office,
institutional, bed-and-breakfasts, and limited retail up to 2,500 square feet).

(2) Allows for large-scale office, institutional, hospitality, and civic uses and is
ideally oriented toward campus-type settings.

(3) Oriented toward open, suburban-type corridors. The district is distinctly
automobile oriented.

(4) Orientation. See Figure 4-D - Recommended Site Design in OC District, below.

Figure 4-D - Recommended Site Design in OC District

(5) Mixed use within the district and within individual buildings is encouraged.

C. Development standards.

(1) Uses.

(a) Nonresidential uses are permitted by right in existing buildings and new
construction.

(b) Drive-through facilities are not permitted in this district.

(2) Build-to zone. There is a build-to zone between 10 and 20 feet. This zone may be
altered by conditional use where appropriate for civic uses, where not practical,
or for other design considerations.

(3) Parking areas.

(a) Screening. Any on-site parking must be fully screened from the street
(except for driveway and pedestrian passageways).

8/29/19 

28 



275:117

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-19.2§ 275-19.2

E. Density rings. The density rings are shown on the Official City of Rochester Zoning
Map that is adopted as part of this chapter and only apply to multifamily dwellings/
developments. The rings are defined as follows: [Amended 2-6-2018; 5-7-2019]

(1) There is no minimum lot area per dwelling unit applicable within the Downtown
Commercial (DC) Zone District. For areas outside of the DC Zone District, the
minimum lot area per dwelling unit within a one-mile radius of the center of
Rochester shall be 5,000 square feet. The minimum lot are per dwelling unit
outside of the one-mile radius of the center of Rochester shall be 7,500 square
feet.

(2) The minimum lot area per dwelling unit within a one-half-mile radius of the
center of Gonic and East Rochester shall be 5,000 square feet. The minimum lot
are per dwelling unit outside of the one-half-mile radius of the center of Gonic
and East Rochester, shall be 7,500 square feet.

(3) Any lot that is partially within the radius of a density ring shall be treated as if it
were entirely within the radius of the density ring.

F. Double frontage lots. On double frontage lots, for the purpose of setbacks, there shall
be established a front, two sides, and a rear. The ordinary front setback shall apply to
that section of the lot which is deemed the front, as determined by the Director of
Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services (based upon the locations of the front
entrance, street address, path to the front, and driveway; E911 standards; the prevailing
pattern of the other buildings on both blocks; impact upon the streetscapes; and other
appropriate factors). The regular rear setback shall apply to that section of the lot
opposite the front.

G. Exempt structures. Nonhabitable utilities and utility-type structures erected by a
governmental, public utility or nonprofit agency which customarily are built within the
road right-of-way, on undersized lots, or close to property lines, and which cannot
reasonably be made to conform to the requirements of the dimensional tables, are
exempt from those requirements.

H. Frontage and access. Access to lots shall be taken from the same road where the lot
frontage is located unless waived by conditional use.

I. Frontage. [Amended at time of adoption of Code (see Ch. 1, General Provisions,
Art. II)]

(1) Continuous. An area used to meet frontage requirements must be continuous and
unbroken. Two or more discrete areas may not be added together to meet
frontage requirements.

(2) Culs-de-sac. The Planning Board may reduce the required frontage on the curved
end portion of a cul-de-sac by up to 20% by conditional use (due to the narrower
frontage relative to lot width that naturally occurs along a cul-de-sac).

(3) Depth. The front portion of every lot must be at least the width of the required
frontage from the front property line extending back at least the depth of the
setback from the front property line.

8/29/19 

29 



275:118

ROCHESTER CODE § 275-19.2§ 275-19.2

Supp 2, May 2019

J. Lot area; usable area. No lot shall be approved unless a rectangle measuring at least
3,000 square feet can be fit inside the lot beyond any required setbacks, wetlands,
wetland buffers, or slopes greater than 25%. The rectangle must be located in an
accessible part of the lot and its width must measure at least 30 feet.

K. Lot coverage. All of the following elements are considered part of lot coverage:
buildings, roofed structures, or impervious surfaces.

L. Multiple principal uses. Where there are multiple principal uses on one lot or parcel,
minimum required lot sizes are not aggregated except where there are multiple
residential uses; i.e., it is necessary only that the lot size meet the minimum
requirement for any use proposed for the lot. (Example: A certain zoning district
stipulates a minimum lot size of 40,000 square feet for all permitted uses, including
single-family and commercial both of which are allowed. To accommodate a single-
family house and a commercial use on the same lot, a lot 40,000 square feet would be
required, rather than a lot 80,000 square feet. However, to establish duplexes,
townhouses, and apartments on the same lot, the minimum lot size would be based on
the total number of dwelling units.) Nonetheless, as part of site plan review, the
Planning Board may stipulate appropriate conditions to ensure compatibility of the
multiple uses.

M. Nonconformities, creation of. Except for open space lots and conservation land, lots
and sites may not be created or modified in any manner that would make them
nonconforming in terms of any dimensional requirements of this chapter.

N. Open space lots; frontage. It is not necessary for open space lots and conservation land
to be in compliance with any requirements of the dimensional tables. Minimum
frontage of 12 feet is required in order to ensure access.

O. Right-of-way encroachments. Within commercial districts where there is no minimum
front setback, encroachments may occur within the public right-of-way as follows:

(1) Footings below grade may encroach as needed subject to approval of the Director
of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services and Public Works Department.

(2) Awnings over the sidewalk provided there is a vertical clearance of at least seven
feet.

(3) Architectural elements, such as balconies, bay windows, and cornices, on upper
floors provided the encroachment does not exceed two feet and provided there is
a vertical clearance of at least 10 feet.

P. Rounding off. In any calculation, where the final number results in a fraction of a unit,
the number of units shall be rounded up to the next whole number where the fraction is
1/2 or greater. It shall be rounded down to the next whole number where the fraction is
less than 1/2.

Q. Setbacks for accessory uses. Setback requirements apply to buildings and roofed
structures accommodating accessory uses in similar fashion as those accommodating
principal uses except where otherwise specified.

R. Setback application.

8/29/19 

30 



275:119

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-20.1§ 275-19.2

(1) Required setbacks apply to buildings, roofed structures, open air decks, porches,
ground-mounted mechanical equipment, ground-mounted satellite dishes, fuel
tanks, and bulkheads. The setback requirement applies whether the element is a
principal or an accessory use. [See extensions beyond setbacks (i.e., into setback
areas) below; special exception provisions for porches; and several other specific
exceptions and special provisions regarding setbacks in this chapter.]

(2) Setbacks are measured to the building foundation, except where a portion of the
building containing usable floor area extends beyond the foundation (such as on
the upper floors in a garrison-style house). Where a building foundation is not
present or not applicable, setbacks are measured to the most appropriate vertical
fascia, eave board, or header joist for that part of the structure. For ground-
mounted mechanical equipment, ground-mounted satellite dishes, fuel tanks, and
bulkheads, setbacks are measured to the nearest part of the structure.

S. Extensions beyond setbacks (i.e., into setback areas).

(1) Appurtenant elements to buildings or structures which do not contribute to usable
floor area and do not have a foundation and which are not specifically included in
Subsection R above may extend into the setback areas but may not extend beyond
any property line. This includes, but is not limited to, architectural trim, awnings,
bay windows, chimneys, decorative architectural elements, downspouts, window
air-conditioning units, exterior steps, fire escapes, gutters, place of refuge decks,
building-mounted satellite dishes, roof eaves, siding materials, and vents.

(2) In cases where any landing serving exterior steps exceeds 24 square feet in area,
that landing (but not the steps) must meet all required setbacks.

T. Triangular lots. Triangular lots shall contain one front lot line and two side lot lines.

U. Triple frontage lots. On triple frontage lots, for the purpose of setbacks, there shall be
established a front, two sides, and a rear. The ordinary front setback shall apply to that
section of the lot which is deemed the front, as determined by the Director of Building,
Zoning, and Licensing Services (based upon the locations of the front entrance, street
address, path to the front, and driveway; E911 standards; the prevailing pattern of the
other buildings on both blocks; impact upon the streetscapes; and other appropriate
factors). For any side which faces a street the setback shall be the ordinary side setback
in that district. The ordinary rear setback shall apply.

ARTICLE 20
Standards for Specific Permitted Uses

[Amended 2-3-2015; 7-7-2015]

§ 275-20.1. General provisions.

For certain permitted uses that could impact surrounding neighborhoods, conflict with
adjacent uses, or have other significant impacts, specific standards are provided below. These
standards apply only to those uses which are permitted by right shown as "P" in Tables 18-A
through 18-E except where specifically noted otherwise. Other particular standards applicable
to conditional uses, special exceptions, and accessory uses are articulated in separate articles.

8/29/19 

31 



275:120

ROCHESTER CODE § 275-20.2§ 275-20.2

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-20.2. Conditions for particular uses.

For each individual use listed below, all of the specific conditions attached to that use must
be met along with any other requirements of this chapter.

A. Contractor's storage yard. Minimum setbacks from all property lines shall be 25 feet or
as specified in the dimensional regulations table, whichever is greater. No structures or
stockpiled materials related to the storage yard operation shall be situated within these
setbacks. Heavy vehicles or equipment in working order may be parked within the
setbacks provided that none is parked within 15 feet of a property line. A contractor's
storage yard shall not be established in a floodplain.

B. Day care-2 (day care - family). This use is not considered a home occupation.
However, the review process for this use, where it is permitted by right, shall be the
same as for home occupations where no special exception is involved. See § 275-24.5.

C. Earth excavation.

(1) Regulations. No person shall perform earth excavation except in compliance with
the provisions of RSA 155-E, as amended, this chapter, and the Site Plan
Regulations applicable to earth excavation.

(2) Existing operation. Any existing excavation activity operating under a permit
issued prior to the date of adoption of this chapter may continue until the
expiration of the permit, except that any expansion or change in operation not
covered by that permit shall be in compliance with the provisions of this section.

(3) Buffers. Buffers/setbacks are established as set forth in RSA 155-E and in Article
12, Conservation Overlay District. No excavation, processing, or removal of
vegetation may occur within the buffers/setbacks specified. Where the buffer/
setback has been removed or is not adequate, the Planning Board may stipulate
reestablishment of the buffer/setback, as appropriate.

(4) Water table. For excavation of sand, gravel, or other subsurface materials (also
see RSA 155-E), the seasonal high water table must be determined prior to
Planning Board approval and it must be demonstrated that no ground disturbance
or excavation will occur within four feet of that seasonal high water table except
as provided below.

(a) Applicants shall submit the following as part of any review:

[1] Information about any types of fill material that may be deposited on
the site.

[2] Recognizing that sand and gravel pits sometimes become unlawful
dumps (due to no fault of the property owner or operator) posing
potential harm to the underlying groundwater, the applicant shall
submit a plan to discourage use of the site as a dump during and after
excavation.

(b) The excavation of gravel materials below four feet above the stated
seasonal high water table may be allowed by special exception if the
applicant can clearly demonstrate that such excavation will not adversely

8/29/19 

32 



275:121

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-20.2§ 275-20.2

affect groundwater quality (in addition to other general conditions listed in
Article 22, Special Exceptions). The Zoning Board of Adjustment and the
Planning Board shall be required to review the reports provided and may
require additional information, experts or studies to assist it in its review
and approval of its issuance of any special exception and permit allowing
such excavation.

(c) See Article 10, Aquifer Protection Overlay District, for other provisions
within that district.

(5) Abandoned sites. In the event the Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing
Services determines that any abandoned excavation presents a hazard to the
public health, safety or welfare, the owner may be required, following a public
hearing before the Planning Board, to comply with any timetable and bonding
requirements to be established by the Planning Board to complete reclamation.
Should reclamation not be completed, the Board may request the City to
authorize reclamation at the City's expense. The City's costs shall then constitute
an assessment against the owner and shall create a lien against the property on
which the excavation is located. Such assessment and lien may be enforced and
collected in the same manner as provided for real estate taxes.

D. Farm; farm, crop.

(1) Lot size. The minimum lot size is five gross acres for a farm and five gross acres
for a crop farm.

(2) Housing. The Planning Board is empowered to consider and approve special on-
site housing arrangements to accommodate farm workers, such as cluster housing
or temporary/seasonal housing, under site plan review.

(3) Retail sales. Any farm goods produced on site along with limited related
products, such as baked goods, non-alcoholic cider, etc., may be sold on site.

(4) Livestock. Housing for any livestock for a farm shall be set back at least 100 feet
from any side or rear lot lines. Housing for fowl, fur-bearing animals, and swine
shall be set back at least 150 feet from any side or rear lot lines. The ZBA may
reduce or waive this requirement by special exception. There is no setback for
open pens and fencing provided animals are not left in such pens overnight.

(5) Manure. Any significant storage areas for manure shall be set back at least 200
feet from any lot lines. Best management practices shall be followed in the
handling of manure.

(6) Performance standards. The general provisions of Article 28 of this chapter and
RSA 432:33 shall apply.

E. Gas station.

(1) The minimum lot area shall be 30,000 square feet.

(2) Lot frontage shall be at least 150 feet.

8/29/19 

33 



275:122

ROCHESTER CODE § 275-20.2§ 275-20.2

Supp 2, May 2019

(3) Pumps, lubricating and other outdoor service devices shall be located at least 30
feet from any lot lines.

(4) All automobile parts and dismantled vehicles are to be stored within a building,
and no repair work is to be performed outside a building.

(5) The minimum setback for all portions of canopies shall be 20 feet from all lot
lines or the required district setbacks, whichever is greater.

(6) Limited light maintenance activity is an accessory use and includes engine tune-
ups, lubrication, brake repairs, tire changing, battery charging, car washing,
detailing, polishing, and carburetor cleaning. Such activities as engine overhaul,
vehicle painting, welding, and body or fender work would not be an accessory
use.

F. Junkyard. All materials shall be fully screened from the road and from all abutting
property by a solid wall or fence at least eight feet in height. The Planning Board may
stipulate a taller wall or fence, as appropriate.

G. Lodging facility. For a lodging facility, the minimum lot size shall be 30,000 square
feet plus 1,000 square feet per unit. Minimum lot size for a bed-and-breakfast shall be
the minimum lot size for a single-family home according to the applicable zone district.
The minimum lot size for a hotel in the Downtown Commercial (DC) Zone District
shall be 7,500 square feet. [Amended 5-7-2019]

H. Mini-warehouse. The front setback for all storage structures shall be 100 feet. Side and
rear setbacks from any residential property shall be 75 feet.

I. Manufactured housing subdivision, not part of an existing mobile home park. See
Chapter 135 of the City Code for existing mobile home parks.

(1) Overall development. [Amended 9-6-2016]

(a) All requirements otherwise applicable to subdivision of lots for
conventional houses within a conservation subdivision shall apply.

(b) Additions to manufactured housing units (or "homes"). There shall be no
additions constructed onto manufactured homes with the exception of
garages, skirting, carports, cabanas, awnings, canopies, porches, decks, and
steps. All must be approved by the Director of Building, Zoning, and
Licensing Services.

J. Manufactured housing unit, not part of an existing mobile home park. See Chapter 135
of the City Code for existing mobile home parks. [Amended 9-6-2016]

(1) Manufactured homes are allowed only:

(a) On individual lots in the AG District;

(b) Within manufactured housing subdivisions located in the AG District; and

(c) Within established mobile home parks on approved pads/lots.

8/29/19 

34 



275:123

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-20.2§ 275-20.2

(2) Additions to manufactured homes. There shall be no additions constructed onto
manufactured homes with the exception of garages, skirting, carports, cabanas,
awnings, canopies, porches, decks, and steps. All must be approved by the
Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services.

K. Multifamily dwellings/development. The following requirements shall apply to
multifamily dwellings/developments of three or more dwelling units: [Amended 5-7-
2019]

(1) Buffers from roads. Except for parcels within the Downtown Commercial (DC)
Zone District, a fifty-foot buffer shall be established from all neighboring roads,
including roads from which access is taken. The Planning Board shall determine
treatment of the buffer area, whether it is to be left undisturbed, to have
supplemental plantings installed, to be designated part of the overall open space
plan for the development, and/or to be part of an individual lot but protected from
construction. No roofed structures may be erected in the buffer area. This buffer
shall not be required for parcels in the DC Zone District.

(2) Access. Any new multifamily development must take access from an existing
collector or arterial road rather than an existing local road. The Planning Board
may waive this requirement by conditional use upon a finding that it is preferable
to take access from a local rather than a collector road and that taking access
from the local road will have no significant adverse impact upon residents or
property owners located on the local road.

(3) Commercial districts. Within any commercial districts, multifamily is allowed
only as a secondary use.

(a) It must be situated on the second floor or on higher floors of a commercial
building or in a separate building behind the commercial building; and

(b) At no time may the area of the multifamily dwellings exceed 80% of the
square footage of the on-site commercial space.

(4) Downtown Commercial District. Within the Downtown Commercial (DC)
District, multifamily is allowed with the following restrictions:

(a) Multifamily units are prohibited on the ground floor and only permitted
nonresidential uses within the Downtown Commercial District shall be
located on the ground floor. However, parking shall be allowed on the
ground floor except for parcels fronting any of the following streets:

[1] Union Street.

[2] North Main Street south of the North Main Street Bridge.

[3] South Main Street.

[4] Wakefield Street south of Columbus Avenue.

[5] Hanson Street.

[6] Museum Way.

8/29/19 

35 



275:124

ROCHESTER CODE § 275-20.2§ 275-20.2

Supp 2, May 2019

19. Editor's Note: This ordinance also redesignated former Subsections N through U as Subsections O through V.

(b) Ancillary ground floor multifamily use, such as entryways, lobbies, utility
areas and similar functional spaces shall be minimized to the extent
practical. Remaining ground floor space within the first 50 feet of building
depth shall be reserved for nonresidential uses, as permitted in the DC Zone
District, unless otherwise required to comply with the state building code
and/or fire codes.

(c) DC Zone District parcels not fronting on the above-listed streets may
contain multifamily use and units on all floors without restriction.

(5) Sewer and water. Any new multifamily dwellings/developments must connect to
the City of Rochester's public sewer and water systems.

L. Nursing home. The minimum lot size for the zone shall be increased by 1,000 square
feet for each patient bed. The permitted density shall be 1 1/4 times that otherwise
permitted for residential uses in the district.

M. Outdoor wood-fired hydronic heater or outdoor wood boiler.

(1) "Outdoor wood-fired hydronic heater" or "outdoor wood boiler" means a fuel-
burning device as defined by RSA 125-R.

(2) The installation and/or operation of outdoor wood-fired hydronic heaters is
permitted in the Agricultural District only. [Amended at time of adoption of
Code (see Ch. 1, General Provisions, Art. II)]

(3) The outdoor wood-fired hydronic heater shall be set back 25 feet from the nearest
structure it serves.

(4) The outdoor wood-fired hydronic heater shall be set back 100 feet from any lot
line.

N. Parking facility, public. For a public parking facility, the following standards shall
apply: [Added 5-7-201919]

(1) Sizing and capacity of the facility shall be based on current and forecasted use
patterns and demand for publicly accessible parking.

(2) Frontages along a primary commercial street shall, to the extent practicable,
incorporate commercial business as a means of minimizing extended expanses of
blank walls.

(3) An operations plan shall define the basic functions of the facility including
signage, offsite wayfinding, hours of operation, access and control points,
payment systems, and lighting and landscape installation.

(4) Rate schedules shall be subject to establishment and change by the City of
Rochester and shall not be required for approval or conditioned by the Notice of
Decision.

O. Small wind energy systems.

8/29/19 

36 



275:124.1

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-20.2§ 275-20.2

(1) Authority and purpose. This Subsection N is enacted in accordance with RSA
672:1, III-a, and 674:62 to 674:66. The purpose of this subsection is to
accommodate the installation of small wind energy systems in the City of
Rochester, while protecting the public's health, safety and welfare.

(2) Accessory use. A small wind energy system and meteorological tower are
allowed as accessory uses to on-site principal residential or nonresidential uses
that are legally established, including grandfathered nonconforming uses.

(3) Building permit. No small wind energy system or meteorological tower may be
erected, constructed, or installed without a building permit issued by the Director
of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services. A building permit shall also be
required for any physical modification to an existing small wind energy system.

(4) Meteorological towers. Meteorological towers shall be permitted on a temporary
basis and must be removed within three years from the date the building permit
for the tower is issued.

(5) Total capacity. The total capacity for one or more small wind energy systems
situated on one site or lot may not exceed a rated capacity of 100 kilowatts.

(6) Application. An application for a building permit shall be submitted to the
Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services and shall include a site plan
and documentation providing all of the following:

(a) Property lines and physical dimensions of the applicant's property. A survey
may be required at the reasonable discretion of the Director of Building,
Zoning, and Licensing Services if necessary to confirm compliance with the
setback and other requirements of this subsection.

(b) Locations, dimensions, and types of buildings on the property and on
adjacent properties within 50 feet of the property lines.

(c) Locations of the proposed small wind energy system(s), foundations, guy
anchors and associated equipment.

(d) Tower foundation blueprints or drawings.

(e) Tower blueprints or drawings.

(f) Height of proposed tower and setback requirements as outlined in this
subsection.

(g) A plan showing the height of the overall prevailing canopy of trees within
300 feet of the tower.

(h) Any public road that is contiguous with the subject property.

(i) Any overhead utility lines.

(j) Small wind energy system specifications, including manufacturer, model,
rotor diameter, tower type, and nameplate generation capacity.

8/29/19 

37 



275:129

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-20.2§ 275-20.2

METEOROLOGICAL TOWER — A temporary structure erected to collect
environmental information for the purpose of assessing the potential for a small
wind energy system. The meteorological tower includes the tower, base plate,
anchors, guy wires and hardware, anemometers (wind speed indicators), wind
direction vanes, booms to hold equipment for anemometers and vanes, data
loggers, instrument wiring, and any telemetry devices that are used to monitor or
transmit wind speed and wind flow characteristics over a period of time for either
instantaneous wind information or to characterize the wind resource at a given
location.

MODIFICATION — Any change to the small wind energy system that materially
alters the size, type or location of the small wind energy system. Nonstructural
maintenance and repair is not considered to be a modification.

NET METERING — The difference between the electricity supplied to a customer
over the electric distribution system and the electricity generated by the customer's
small wind energy system that is fed back into the electric distribution system over
a billing period.

POWER GRID — The transmission system, managed by ISO New England,
created to balance the supply and demand of electricity for consumers in New
England.

SHADOW FLICKER — The visible flicker effect when rotating blades of the
wind generator cast shadows on the ground and on nearby structures causing a
repeating pattern of light and shadow.

SMALL WIND ENERGY SYSTEM — A wind energy conversion system
consisting of a wind generator, tower, and associated control or conversion
electronics, which has a rated capacity of 100 kilowatts or less and which is used
primarily for on-site consumption.

SYSTEM HEIGHT — The vertical distance from ground level to the tip of the
wind generator blade when it is at its highest point.

TOWER — The monopole, guyed monopole or lattice structure that supports a
wind generator.

TOWER HEIGHT — The height above grade of the fixed portion of the tower,
excluding the wind generator.

WIND GENERATOR — The blades and associated mechanical and electrical
conversion components mounted on top of the tower whose purpose is to convert
kinetic energy of the wind into rotational energy used to generate electricity.

P. Solid waste facility. Solid waste facilities shall be subject to the following
requirements:

(1) Lot size. The minimum lot size for solid waste facility uses shall be five acres.

(2) Coverage. Solid waste facility uses shall not occupy more than 75% of the land
area of the lot on which they are located or occur.

8/29/19 

38 



275:130

ROCHESTER CODE § 275-20.2§ 275-20.2

Supp 2, May 2019

(3) Zoning lines. Solid waste facilities shall be set back at least 100 feet from
adjoining zoning boundary lines except where the adjoining district is an
industrial district.

(4) Setbacks from rivers. Solid waste facilities shall be set back a minimum of 100
feet from the landward extent of the five-hundred-year floodplain and shall be
screened from the river with a vegetative or other natural barrier to minimize
visual impact unless otherwise specified in RSA 483:9. The following accessory
structures or uses associated with a solid waste facility may also be located in the
aforementioned setback areas if approved by NHDES and the Rochester Planning
Board, with a recommendation from the Conservation Commission, as part of the
site review process:

(a) Access roads;

(b) Drainage ditches and stormwater structures;

(c) Fencing, screening and earthen berms;

(d) Groundwater monitoring wells, piezometers, and other environmental
monitoring devices;

(e) Piping and tanks and appurtenant systems;

(f) Sedimentation basins; and

(g) Utility lines.

(5) Other setbacks. Solid waste facilities shall be set back at least 50 feet from City-
owned rights-of-way, provided that the setback for certain solid waste facilities
shall be as specified below:

(a) Recycling and materials recovery facility. Setback for the front foundation
face of any buildings and/or permanent vehicle storage or materials storage
facilities at recycling and material recovery facilities shall be 100 feet from
City-owned rights-of-way. Normal parking entrances and accesses are
permitted within this setback, but permanent overnight truck or equipment
parking is prohibited. In the event an alternative screen or buffer is
approved by the Planning Board, this setback may be reduced.

(b) Transfer station or composting facility. Setback for the face of buildings or
other physical structures used as transfer station or composting facilities
shall be 50 feet or composting facilities shall be 100 feet from City-owned
rights-of-way. Permanent parking of trucks or equipment within the setback
is prohibited. Normal customer access and parking is permitted within the
setback. In the event an alternative screen or buffer is approved by the
Planning Board, this setback may be reduced.

(6) Entering property. The City shall have the right to enter the solid waste facility
during all operating hours and at other reasonable times to administer and enforce
the provisions of this subsection.

8/29/19 

39 



275:131

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-20.2§ 275-20.2

(7) Operational standards. Operational standards for and the operation of any solid
waste facility shall be governed by and subject to the New Hampshire laws
regarding solid waste management and regulations promulgated thereunder by the
New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services and other state or federal
agencies having jurisdiction over the operation of such facilities.

Q. Stable, commercial.

(1) The minimum lot size required shall be five acres.

(2) The side and rear setbacks for structures housing horses shall be 100 feet from
any property line.

(3) Any storage areas for manure shall be set back at least 200 feet from any lot
lines. Manure must be handled according to best management practices.

R. Temporary structure. Temporary structures are subject to the following requirements.
However, temporary structures erected for 15 or fewer days are exempt from this
subsection herein.

(1) A permit is required for temporary structures. An application must be submitted
to the Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services specifying the
proposed location for the structure and its purpose. A fee will be charged in an
amount determined by the City Council.

(2) Temporary structures are subject to all zoning setbacks.

(3) Temporary structures may not be placed forward of the front facade of the
primary building on the lot (on corner lots, this applies only to the main entry
facade, though other corner lot setbacks, as specified in this chapter, still apply).

(4) Temporary structures that were in place prior to the adoption of this subsection
must be brought into compliance with this subsection within six months of its
adoption.

S. Vehicle sales. No vehicles or other equipment or materials may be stored or displayed
within the road right-of-way. The City of Rochester shall take all appropriate steps to
enforce this requirement. See enforcement provisions under Article 3, Administration.

T. Veterinary clinic.

(1) Veterinary clinics shall set back 100 feet from any residential property, restaurant
or lodging establishment.

(2) All animals housed overnight shall be in completely enclosed buildings.

(3) The Planning Board may stipulate that appropriate sound mitigation devices be
installed and that fences, walls, and/or vegetation be installed to screen the site
where animals will be maintained out of doors.

U. Warehouse.

(1) All goods must be stored within a completely enclosed building or located in rear
setbacks.

8/29/19 

40 



275:132

ROCHESTER CODE § 275-21.1§ 275-20.2

Supp 2, May 2019

20. Editor's Note: See Ch. 110, Junk and Secondhand Dealers.

(2) If the warehouse or storage area constitutes less than 50% of the gross interior
floor area of the building it shall be considered an accessory use.

V. Yard sale, commercial.

(1) A secondhand dealer license must be obtained from the City Council.20

(2) Items may be displayed outside on the lawn or driveway or in a garage or other
structure. The items must be displayed neatly and may not be left outdoors
overnight.

ARTICLE 21
Conditional Uses

§ 275-21.1. General provisions.

A. Granting authority. Wherever a conditional use is authorized under this chapter, the
authority to administer or grant conditional use approval is vested in the Planning
Board. Conditional use approval may be granted only for those conditional uses
referred to in Subsection C below.

B. Purpose. Certain uses, structures, or conditions possess special characteristics such that
if developed in certain locations or in certain ways may have significant adverse
impacts. In order to safeguard the public interest and the interest of neighboring
property owners, some uses, structures, and conditions require the Zoning Board of
Adjustment to grant a special exception and others are designated as conditional uses to
provide an opportunity for the Planning Board to review and evaluate these applications
on an individual basis in contrast to uses which are simply permitted by right.

C. Types of conditional uses.

(1) There are two types of conditional uses covered under this chapter:

(a) Uses. Conditional uses for actual "uses" as listed in the Tables of Uses in
Article 18 (e.g., townhouse or trade shop) and discussed in § 275-18.4.

(b) Departures from standards. Conditional uses to allow for certain departures
from standards otherwise applicable, detailed all throughout this chapter
(e.g., allowing for parking in a side setback or for buildings to exceed a
certain height).

(2) The process is the same for both types of conditional uses. The term "conditional
uses" is used throughout this chapter for both situations.

D. Criteria and conditions.

(1) The base criteria in § 275-21.3 below shall apply to all conditional uses. In
addition, certain particular uses have specific criteria and/or conditions which
must also be met in order for those uses to be approved as listed below in § 275-

8/29/19 

41 



275:133

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-21.1§ 275-21.1

21.4, Conditions for particular uses. For those uses which are not specifically
discussed below, it is necessary only that the base criteria be satisfied.

(2) It is not essential that the Planning Board specifically and outwardly articulate
compliance with each criterion and condition. At its option, the Board may
simply state that all of the criteria and conditions have been met, provided it is
duly diligent and thorough in its consideration.

E. Burden of persuasion. The applicant shall bear the burden of persuasion, through the
introduction of sufficient evidence as may be required by this chapter or by the
Planning Board in its reasonable discretion, that the development, if completed as
proposed, will comply with this article and will satisfy the specific requirements for the
use or standard contained in this chapter.

F. Pertinent information. In reviewing an application for a conditional use approval, the
Planning Board shall consider the following information, as applicable to the case:

(1) Compliance with the applicable requirements contained in this chapter;

(2) The results of any special investigative or scientific studies prepared in
association with the proposed development;

(3) Special reports or analysis of the project or its impacts, prepared by the City or
consultants;

(4) The findings, goals and objectives of the City's Master Plan;

(5) The relationship of the development to the timing, location and cost of public
improvements scheduled in the Capital Improvements Program and improvements
necessitated by the development;

(6) Testimony and evidence introduced at the public hearing on the application; and

(7) Any other appropriate information or documentation.

G. Terms of approval.

(1) The Planning Board may also impose, in addition to any applicable conditions
specified in this chapter, such additional conditions as it finds reasonably
appropriate to safeguard the neighborhood or otherwise serve the purposes of this
chapter, including but not limited to the following:

(a) Increasing front, side, and rear setbacks in excess of the minimum
requirements of this chapter;

(b) Screening of the premises from the street or adjacent property in excess of
any minimum requirements of this chapter;

(c) Landscaping in excess of any minimum requirements of this chapter or the
Site Plan Regulations;

(d) Modification of the exterior features of buildings or other structures;

(e) Limitations on the size of buildings and other structures more stringent than
the requirements of this chapter;

8/29/19 

42 



275:134

ROCHESTER CODE § 275-21.3§ 275-21.1

Supp 2, May 2019

(f) Footprint or lot coverage less than the allowed maximum of this chapter;

(g) Limitations on the number of occupants and methods and times of
operation;

(h) Regulation of design of access drives, sidewalks, crosswalks, and other
traffic features;

(i) Off-street parking and loading spaces in excess of, or less than, the
minimum requirements of this chapter or the Site Plan Regulations; and

(j) Other performance standards as appropriate.

(2) Such conditions shall be imposed in writing, and the applicant may be required to
post bond or other security for compliance with these conditions in an amount
satisfactory to the City. The Planning Board may require that such conditions be
annotated on a site plan or subdivision plat, or otherwise recorded at the Strafford
County Registry of Deeds.

H. Existing uses and structures. Any use that was lawfully established prior to the adoption
of this chapter and which is allowed as a conditional use, but for which a conditional
use approval was never issued, is now permitted and may continue in the same manner
and to the same extent as conducted prior to the adoption of this chapter. However, a
conditional use approval shall be secured from the Planning Board before the use or
structure or building in which the use is conducted may be intensified, enlarged,
expanded, moved or significantly altered.

§ 275-21.2. Procedures.

A. Application. Conditional uses authorized under this article may be granted only after
application to and a public hearing by the Planning Board and subject to the provisions
of RSA 674:16, as amended. The Planning Board may establish special procedures and
fees for conditional use applications consistent with RSA 674:16, as it sees fit.

B. Site plans and subdivisions. Where a conditional use application is related to a specific
subdivision or site plan application, the application and review procedure for both shall
be conducted concurrently.

C. Appeals. Any persons aggrieved by a Planning Board decision on a conditional use
application may appeal that decision to the Superior Court, as provided for in RSA
677:15.

D. Expiration of conditional use approvals. Any conditional use approval shall expire or
become null and void upon the expiration, lapse, nullification, withdrawal, or repeal of
any site or subdivision plan to which the conditional use is attached.

§ 275-21.3. Base criteria.

The Planning Board shall grant a conditional use approval if, and only if, it reasonably
determines that all of the following criteria are met (in addition to those criteria/conditions

8/29/19 

43 



275:135

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-21.4§ 275-21.3

articulated for particular uses in § 275-21.4 below, or in addition to those articulated
elsewhere in this chapter for departures from standards):

A. Allowed use or departure. The use or departure from standards is specifically
authorized under the Tables of Uses in Article 18 as a conditional use or is otherwise
specifically authorized in this chapter;

B. Intent of chapter. The proposal is consistent with the purpose and intent of this chapter;

C. Intent of Master Plan. The proposal is consistent with the purpose and intent of the
Master Plan;

D. Compatibility. The proposal is compatible with general dimensional, use, and design
characteristics of the neighborhood and surrounding area;

E. Streetscape. The proposal will not adversely impact the quality of the streetscape;

F. Resources. The use or departure will not have a significantly adverse impact upon
natural, scenic, historic, or cultural resources and can be designed with sensitivity to
environmental constraints; and

G. Public facilities. The use does not place an undue burden upon the City's resources,
including the effect on the City's water supply and distribution system, sanitary and
storm sewage collection and treatment systems, fire protection, police protection, streets
and schools.

§ 275-21.4. Conditions for particular uses.

For each individual use listed below, all of the specific conditions attached to that use must
be met along with the base criteria articulated in § 275-21.3 above.

A. Assisted living facility. The permitted density shall be 1 1/4 times that otherwise
permitted for residential uses in the district.

B. Conservation subdivision. See Article 33, Conservation Subdivisions.

C. Convenience store. The following standards apply in the R2 Zone:

(1) The Planning Board shall determine hours of operation.

(2) Illumination of the store shall be limited to hours of operation, except for
purposes of security.

D. Flag lots. As part of any major subdivision (involving a new road) the Planning Board
may approve the creation of one or more flag lots as a conditional use. Flag lots are
allowed subject to the following terms/findings:

(1) Allowing the flag lot(s) accommodates a superior layout than what would
otherwise be allowed;

(2) A tangible public benefit is gained such as the creation of additional or higher
quality open space, preservation of important resources, or creating a trail
network;

8/29/19 

44 



275:136

ROCHESTER CODE § 275-21.4§ 275-21.4

Supp 2, May 2019

(3) The total number of flag lots shall not exceed 15% of the total number of lots in
the subdivision (being created at that time);

(4) The total number of lots, including the flag lots, shall not exceed the number
otherwise allowable based on frontage and lot size;

(5) The width of the frontage and the entire "flagpole" leading to the main lot area is
at least 25 feet; and

(6) The Planning Board may stipulate shared driveways at its discretion, including
for access to the flag lot, to reduce access points.

E. Gas station.

(1) The minimum lot area shall be at least 30,000 square feet.

(2) Lot frontage shall be at least 150 feet.

(3) Pumps, lubricating and other outdoor service devices shall be located at least 30
feet from the front, side and rear lot lines.

(4) All automobile parts and dismantled vehicles are to be stored within a building,
and no repair work is to be performed outside a building.

(5) The minimum setback for all portions of canopies shall be 20 feet from the front,
side and rear lot lines or those setbacks established for the district, whichever is
greater.

(6) Limited light maintenance activity is an accessory use and includes engine tune-
ups, lubrication, brake repairs, tire changing, battery charging, car washing,
detailing, polishing, and carburetor cleaning. Such heavy maintenance activities
as engine overhaul, vehicle painting, welding, and body or fender work is not an
accessory use.

F. House of worship. Within residential zones all parking shall be located beyond the rear
facade; provided, however, that the Planning Board may approve parking to the side of
the building, but situated no further forward than the front facade by conditional use
subject to adequate screening from the road.

G. Lodging facility. For a lodging facility, the minimum lot size shall be 30,000 square
feet plus 1,000 square feet per unit. Minimum lot size for a bed-and-breakfast shall be
the minimum lot size for a single-family home according to the applicable zone district.
The minimum lot size for a hotel in the Downtown Commercial (DC) Zone District
shall be 7,500 square feet. [Amended 5-7-2019]

H. Mini-warehouse. The front setback for all storage structures shall be 100 feet. Side and
rear setbacks from any residential property shall be 75 feet.

I. Nursing home. The minimum lot size for the zone shall be increased by 1,000 square
feet for each patient bed. The permitted density shall be 1 1/4 times that otherwise
permitted for residential uses in the district.

8/29/19 

45 



275:137

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-21.4§ 275-21.4

21. Editor's Note: This ordinance also redesignated former Subsections J through N as Subsections L through P.

J. Parking lot. For properties within the Downtown Commercial (DC) Zone District,
Parking lots shall be limited to 20 parking spaces for any single tenant unless otherwise
approved by the Planning Board pursuant to the standards below: [Added 5-7-201921]

(1) The applicant demonstrates a unique commercial or market-based need for
additional parking.

(2) There is a lack of publicly accessible parking in the immediate vicinity.

(3) Sharing parking with an adjacent use or property is impractical or not possible.

(4) Negative visual effects of a large parking lot are minimized to the extent
practicable through site design, breaking up large expanses of paving, shielding
parking from direct public view, or placing parking to the side or behind
buildings. Where possible, buildings in the DC District should front a primary
street with parking placed to the side or rear.

(5) The Planning Board may impose operational parameters regarding signage,
limiting access points, and may require specific lighting and landscaping
installation.

K. Parking facility, commercial. The Planning Board may approve a commercial parking
facility based on the following standards: [Added 5-7-2019]

(1) Sizing and capacity of the facility is based on current and forecasted use patterns
and demand for publicly accessible parking.

(2) Frontages along a primary commercial street, to the extent practicable,
incorporate commercial business on the ground floor as a means of providing
pedestrian interest and minimizing extended expanses of blank walls.

(3) An acceptable operations plan defines the basic functions of the facility including
signage, offsite wayfinding, hours of operation, access and control points,
payment systems, and lighting and landscape installation.

(4) Rate schedules and changes thereto shall remain the prerogative of the owner and
shall not be required for approval or conditioned by the notice of decision.

L. Porkchop subdivision. The purpose of a porkchop subdivision (see definition in Article
2) is to help preserve the scenic character of neighborhoods by encouraging owners of
parcels along existing roads and streets to concentrate subdivision to one side of the
parcel and retain the remainder as open space and allowing some minimal level of
development on parcels with significant acreage in the rear in order to avoid inducing
property owners to develop culs-de-sac at a higher level of development. Porkchop
subdivisions are allowed subject to the following requirements:

(1) Quality of project. A finding by the Planning Board that the proposed
development is superior to development that would likely occur otherwise.

(2) Parcel size. The development parcel shall have a minimum size of six gross acres
and minimum frontage of 150 feet on an existing public way.

8/29/19 

46 



275:138

ROCHESTER CODE § 275-21.4§ 275-21.4

Supp 2, May 2019

(3) Three lots. There shall be a maximum of three lots created from any one lot.

(4) Minimum lot size. The minimum lot size for each new lot shall be 40,000 square
feet or the minimum lot size for the district, whichever is greater.

(5) Average lot size. The average lot size for new lots in the porkchop subdivision
shall be at least 120,000 square feet or 1.5 times the minimum lot size for the
district, whichever is greater.

(6) Frontage. The minimum frontage for each new porkchop lot shall be 50 feet.

(7) Common access. All lots shall be entered from a common access point.

(8) Separate driveway. Each porkchop subdivision shall have a common driveway
independent from any other subdivision.

(9) No further subdivision. There shall be no further subdivision of any of the
porkchop lots other than lot line adjustments.

(10) Single-family. The porkchop lots shall be used for single-family use only.

(11) Width. The all-season passable width of any shared driveway shall be 20 feet
when serving two or more lots.

(12) Easement width. The width of the common driveway access easement shall be 30
feet. Additional width may be required to accommodate slope and drainage
easements.

(13) Turnaround. An acceptable turnaround for the fire trucks may be required.

(14) Recording. A document satisfactory to the City Attorney shall be recorded
establishing the conditions of use of any common driveway, providing for
indemnification for the City for emergency services, and including suitable
language to ensure that the private way will not become a City road or street.

M. School, K-12; school, other. Within residential zones all parking shall be located
beyond the rear facade; provided, however, that the Planning Board may approve
parking to the side of the building, but situated no further forward than the front facade,
by conditional use subject to adequate screening from the road.

N. Senior housing.

(1) The minimum development parcel shall be five gross acres.

(2) The project must provide special facilities and/or programs oriented toward
seniors.

(3) The applicant must explain how he/she will meet the definition for senior housing
in this chapter (see Article 2, Definitions).

(4) The developer/manager must provide documentation to the Planning Board
demonstrating that the development meets the definition for senior housing in this
chapter.

8/29/19 

47 



275:138.1

ZONING

Supp 2, May 2019

§ 275-22.1§ 275-21.4

O. Vehicle sales. No vehicles or other equipment or materials may be stored or displayed
within the road right-of-way. The City of Rochester shall take all appropriate steps to
enforce this requirement. See enforcement provisions under Article 3, Administration.

P. Warehouse.

(1) All goods must be stored within a completely enclosed building or located in a
fenced-in area.

(2) If the warehouse or storage area constitutes less than 50% of the gross interior
floor area of the building it shall be considered an accessory use.

ARTICLE 22
Special Exceptions

§ 275-22.1. General provisions.

A. Granting authority. Wherever a special exception is authorized under this chapter, the
authority to administer or grant special exception approval is vested in the Zoning
Board of Adjustment.

B. Purpose. Certain uses, structures, or conditions possess special characteristics such that
if developed in certain locations or in certain ways may have significant adverse
impacts. In order to safeguard the public interest and the interest of neighboring
property owners, these uses, structures, and conditions are designated as uses allowed
by special exception.

C. Types of special exceptions.

(1) There are two types of special exceptions included in this chapter:

(a) Uses. Special exceptions for actual "uses" as defined in this chapter and as
listed in the Uses Tables (e.g., contractor's storage yard).

(b) Departures from standards. Special exceptions to allow for certain
departures from standards otherwise applicable, articulated throughout this
chapter (e.g., allowing for reduced setbacks for garages).

(2) The process is the same for both types of special exceptions. The term "special
exception" is used throughout this chapter for both situations.

D. Criteria and conditions. The base criteria in § 275-22.2 apply to all special exceptions.
In addition, certain particular uses have specific criteria and/or conditions which must
also be met in order for those uses to be approved as listed below in § 275-22.3,

8/29/19 

48 



275 Attachment 1 
 

City of Rochester 
 

Table 18-A Residential Uses 
[Amended 4-4-2017; 3-5-2019; 5-7-2019] 

LEGEND 
P = Permitted Use 
C = Conditional Use 
E = Use Allowed by Special Exception 
 

Residential Uses 
Residential Districts Commercial Districts 

Industrial 
Districts Special Criteria/Conditions 

R1 R2 AG NMU DC OC HC GI RI HS AS Reference 
Apartment, accessory 
(accessory use) 

E P P P P P P — — E — Article 21 and 23 

Apartment, in-law P P P P P P P — — — —  
Apartment, security — P — P P P P P P P P Articles 2 and 23 
Assisted living facility — C C C C C C — — C — Article 21 
Boardinghouse — — — — E — — — — — —  
Community residence-1 — E E — E E E — E E — Article 22 
Community residence-2 — — E — — E — — E E — Article 22 
Conservation subdivision C C C — — C C — — — — Articles 21 and 33 
Dwelling, apartments 
(apartment/mixed-use 
building) 

— — — P P C P — — — — Article 21 

Dwelling, multifamily 
development 

— P — — P — P — — — — Articles 20 and 22 

Dwelling, multifamily — P — — P — P — — — —  
Dwelling, single-family P P P P — P P — — P —  
Dwelling, two-family — P P P C P P — — — — Articles 21 and 33 
Flag lots — C C — — — — — — C — Article 21 
Home occupation-1 
(accessory use) 

P P P P P P P — — P — Article 24 

Home occupation-2 
(accessory use) 

P P P P P P P — — P — Articles 22 and 24 

8/29/19 

49 



Residential Uses 
Residential Districts Commercial Districts 

Industrial 
Districts Special Criteria/Conditions 

R1 R2 AG NMU DC OC HC GI RI HS AS Reference 
Home occupation-3 
(accessory use) 

— E E P P P P — — E — Articles 22 and 24 

Manufactured housing unit on 
own lot 

— — P — — — — — — — — Articles 20 and 21 

Nursing home — — C — — C — — — P — Articles 20 and 21 
Outdoor wood-fired hydronic 
heater 

— — P — — — — — — — — Article 20 

Porkchop subdivision — — C — — — — — — — — Article 21 
Residential facility — — E — — E — — E E — Article 22 
Senior housing — P C C C C — — — — — Article 21 
Temporary structure P P P P P P P P P P P Article 20 
Zero lot line development C C C — — C C — — — — Article 33 
 

8/29/19 

50 



275 Attachment 3 
City of Rochester 

Table 18-C Food-Lodging-Public Recreation Uses 
[Amended 5-7-2019] 

LEGEND 
P = Permitted Use 
C = Conditional Use 
E = Use Allowed by Special Exception 

Food-Lodging-Public 
Recreation Uses 

Residential Districts Commercial Districts 
Industrial 
Districts Special Criteria/Conditions 

R1 R2 NMU AG DC OC GR HC GI RI HS AS Reference 
Cafe — — P C P P P P — — — P Article 21 
Campground — — — E — — — — — E — — Article 22 
Caterer — — P — P P — P P P — —  
Club — — C — P P — P — — — — Article 21 
Community center — — P — P P P P — — — —  
Conference center — — C — P P P P — — P P Article 21 
Country club — — — C — — P E — C — — Article 21 
Food stand — — E — E E P E E E E E Article 22 
Function hall — — — — P P P P — — — —  
Golf course — — — P — — P — — P — — Article 22 
Health club — — C C P P P P — — — — Article 21 
Lodging, bed-and-breakfast — C P — P P — P — — — — Article 21 
Lodging, hotel — — C — P C P P — — C C Article 21 
Lodging, motel — — — — — — P P — — — C Articles 20 and 21 
Nightclub — — — — P — P P — — — —  
Recreation, indoor — — C — P C P P — C — — Article 21 
Recreation, outdoor — — — C — C P P — C — — Article 21 
Recreation, park P P P P P P — P  C — — Article 21 
Restaurant — — P — P C P P — — — P Article 21 
Restaurant, drive-through — — — — P — P P — — — —  
Tavern — — C — P — P P — — — P Article 21 
Theater/cinema (5,000 square 
feet or less) 

— — P — P P P P — — — — Article 21 

Theater/cinema (over 5,000 
square feet) 

— — — — C — P P  — — — Article 21 

 

8/29/19 

51 



275 Attachment 4 
 

City of Rochester 
 

Table 18-D Industrial-Storage-Transport-Utility Uses 
[Amended 5-7-2019] 

LEGEND 
P = Permitted Use 
C = Conditional Use 
E = Use Allowed by Special Exception 
 

Industrial-Storage-
Transport-Utility-Uses 

Residential Districts Commercial Districts 
Industrial 
Districts Special Criteria/Conditions 

R1 R2 NMU AG DC OC GR HC GI RI HS AS  Reference 
Airport — — — E — — — — — — — P Article 21 
Commercial parking facility — — — — C — — — — — — —  
Contractor's storage yard — — — E — — — E P P — — Articles 20 and 22 
Distribution center — — — — — — P C P — — — Article 21 
Emergency services facility — — — — C C — C C — P — Article 21 
Fuel storage — — — — — — P E E — — — Article 21 
Helipad (accessory use) — — — E — E P E P P P P Article 21 
Industry, heavy — — — — C — P E P E — — Article 21 
Industry, light — — — — — — P P P — — — Article 21 
Industry, recycling — — — — — — — — — P — — Articles 20 and 22 
Junkyard — — — — — — — E E P — — Articles 20 and 22 
Laundry establishment-3 — — — — — — — P P — — —  
Mini-warehouse — — — — — — P C P — — — Articles 20 and 21 
Monument production — — C —  C — P P P — — Article 21 
Parking lot — C C C C C — P C P C P Article 21 
Printing facility — — C — — P P P P — — —  
Public parking facility — — — — P — — — — — — —  
Recycling facility — — — — — — — E E P — — Articles 20 and 22 
Research and development — — — — E P P P P — — — Article 21 
Sawmill — — — — — — — — E — — — Article 21 
Sawmill, temporary 
(accessory use) 

— — — P — P — P P P — P Article 23 

8/29/19 

52 



Industrial-Storage-
Transport-Utility-Uses 

Residential Districts Commercial Districts 
Industrial 
Districts Special Criteria/Conditions 

R1 R2 NMU AG DC OC GR HC GI RI HS AS  Reference 
Solid waste facility — — — — — — — — — P — — Articles 20 and 22 
Tank farm — — — — — — P C P — — —  
Trade shop — — C — C C P P P P — — Article 21 
Transportation service — — C — C — P P C C — — Article 21 
Truck terminal — — — — — — P — C C — — Article 21 
Utility - substation E E E E E C E P P P E E Article 21 
Utility - power generation — — — — E — E — E E — — Article 21 
Warehouse — — C — C C P P P C — C Articles 20, 21 and 23 
Wireless communications 
facility 

— — — E E E P E P P E E Articles 20 and 22 

 

8/29/19 

53 



DL:1 Supp 2, May 2019

Chapter DL

DISPOSITION LIST

§ DL-1. Disposition of legislation.

The following is a chronological listing of legislation of the City of Rochester adopted
since June 2016, indicating its inclusion in the Code or the reason for its exclusion.
[Enabling legislation which is not general and permanent in nature is considered to be
non-Code material (NCM).]

§ DL-1. Disposition of legislation.

Adoption Date Subject Disposition

6-7-2016 Vehicles and Traffic Amendment Ch. 254

9-6-2016 Zoning Amendment Ch. 275

9-6-2016 Administrative Code Amendment Ch. 7

10-4-2016 Administrative Code Amendment Ch. 7

11-1-2016 Administrative Code Amendment Ch. 7

11-1-2016 Water Use Regulations and Rates
Amendment

Ch. 260, Art. I

11-1-2016 Sewers Amendment Ch. 200

2-14-2017 Sewers Amendment Ch. 200

2-14-2017 Fire Prevention Amendment Ch. 75, Art. II

3-7-2017 Zoning Map Amendment NCM

4-4-2017 Zoning Amendment Ch. 275

5-2-2017 Fire Prevention Amendment Ch. 75, Art. II

6-6-2017 Sewers Amendment Ch. 200

6-6-2017 Sewers Amendment Ch. 200

6-6-2017 Zoning Amendment Ch. 275

12-5-2017 Solid Waste Amendment Ch. 210

12-5-2017 Zoning Amendment Ch. 275

2-6-2018 Sewers Amendment Ch. 200

2-6-2018 Water Use Regulations and Rates
Amendment

Ch. 260, Art. I

8/29/19 

54 



DL:2

ROCHESTER CODE § DL-1§ DL-1

Supp 2, May 2019

Adoption Date Subject Disposition

2-6-2018 Zoning Amendment Ch. 275

3-6-2018 Solid Waste Amendment Ch. 210

3-6-2018 Vehicles and Traffic Amendment Ch. 254

3-6-2018 Peace and Good Order Amendment Ch. 167

7-10-2018 Water Use Regulations and Rates
Amendment

Ch. 260, Art. I

8-7-2018 Fire Department Amendment Ch. 75, Art. I

9-4-2018 Zoning Amendment Ch. 275

9-4-2018 Zoning Amendment Ch. 275

3-5-2019 General Provisions: Adoption of Code Ch. 1, Art. II

3-5-2019 Zoning Amendment Ch. 275

3-5-2019 Zoning Amendment Ch. 275

5-7-2019 Zoning Amendment Ch. 275

8/29/19 

55 



DEFINITIONS NOTE: For the convenience of the Code user, all terms defined in this Code are included in the Index under the
heading “Definitions and Abbreviations.”

— # —
911

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-11

— A —
ABANDONED PROPERTY

ZONING 275-29.12
ABANDONED VEHICLES

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-43

ABANDONMENT
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-15

Municipal Departments
7-16

Nonconforming Property
275-30.4

Performance Standards
275-28.4

PLANNING BOARD 176-8
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-23
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-57
WATER 260-42
ZONING 275-20.2;

275-29.11; 275-29.12
ACCESSORY BUILDINGS

AND STRUCTURES
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.8; 275-12.12

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.9

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.3

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-3; 135-5

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2
ACCESSORY USES

Accessory uses and
structures 275-23.1;
275-23.2

Animals 275-23.2
Apartments 275-23.2
Blocks 275-23.2
Boats and Boating 275-23.2
Buffers 275-23.2
Building Inspector 275-23.2
Carnivals 275-23.2
Cats 275-23.2
Chickens 275-23.2
City Council 275-23.2
Commercial districts

275-23.2
Commercial vehicles

275-23.1; 275-23.2
Conditional uses 275-23.1;

275-23.2
Construction 275-23.2
Construction trailers

275-23.2
Dogs 275-23.2
Driveways 275-23.2
Dust 275-23.2
Farms and farming 275-23.2
Fees 275-23.1
Fences 275-23.2
Fire lanes 275-23.2
Fowl 275-23.2

Fuel 275-23.2
Garages 275-23.1; 275-23.2
General provisions 275-23.1
Grades and grading

275-23.2
Health hazards 275-23.2
Height regulations 275-23.2
Home occupations

275-23.1; 275-23.2
Horses 275-23.2
Hospitals 275-23.2
Industrial districts 275-23.2
Landscaping 275-23.2
Licenses and permits

275-23.1; 275-23.2
Livestock 275-23.2
Lots 275-23.2
Manure 275-23.2
Newspaper 275-23.2
Noise 275-23.2
Nonresidential districts

275-23.2
Notices 275-23.2
Nuisances 275-23.2
Odors 275-23.2
Off-street parking 275-23.2
Parking 275-23.2
Pedestrians 275-23.2
Planning Board 275-23.2
Recreational vehicles

275-23.2
Residential districts

275-23.2
Safety hazards 275-23.2
Safety standards 275-23.2
Sales 275-23.2
Schools 275-23.2
Screens and screening

275-23.2
Security standards 275-23.2
Septic systems 275-23.2
Setbacks 275-23.2
Sewers 275-23.2
Sheds 275-23.2
Sidewalks 275-23.2
Signs 275-23.2
Single-family dwellings

275-23.2
Site plan review and

approval 275-23.2
Site plans 275-23.1;

275-23.2
Smoke 275-23.2
Special exceptions

275-23.1; 275-23.2
Standards for specific

accessory uses
275-23.2

Storage 275-23.1; 275-23.2
Storage tanks 275-23.2
Stormwater management

275-23.2
Swimming pools 275-23.2
Timber harvesting 275-23.2
Trailers 275-23.2
Trucks 275-23.2
Utilities 275-23.2
Vehicles 275-23.1; 275-23.2
Vendors 275-23.2
Vibrations 275-23.2
Walls 275-23.2
Yard sales 275-23.2
Yards 275-23.1; 275-23.2
ZONING 275-23.1\275-23.2
Zoning Board of

Adjustment 275-23.2
Zoning districts 275-23.1;

275-23.2

ACCESSORY USES AND
STRUCTURES

Accessory Uses 275-23.1;
275-23.2

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Roads and Parking 275-26.6
Special Zoning Districts

275-9.2
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.3;

275-18.7; 275-19.2;
275-20.1; 275-20.2

ACCIDENT REPORTS
See REPORTS

ACCIDENTAL
DISCHARGES

SEWERS 200-17
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

See Appointment, Election
and Removal of City
Officers 7-73\7-79

See Boards, Commissions
and Committees 7-24\
7-37

See Bonds of City Officials
7-80\7-82

See Finance 7-50\7-67
See Legal Basis and

Departmental
Organization 7-1\7-5

See Legislative Body 7-46\
7-49

See Municipal Departments
7-6\7-23

See Municipal Elections
7-68\7-72

See Purchases and Contracts
7-38\7-41

See Salaries 7-42\7-45
ADOPTION OF CODE

Adoption of Code 1-3
Altering or tampering with

Code; penalties for
violation 1-11

Amendments to Code 1-7
Assessments 1-15
Bonds 1-15
Changes in previously

adopted ordinances
1-16

Charges 1-15
City Clerk 1-6; 1-9
City Council 1-3; 1-7; 1-10;

1-16
Code supersedes prior

ordinances 1-4
Code to be kept up-to-date

1-9
Continuation of existing

provisions 1-5
Copy of Code on file 1-6
Easements 1-15
Fees 1-10; 1-15
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1-3\1-18
Grades and grading 1-15
Improvements 1-15
Incorporation of provisions

into Code 1-18
Liability 1-15
Licenses and permits 1-15
Notices 1-8
Officers and employees

1-15
Ordinances saved from

repeal 1-15
Pensions 1-15
Publication; filing 1-8
Repealer 1-14
Salaries and compensation

1-15
Sale of Code 1-10

Sales 1-10; 1-15
Severability of Code

provisions 1-12
Severability of ordinance

provisions 1-13
Sewers 1-15
Violations and penalties

1-11; 1-15
Water 1-15
When effective 1-17
Zoning Maps 1-15

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-2; 11-3

ZONING 275-2.2
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
Adult entertainment 11-2;

11-3
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-1; 11-2; 11-3

Advertising 11-2
Definitions 11-2
Legislative findings and

purpose 11-1
Licenses and permits 11-3
Lighting 11-3
Loitering 11-3
Lots 11-3
Magazines 11-2
Minors 11-2; 11-3
Nudity 11-2
Obstructions 11-3
Parking 11-3
Police Department 11-3
Prostitution 11-1
Reports 11-2
Requirements for adult-

oriented establishments
11-3

Safety standards 11-1
Severability 11-5
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
Violations and penalties

11-3; 11-4
Walls 11-1
ZONING 275-2.2

ADVERTISING
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-2

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-35

Municipal Departments
7-10

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-26

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-15;
223-16; 223-20

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-20

ZONING 275-29.9;
275-29.10; 275-29.11;
275-29.13; 275-29.14

ADVISORY BOARD
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-24; 7-36
CITY CHARTER C-19;

C-62
Legislative Body 7-49
SEWERS 200-13; 200-23;

200-26; 200-30
WATER 260-2; 260-13;

260-17; 260-19;
260-28; 260-49

AFFORDABLE HOUSING
See FAIR HOUSING

ROCHESTER INDEX

1 Supp 2, May 2019

A

8/29/19 

56 



AGRICULTURAL
DISTRICTS

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.4

ZONING 275-1.8; 275-20.2
AIR CONDITIONING

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.4

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.10;
275-14.11; 275-14.12

SEWERS 200-9
WATER 260-9
ZONING 275-19.2

AIR POLLUTION
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
Performance Standards

275-28.2; 275-28.4
See Also POLLUTION

AIR RIFLES
PEACE AND GOOD

ORDER 167-13
ALARM SYSTEMS

ALARM SYSTEMS 16-1;
16-2; 16-3; 16-4; 16-5;
16-6; 16-7; 16-8; 16-9;
16-10

Alarm user permit
application 16-3

Alarm user permit fee 16-4
Alarm user permit required

16-2
Appeals 16-10
Application for revoked user

permit 16-10
Assessments 16-8
Charges 16-8
Emergencies 16-1
False alarms 16-8; 16-9;

16-10
See Also FALSE ALARMS
Fees 16-4; 16-10
Fire alarms 16-9
See Also FIRE ALARMS
Fire Department 16-3; 16-5;

16-8; 16-9; 16-10
Fire Prevention 75-10
Hearings 16-7; 16-9
Licenses and permits 16-4;

16-9; 16-10
Misuse of alarm user

information 16-5
Municipal Departments

7-12
Notices 16-8; 16-9
Operating system after

revocation or
suspension of permit;
penalty 16-7

Operating system without
permit; penalty 16-6

Performance Standards
275-28.3

Police Department 16-2;
16-3; 16-5; 16-8; 16-9;
16-10

Purpose 16-1
Records 16-9
Reports 16-9
Revocation procedure 16-9
Violations and penalties

16-5; 16-6; 16-7; 16-8;
16-11

Waivers 16-8
When effective 16-12

ALARMS, FALSE
See FALSE ALARMS
See FIRE ALARMS

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-21;
80-22

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-2

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER 167-9

ZONING 275-2.2
ALL-TERRAIN VEHICLES

See Also OFF-ROAD
VEHICLES

ZONING 275-2.2
ALUMINUM

JUNK AND
SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-1

SOLID WASTE 210-1
AMERICANS WITH

DISABILITIES ACT
See Also DISABILITY
See Also DISABLED

PERSONS
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-23
AMUSEMENT DEVICES

Pinball and Video Games
and Machines 22-5;
22-7; 22-10; 22-13;
22-14; 22-15; 22-17

AMUSEMENTS
Pinball and Video Games

and Machines 22-5
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-8
AMUSEMENTS AND

ENTERTAINMENT
See Bowling Alleys and

Billiard Tables 22-4
See Boxing and Wrestling

Exhibitions 22-2
See Pinball and Video

Games and Machines
22-5\22-19

See Public Dances, Circuses
and Parades 22-3

See Theaters 22-1
ANCHORING

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.4; 275-13.5

ANIMAL WASTE
See FECAL MATTER

ANIMALS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Animal Control Officer 28-1
ANIMALS 28-1; 28-2; 28-4
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.6

See Also CATS
Chief of Police 28-1
City Manager 28-1
Complaints 28-2
Dogs 28-2; 28-3; 28-4; 28-5
Dogs running at large 28-3
Guide dogs 28-5
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-3;
94-6; 94-12; 94-13

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.5

Hunting 28-3
Leashing 28-3
Licenses and permits 28-2
Livestock 28-4
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
Noise 28-4
Nuisances 28-4
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
Powers and duties 28-2

Powers and duties of
Animal Control Officer
28-2

Removal of dog excrement
28-5

Reports 28-2
Salaries and compensation

28-1
SEWERS 200-1; 200-3;

200-16
SOLID WASTE 210-1;

210-2; 210-10
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-38

Violations and penalties
28-2; 28-4; 28-6

WATER 260-30
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-18.2; 275-20.2;
275-29.11

ANTENNAS
Fire Prevention 75-9
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.10;
275-14.11; 275-14.12

See Also SATELLITE DISH
ANTENNAS

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-19.2

APARTMENTS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Fire Prevention 75-8
SEWERS 200-24
SOLID WASTE 210-1;

210-11
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-11
WATER 260-2; 260-3;

260-24
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-19.2

APPEALS
ALARM SYSTEMS 16-10
See Also BOARD OF

APPEALS
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-36
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE 40-1

CITY CHARTER C-62;
C-72

Conditional Uses 275-21.2
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.4; 275-12.13

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.1; 275-13.6

Hawkers, Peddlers and
Itinerant Vendors 171-9

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.1;
275-14.13; 275-14.15

Home Occupations 275-24.1
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-4

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-8

Municipal Departments 7-8
Pinball and Video Games

and Machines 22-16
SEWERS 200-13; 200-26;

200-30; 200-32
Taxicabs 254-46; 254-47;

254-48
WATER 260-13; 260-19;

260-28; 260-30; 260-49
ZONING 275-3.1;

275-20.2; 275-27.3

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1;
275-4.2; 275-4.3

APPEALS BOARD
See BOARD OF APPEALS

APPOINTMENT,
ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF CITY
OFFICERS

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
7-73\7-79

Appointment of department
heads, officers and
employees 7-73

Appointments 7-73
City Clerk 7-76; 7-77; 7-78;

7-79
City Council 7-76; 7-78;

7-79
City Manager 7-73; 7-74;

7-79
Emergencies 7-73
Filling vacancy; procedure

7-78
Form of statement of

interest 7-77
Mayor 7-76; 7-78; 7-79
Meetings 7-76; 7-78
Membership 7-79
Notices 7-76
Officers and employees

7-73; 7-74
Paper 7-77
Police Department 7-73;

7-74
Public notice of vacancy

7-76
Removal of department

heads, officers and
employees 7-74

Report of vacancies 7-79
Reports 7-76; 7-79
Schools 7-73; 7-74
Vacancies 7-76; 7-78; 7-79

APPOINTMENTS
Appointment, Election and

Removal of City
Officers 7-73

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-37

Bonds of City Officials 7-80
CITY CHARTER C-11;

C-12; C-15; C-16;
C-18; C-20; C-59;
C-66; C-74

Fire Department 75-1
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.4
Home Occupations 275-24.1
Legal Basis and

Departmental
Organization 7-4; 7-5

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-3

PLANNING BOARD 176-7
WATER 260-28
ZONING 275-3.1

AQUIFER PROTECTION
OVERLAY DISTRICT
(APOD)

Animals 275-10.6
Applicability 275-10.5
Authority 275-10.1
Blasting 275-10.6;

275-10.8; 275-10.9
Bonds 275-10.9
City Council 275-10.13;

275-10.17
Composting 275-10.6
Conditional uses 275-10.7;

275-10.9

ROCHESTER INDEX

2 Supp 2, May 2019

A

8/29/19 

57 



Construction 275-10.9;
275-10.11

Definitions 275-10.3
District boundaries 275-10.4
Dumps and dumping

275-10.3; 275-10.8
Emergencies 275-10.11
Enforcement procedures and

penalties 275-10.14
Erosion and sediment

control 275-10.6;
275-10.9

Excavations 275-10.9
Exemptions 275-10.11
Existing nonconforming

uses 275-10.10
Explosives 275-10.8
Fees 275-10.13
Fire protection 275-10.3
Fuel 275-10.3; 275-10.8;

275-10.11
Gas 275-10.3
Groundwater 275-10.2;

275-10.3; 275-10.6;
275-10.9

Guarantees 275-10.9
Hazardous materials and

substances 275-10.3;
275-10.6; 275-10.11;
275-10.13

Hazardous wastes 275-10.3;
275-10.11

Heating 275-10.3;
275-10.11

Home occupations
275-10.11

Inspections 275-10.11;
275-10.13

Junkyards 275-10.3;
275-10.8

Maintenance and inspection
275-10.13

Motor vehicles 275-10.3
Nonconforming structures

275-10.10
Nonconforming uses

275-10.10
Notices 275-10.13
Parking 275-10.3
Performance standards

275-10.6; 275-10.7;
275-10.9; 275-10.11;
275-10.13

Permitted uses 275-10.7
Planning Board 275-10.3;

275-10.6; 275-10.9;
275-10.13

Prohibited uses 275-10.7;
275-10.8

Purpose 275-10.2
Records 275-10.13
Registry 275-10.13
Relationship between state

and local requirements
275-10.12

Repeal 275-10.16
Reports 275-10.13
Sales 275-10.11
Screens and screening

275-10.3
Severability 275-10.15
Solid waste 275-10.8
Special exceptions 275-10.7
Storage 275-10.3; 275-10.8;

275-10.9; 275-10.11;
275-10.13

Storage tanks 275-10.3;
275-10.11

Stormwater management
275-10.6; 275-10.9

Underground storage tanks
275-10.11

Vehicles 275-10.11

Violations and penalties
275-10.14

Water 275-10.2; 275-10.3;
275-10.4; 275-10.9

Water quality 275-10.6;
275-10.9

Water supply 275-10.3
Wellhead protection

275-10.3; 275-10.4;
275-10.9

Wells 275-10.3; 275-10.4;
275-10.9

Wetlands 275-10.3
When effective 275-10.17
Yards 275-10.9
ZONING 275-10.1\

275-10.17
AREA, YARD AND BULK

REGULATIONS
See LOTS
See YARDS

ARREST WARRANTS
See WARRANTS

ASBESTOS
Fire Prevention 75-9

ASHES
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-3
SEWERS 200-16
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-8
ASSEMBLIES, PUBLIC

See PUBLIC
ASSEMBLIES

ASSESSMENTS
Adoption of Code 1-15
ALARM SYSTEMS 16-8
CITY CHARTER C-20;

C-43-a
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.9

Finance 7-66
Municipal Departments 7-8
SEWERS 200-7; 200-32;

200-33
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-9;
223-12

ZONING 275-20.2;
275-27.3

ASSESSOR
CITY CHARTER C-18;

C-20
Finance 7-66
Legal Basis and

Departmental
Organization 7-2

Municipal Departments 7-8
ATTORNEYS FEES

SEWERS 200-20
ZONING 275-3.4

AUXILIARY POLICE
See POLICE OFFICERS

AVIATION OVERLAY
DISTRICT (AOD)

Approach zone map
275-11.9

Construction 275-11.5
Costs and expenses

275-11.8
Definitions 275-11.1
Dust 275-11.1; 275-11.4
Glare 275-11.1; 275-11.4
Hazard marking and lighting

275-11.8
Height limits 275-11.3
Height regulations 275-11.3;

275-11.6; 275-11.9
Land subject to restrictions

275-11.2

Licenses and permits
275-11.7

Lighting 275-11.8
Markers 275-11.8
Nonconforming uses

275-11.1; 275-11.5;
275-11.7

Obstructions 275-11.4;
275-11.9

Permits 275-11.7
Smoke 275-11.1; 275-11.4
Trees 275-11.1; 275-11.3;

275-11.5; 275-11.6;
275-11.7; 275-11.8;
275-11.9

Use restrictions 275-11.4
Variances 275-11.3;

275-11.6; 275-11.8
Violations and penalties

275-11.7
Water 275-11.1
ZONING 275-11.1\275-11.9
Zoning Board of

Adjustment 275-11.3
Zoning Maps 275-11.9

— B —
BACKFILLING

See Also EXCAVATIONS
See Also FILL
SEWERS 200-7

BARRICADES
SEWERS 200-7

BATTERIES
Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Fire Prevention 75-9
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

BEACH FIRES
See FIRES

BED AND BREAKFAST
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.4
Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Food Service

Establishments 80-4
Home Occupations 275-24.7
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

BICYCLES
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.1
See Also ROLLER

BLADES
See Also ROLLER

SKATES
See Also SKATEBOARDS
SOLID WASTE 210-1
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-7;
254-38

BILLBOARDS
ZONING 275-29.11;

275-29.13
BINGO

See GAMBLING
BIRTH CERTIFICATES

CITY CHARTER C-55
Pinball and Video Games

and Machines 22-14
BLASTING

Aquifer Protection Overlay
District (APOD)
275-10.6; 275-10.8;
275-10.9

See Also EXPLOSIVES
Fire Prevention 75-10

BLOCK PARTIES
Fire Prevention 75-16

BLOCKS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.7; 275-33.8
Special Exceptions 275-22.3

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-43

ZONING 275-2.2;
275-19.2; 275-29.13

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.13

ZONING 275-29.13
See Also ZONING BOARD

OF ADJUSTMENT
BOARD OF APPEALS

See Also APPEALS
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-24; 7-25
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE 40-2

Performance Standards
275-28.4

Special Exceptions 275-22.1
Zoning Board of

Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

BOARD OF HEALTH
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-24; 7-26
CITY CHARTER C-21
Food Service

Establishments 80-2;
80-7

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-10

See Also HEALTH
OFFICER

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-24; 7-27;
7-29

CEMETERIES 49-2
CITY CHARTER C-22

BOARDS, COMMISSIONS
AND COMMITTEES

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
7-24\7-37

Advertising 7-35
Advisory Board 7-24; 7-36
Appeals 7-36
Appointments 7-37
Arts and Culture

Commission 7-37
Board of Appeals 7-24; 7-25
Board of Assessors 7-34
Board of Health 7-24; 7-26
Board of Trustees 7-24;

7-27; 7-29
Board of Trustees of the

Public Library 7-27
Bonds 7-35
Budget 7-35
Cemeteries 7-29; 7-37
City Clerk 7-29
City Council 7-27; 7-28;

7-35; 7-36; 7-37
City Manager 7-26; 7-28;

7-29
Conservation Commission

7-24; 7-32
Construction 7-35
Economic Development

Commission 7-35
Health Officer 7-26
Hearings 7-26
Historic preservation 7-37
Improvements 7-35
Library 7-24; 7-27
Licenses and permits 7-24;

7-31
Licensing Board 7-31

AQUIFER PROTECTION OVERLAY
DISTRICT (APOD)...

ROCHESTER INDEX

3 Supp 2, May 2019

B

8/29/19 

58 



Lots 7-29
Master Plan 7-37
Mayor 7-28; 7-29; 7-30;

7-32; 7-35
Meetings 7-37
Membership 7-28
Monuments 7-29
Organization 7-24
Peddling and soliciting 7-37
Planning Board 7-24; 7-28;

7-32; 7-37
Powers and duties 7-27;

7-31; 7-33; 7-34; 7-35
Qualifications 7-37
Records 7-29
Recreation and Arena

Commission 7-33
Reports 7-35; 7-37
Safety standards 7-26
Sewers 7-36
Terms of office 7-28
Treasurer 7-29
Trustees 7-24; 7-29
Trustees of Trust Funds

7-29
Utilities 7-24; 7-36
Utility Advisory Board 7-36
Vacancies 7-26; 7-27; 7-28;

7-29; 7-32; 7-35
Water 7-36
Zoning Board of

Adjustment 7-24; 7-30
BOATS AND BOATING

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.9

ZONING 275-2.2
BONDS

Adoption of Code 1-15
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.9

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-35

Bonds of City Officials
7-80; 7-81; 7-82

CITY CHARTER C-43-a;
C-45

Finance 7-59
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.12
Municipal Departments

7-11; 7-20
SEWERS 200-6; 200-32
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-8; 218-10

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-7;
223-17

WATER 260-6; 260-31
ZONING 275-20.2;

275-27.3
BONDS OF CITY

OFFICIALS
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

7-80\7-82
Appointments 7-80
Bonds 7-80; 7-81; 7-82
Bonds required; amount

7-80
Chief of Police 7-80
City Clerk 7-80
City Council 7-81; 7-82
City Council may require

bond 7-81
City Solicitor 7-82
City Treasurer 7-80
Form of bonds 7-82
Tax Collector 7-80

Wells 7-82
BONFIRES

See BURNING
See FIRES

BOWLING ALLEYS
Bowling Alleys and Billiard

Tables 22-4
ZONING 275-2.2

BOWLING ALLEYS AND
BILLIARD TABLES

AMUSEMENTS AND
ENTERTAINMENT
22-4

Bowling alleys 22-4
Fees 22-4
Licenses and permits 22-4
Licensing 22-4

BOXING AND
WRESTLING
EXHIBITIONS

AMUSEMENTS AND
ENTERTAINMENT
22-2

City Council 22-2
Exhibitions authorized 22-2
Fees 22-2
Hearings 22-2
Licenses and permits 22-2

BRIDGES
Granite Ridge Development

(GRD) 275-8.11
Municipal Departments

7-18
PLANNING BOARD 176-8
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-2;
223-17

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-25

ZONING 275-20.2
BRUSH, GRASS AND

WEEDS
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.5
Granite Ridge Development

(GRD) 275-8.6
See Also GRASS

CLIPPINGS
See Also LAWNS
Municipal Departments

7-18
SOLID WASTE 210-1;

210-19
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-7

See Also YARD WASTE
ZONING 275-2.2

BUDGET
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-35
CITY CHARTER C-35;

C-38; C-40; C-41;
C-42; C-43; C-43-a;
C-44; C-61

Finance 7-57; 7-60; 7-62;
7-64; 7-65; 7-66

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.4

Legal Basis and
Departmental
Organization 7-4

Municipal Departments 7-8;
7-9; 7-10; 7-11; 7-12;
7-13; 7-14; 7-15; 7-16;
7-17; 7-18; 7-19; 7-20;
7-21; 7-22; 7-23

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-6

Salaries 7-43
BUFFERS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.5

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.3; 275-12.6;
275-12.7; 275-12.9

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.1; 275-33.3;
275-33.4

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.3

Industrial Zoning Districts
275-7.3

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

See Also SCREENS AND
SCREENING

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-9

ZONING 275-2.2;
275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.1

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION

See Also CONSTRUCTION
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-11
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.3;

275-27.3
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION AND
PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE

Abandonment 40-15
Adoption of other codes

40-5
Appeals 40-1
Board of Appeals 40-2
Building Code Board of

Appeals 40-2
Building Official 40-4;

40-15
Building permits 40-9;

40-15
Certificates of occupancy

40-18
City Clerk 40-5
City Solicitor 40-11; 40-12
Cleanup of construction

sites 40-18
Construction 40-5; 40-9;

40-12; 40-15; 40-18
Costs and expenses 40-15
Definitions 40-11
Demolition 40-5; 40-15
Department of Building,

Zoning, and Licensing
Services 40-4

Electrical Code 40-7
Electrical Code and

Property Maintenance
Code 40-7

Excavations 40-9
Fees 40-15
Fences 40-15
Fire Chief 40-6; 40-10
Fire limits 40-13
Fire limits established 40-13
Fire protection 40-5; 40-15
Fires 40-5; 40-15
Highway commercial

districts 40-13
Inspections 40-8
Liability 40-16
Licenses and permits 40-4;

40-5; 40-7; 40-8;
40-10; 40-15; 40-18

Life Safety Code 40-6
More restrictive provisions

to apply 40-14

Notices 40-9; 40-12; 40-18
Permits 40-15
Plumbing 40-5; 40-15
Plumbing Code 40-8
Property maintenance 40-5;

40-7
Prospective application

40-16
Recognition and adoption of

State Building Code
and State Fire Code
40-3

Regulation of construction
storage yards 40-9

Right of entry 40-10
Safety standards 40-4; 40-6
Setbacks 40-15
Severability 40-17
Sewers 40-8
Signs 40-15
Statutory authority 40-1
Storage 40-9
Swimming pools 40-15
Vehicles 40-18
Veterans 40-15
Violations and penalties

40-12; 40-15
Water supply 40-8
Yards 40-9
Zoning Board of

Adjustment 40-2
Zoning Maps 40-13

BUILDING INSPECTOR
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.4; 275-13.6

See Also INSPECTIONS
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-27.3
Zoning Board of

Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

BUILDING OFFICIAL
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-4; 40-15

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.9;
275-14.14

BUILDING PERMITS
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-9; 40-15

CITY CHARTER C-43-a
Finance 7-66
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.4

Food Service
Establishments 80-13

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.9;
275-14.10

See Also LICENSES AND
PERMITS

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

Nonconforming Property
275-30.2

Roads and Parking
275-26.4; 275-26.6

SEWERS 200-4
Special Exceptions 275-22.1
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-1

BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND
COMMITTEES...

ROCHESTER INDEX

4 Supp 2, May 2019

B

8/29/19 

59 



ZONING 275-3.1; 275-3.3;
275-20.2; 275-27.3;
275-29.13

BUILDINGS,
DEMOLITION OF

See DEMOLITION OF
BUILDINGS

BUILDINGS, MOVING OF
See MOVING OF

BUILDINGS
BURNING

See Also FIRES
NUISANCES 149-1
See Also OPEN FIRES
ZONING 275-20.2

BURNING, OPEN
See FIRES

BURNING, OUTDOOR
See FIRES

BUS STOPS
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-18
BUSINESS DISTRICTS

Taxicabs 254-49
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1; 254-7
BUSINESS LICENSES

See LICENSES AND
PERMITS

— C —
CABLE TELEVISION

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-5

CAMPGROUNDS
SOLID WASTE 210-1
ZONING 275-2.2

CAMPING
Overnight Parking or

Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-15; 167-18

ZONING 275-2.2
CAMPS

Overnight Parking or
Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-17; 167-18

ZONING 275-2.2
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

PROJECTS
See IMPROVEMENTS

CARNIVALS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Food Service

Establishments 80-2
Public Dances, Circuses and

Parades 22-3
ZONING 275-2.2

CATS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
See Also ANIMALS
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
ZONING 275-2.2

CEASE AND DESIST
ORDERS

ZONING 275-3.4
CEMETERIES

Adoption of state statutes by
reference 49-1

Board of Trustees 49-2
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-29; 7-37
CEMETERIES 49-1; 49-2
City Manager 49-1; 49-2
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.9
Control of certain

cemeteries 49-2
Farms and farming 49-2
Improvements 49-2

Lots 49-2
Sales 49-2
Trustees 49-1
Vacant lots 49-2
ZONING 275-27.2

CERTIFICATES OF
APPROPRIATENESS

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.9;
275-14.10

CERTIFICATES OF
APPROVAL

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.4;
275-14.9; 275-14.10;
275-14.11

CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

See Also INSURANCE
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-19
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-25
Taxicabs 254-46

CERTIFICATES OF
OCCUPANCY

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-18

Fire Prevention 75-9
Home Occupations 275-24.1
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-11
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.3;

275-27.3; 275-29.13
CERTIFICATES OF

REGISTRATION
See REGISTRATION

CESSPOOLS
SEWERS 200-3; 200-4

CHARGES
Adoption of Code 1-15
ALARM SYSTEMS 16-8
CITY CHARTER C-19
See Also COSTS AND

EXPENSES
See Also FEES
Finance 7-52
Fire Prevention 75-10
Food Service

Establishments 80-2
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-7
Municipal Departments

7-18
Overnight Parking or

Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-20

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-2;
158-6

SEWERS 200-1; 200-6;
200-10; 200-11;
200-13; 200-16;
200-23; 200-24;
200-26; 200-28;
200-29; 200-30;
200-32; 200-33

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-57

WATER 260-2; 260-4;
260-6; 260-10; 260-11;
260-13; 260-17;
260-18; 260-19;
260-20; 260-21;
260-22; 260-23;
260-24; 260-25;
260-28; 260-33

CHICKENS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-7

CHIEF OF POLICE
ANIMALS 28-1
Bonds of City Officials 7-80
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-3

Legal Basis and
Departmental
Organization 7-2

LICENSING BOARD
123-1

Municipal Departments
7-17

NUISANCES 149-2
Overnight Parking or

Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-19

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER 167-5

Pinball and Video Games
and Machines 22-7;
22-9; 22-12; 22-17

See Also POLICE CHIEF
Taxicabs 254-46; 254-47;

254-48; 254-49; 254-50
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-4;
254-7; 254-17; 254-20;
254-21; 254-23;
254-31; 254-42;
254-55; 254-59

CHIMNEYS
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.8
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.14
ZONING 275-19.2

CHRISTMAS TREES
ZONING 275-2.2

CHURCHES
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.3
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.5
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1
ZONING 275-19.2

CIRCUSES
Food Service

Establishments 80-2
Public Dances, Circuses and

Parades 22-3
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-8
ZONING 275-2.2

CITATIONS
Authority 54-2
CITATIONS 54-1; 54-3
Fine schedule 54-3
Garbage, rubbish and refuse

54-3
Infestation 54-3
Legislative Body 7-46
Motor vehicles 54-3
Overnight Parking or

Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-22

Purpose and objectives 54-1
Solid waste 54-3
Violations and penalties

54-1; 54-3
ZONING 275-3.4

CITY ATTORNEY
Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.13

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-25;
223-28

ZONING 275-3.1; 275-3.5
CITY CHARTER

Absentee voting C-51
Acting City Manager C-77
Administrative Code C-26
Adoption of budget C-43
Advisory Board C-19; C-62
Appeals C-62; C-72
Appointment of City

Manager C-11
Appointments C-11; C-12;

C-15; C-16; C-18;
C-20; C-59; C-66; C-74

Appointments to boards and
commissions C-74

Assessments C-20; C-43-a
Assessor C-18; C-20
Audit of City accounts,

annual reports C-46
Birth certificates C-55
Board of Assessors C-20
Board of Health C-21
Board of Library Trustees

C-22
Board of Trustees C-22
Bonds C-43-a; C-45
Borrowing funds C-45
Budget C-35; C-38; C-40;

C-41; C-42; C-43;
C-43-a; C-44; C-61

Budget procedure C-40
Building permits C-43-a
Candidate elected C-50
Centralized purchasing and

contract system C-27
Certification of

compensation C-63
Chairman of School Board

C-33
Charges C-19
City Clerk C-4; C-5; C-7;

C-18; C-30; C-42;
C-47; C-49; C-51;
C-52; C-54; C-55;
C-56; C-65; C-66;
C-71; C-72

City Council C-3; C-4; C-5;
C-7; C-9; C-10; C-10-a;
C-11; C-12; C-13;
C-14; C-16; C-17;
C-19; C-20; C-21;
C-22; C-26; C-35;
C-37; C-40; C-41;
C-42; C-43; C-43-a;
C-44; C-45; C-46;
C-49; C-52; C-53;
C-60; C-61; C-62;
C-68; C-70; C-71;
C-72; C-74; C-76;
C-77; C-79

City Council meetings C-7
City Council review of the

budget C-41
City Manager C-7; C-10;

C-11; C-12; C-13;
C-14; C-15; C-16;
C-17; C-18; C-19;
C-20; C-21; C-22;
C-26; C-35; C-36;
C-40; C-43-a; C-46;
C-60; C-62; C-63;
C-76; C-77

City Manager's appointment
power C-15

City officers and department
heads C-18

City ordinances C-71
City Solicitor C-18
City Treasurer C-18

BUILDING PERMITS...

ROCHESTER INDEX

5 Supp 2, May 2019

C

8/29/19 

60 



Compensation C-11; C-24;
C-60; C-61; C-63; C-77

Conflict of interest C-72
Conflicts of interest C-72
Construction C-43-a
Control of school

expenditures C-35
Costs and expenses C-48
Demolition C-43-a
Department of Public Works

C-19
Deputy Mayor C-9
Disability C-9; C-34; C-51
Duties of Police

Commission C-24
Effective date C-80
Elected officials disqualified

for City Manager C-13
Election of Councilors C-5
Election of Mayor C-8
Election of Police

Commission C-23
Election of School Board

C-30
Election of Selectmen,

Moderators, and Ward
Clerks C-58

Election of Supervisors of
the Checklist C-53

Emergencies C-15
Employees when Charter

adopted C-64
Fees C-47; C-52
Financial control C-39
Fire Department C-18
Fiscal year C-38
General powers of School

Board C-29
Grievances C-62
Health Officer C-21
Hearings C-17; C-25; C-42;

C-45; C-70
Improvements C-60
Incorporation C-1
Investigations C-16; C-62
Joint Committee of the

School Board and the
City Council C-37

Liability C-63
Library C-22
Licenses and permits C-43-a
Limitation on budget

increase C-43-a
Mayor C-4; C-6; C-7; C-8;

C-9; C-10; C-10-a;
C-69; C-71; C-72; C-74

Mayor's salary review C-79
Mayoral veto C-10-a
Meetings C-7; C-9; C-10;

C-14; C-32; C-33;
C-34; C-36; C-56; C-68

Municipal election date,
terms of office C-48

Municipal election filing
period, ballot
preparation C-47

Municipal election recounts,
canvass of votes cast
C-52

Municipal elections, general
provisions C-49

Non-interference by the
Council C-16

Notice of election or
appointment C-66

Notices C-7; C-32; C-42;
C-66; C-70

Oath of office C-65
Officers and employees

C-15; C-61
Personnel Advisory Board

C-62

Police Commission,
removal authority C-25

Police officers C-24; C-25
Powers and duties C-18;

C-21; C-49
Powers of City Manager

C-14
Powers of Mayor C-10
Public hearing C-42
Qualifications C-6; C-31
Qualifications of Councilors

C-6
Qualifications of School

Board members C-31
Quorum C-7; C-32
Records C-54; C-56; C-71
References not substantive

C-75
Registration C-55
Removal of elected officials

C-70
Removal of the City

Manager C-17
Reports C-14; C-39; C-46;

C-62
Residency requirement for

City Manager C-12
Residency requirements

C-12
Review and revision of

ward boundaries C-3
Rules and regulations C-60
Safety standards C-14
Salaries and compensation

C-11; C-61; C-69; C-79
Salaries of elected officials

C-69
School Board meetings

C-32
School district C-28
Schools C-14; C-15; C-27;

C-28; C-29; C-30;
C-31; C-32; C-33;
C-34; C-35; C-36;
C-37; C-43-a; C-68;
C-69; C-72

Selection of City Manager
C-76

Separability C-73
Sewers C-19
Superintendent of Schools

C-36
Supervisors of the

Checklist, election day
duties C-57

Supervisors' session, voter
registration C-55

Supplemental appropriations
and transfers C-44

Tenure of office C-78
Terms of office C-6; C-23;

C-31; C-48; C-66
Town Clerk C-51
Trustees C-22
Utilities C-19
Vacancies C-6; C-22; C-23;

C-31; C-53; C-67;
C-68; C-70

Vacancies in elected offices
C-68

Vacancy defined C-67
Vice-Chairman of School

Board C-34
Violations and penalties

C-70
Voter checklist preparation

C-54
Voter checklist, election day

C-56
Wards C-2
Water C-19
Water supply C-19

Water Works and Sewer
Works C-19

CITY CLERK
Adoption of Code 1-6; 1-9
Appointment, Election and

Removal of City
Officers 7-76; 7-77;
7-78; 7-79

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-29

Bonds of City Officials 7-80
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE 40-5

CITY CHARTER C-4; C-5;
C-7; C-18; C-30; C-42;
C-47; C-49; C-51;
C-52; C-54; C-55;
C-56; C-65; C-66;
C-71; C-72

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.8

Finance 7-55; 7-57; 7-59
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.7
Legal Basis and

Departmental
Organization 7-2

Legislative Body 7-46;
7-47; 7-48

Municipal Departments
7-20

Municipal Elections 7-69;
7-70; 7-72

Pinball and Video Games
and Machines 22-16

PLANNING BOARD 176-4
Salaries 7-44
SEWERS 200-31
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-10;
223-16

ZONING 275-3.5
CITY COUNCIL

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Adoption of Code 1-3; 1-7;

1-10; 1-16
Appointment, Election and

Removal of City
Officers 7-76; 7-78;
7-79

Aquifer Protection Overlay
District (APOD)
275-10.13; 275-10.17

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-27; 7-28;
7-35; 7-36; 7-37

Bonds of City Officials
7-81; 7-82

Boxing and Wrestling
Exhibitions 22-2

CITY CHARTER C-3; C-4;
C-5; C-7; C-9; C-10;
C-10-a; C-11; C-12;
C-13; C-14; C-16;
C-17; C-19; C-20;
C-21; C-22; C-26;
C-35; C-37; C-40;
C-41; C-42; C-43;
C-43-a; C-44; C-45;
C-46; C-49; C-52;
C-53; C-60; C-61;
C-62; C-68; C-70;
C-71; C-72; C-74;
C-76; C-77; C-79

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.3

Finance 7-51; 7-52; 7-54;
7-55; 7-57; 7-58; 7-61;
7-62; 7-63; 7-64; 7-65;
7-66; 7-67

Fire Prevention 75-16
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1-2
Hawkers, Peddlers and

Itinerant Vendors 171-9
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.2;
275-14.4; 275-14.6;
275-14.9; 275-14.14

Legal Basis and
Departmental
Organization 7-3

Legislative Body 7-46;
7-47; 7-49

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-2

Municipal Departments
7-11; 7-14; 7-20; 7-21

Municipal Elections 7-69
Observances of Sundays

167-1; 167-3
Overnight Parking or

Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-15

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-2;
158-3; 158-6

Pinball and Video Games
and Machines 22-16

Purchases and Contracts
7-40; 7-41

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.5

Roads and Parking 275-26.6
Salaries 7-44
SEWERS 200-23; 200-30;

200-32
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-2; 218-5; 218-7;
218-15

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-1;
223-5; 223-9; 223-10;
223-11; 223-25

Taxicabs 254-46
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-28; 254-29

WATER 260-17; 260-28;
260-29; 260-30; 260-31

ZONING 275-1.12;
275-2.2; 275-3.1;
275-3.5; 275-20.2;
275-27.3; 275-29.12;
275-29.14

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.4

CITY MANAGER
ANIMALS 28-1
Appointment, Election and

Removal of City
Officers 7-73; 7-74;
7-79

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-26; 7-28;
7-29

CEMETERIES 49-1; 49-2
CITY CHARTER C-7;

C-10; C-11; C-12;
C-13; C-14; C-15;
C-16; C-17; C-18;
C-19; C-20; C-21;
C-22; C-26; C-35;
C-36; C-40; C-43-a;
C-46; C-60; C-62;
C-63; C-76; C-77

CITY CHARTER...

ROCHESTER INDEX

6 Supp 2, May 2019

C

8/29/19 

61 



Finance 7-50; 7-51; 7-52;
7-54; 7-55; 7-56; 7-57;
7-59; 7-63; 7-64; 7-66

Fire Department 75-1; 75-3
Fire Prevention 75-16
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.10
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-4

Legal Basis and
Departmental
Organization 7-3

Legislative Body 7-48
LICENSING BOARD

123-1
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-7; 135-8
Municipal Departments 7-6;

7-11; 7-14
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-14;
80-15; 80-16; 80-18;
80-22; 80-25; 80-26;
80-28; 80-29; 80-30

Overnight Parking or
Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-19

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-4;
158-6

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER 167-5; 167-6;
167-9

PLANNING BOARD
176-3; 176-4

PUBLIC BUILDINGS
183-1; 183-2; 183-3

Purchases and Contracts
7-40; 7-41

SEWERS 200-6; 200-7;
200-23; 200-25;
200-26; 200-27

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-7

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-2;
223-8; 223-16; 223-26

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-11;
254-31

WATER 260-6; 260-17;
260-18; 260-19;
260-20; 260-28;
260-30; 260-49

ZONING 275-3.1; 275-3.5;
275-29.12; 275-29.13

CITY SOLICITOR
Bonds of City Officials 7-82
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-11; 40-12

CITY CHARTER C-18
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-8
Legal Basis and

Departmental
Organization 7-2

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-8

Municipal Departments
7-14

ZONING 275-3.4
CITY TREASURER

Bonds of City Officials 7-80
CITY CHARTER C-18
Finance 7-51; 7-52; 7-54;

7-55; 7-59; 7-64

Municipal Departments
7-11; 7-20; 7-22

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-6

CLUSTER
DEVELOPMENTS

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.1

CODE ENFORCEMENT
CITATIONS

See CITATIONS
CODE ENFORCEMENT

OFFICER
See BUILDING

INSPECTOR
CODE OF CONDUCT

See OFFICERS AND
EMPLOYEES

CODE OFFICIAL
See BUILDING

INSPECTOR
COLLECTOR

See TAX COLLECTOR
COMBUSTIBLES

See Also EXPLOSIVES
Fire Prevention 75-13;

75-16
See Also FLAMMABLES
SOLID WASTE 210-1

COMMERCIAL
DISTRICTS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.1;
275-6.3; 275-6.4

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.1

Home Occupations 275-24.1
Performance Standards

275-28.3
ZONING 275-1.8;

275-19.1; 275-19.2;
275-20.2; 275-29.2;
275-29.13

COMMERCIAL VEHICLES
Accessory Uses 275-23.1;

275-23.2
Roads and Parking 275-26.3
See Also VEHICLES
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-12
ZONING 275-2.2

COMMERCIAL ZONING
DISTRICTS

Bed and breakfast 275-6.4
Brush, grass and weeds

275-6.5
Buffers 275-6.5
Churches 275-6.3
City Council 275-6.3
Commercial districts

275-6.1; 275-6.3;
275-6.4

Conditional uses 275-6.3;
275-6.4

Construction 275-6.3;
275-6.4; 275-6.5

Costs and expenses 275-6.1;
275-6.5

Curbs 275-6.4; 275-6.5
Decks 275-6.3
Department of Public Works

275-6.4
Design standards 275-6.5
Downtown Commercial

District (DC) 275-6.3
Drive-through restaurants

275-6.5
Driveways 275-6.1;

275-6.4; 275-6.5
Easements 275-6.5
General terms 275-6.2
Guarantees 275-6.5

Highway Commercial
District (HC) 275-6.5

Highway commercial
districts 275-6.5

Improvements 275-6.5
Introduction 275-6.1
Landscaping 275-6.5
Licenses and permits

275-6.4
Lighting 275-6.1; 275-6.5
Lots 275-6.3; 275-6.4;

275-6.5
Master Plan 275-6.1
Off-street parking 275-6.4
Office Commercial District

(OC) 275-6.4
Parking 275-6.1; 275-6.3;

275-6.4; 275-6.5
Parks and recreation 275-6.3
Pedestrians 275-6.1;

275-6.3; 275-6.4
Planning Board 275-6.3;

275-6.4; 275-6.5
Restaurants 275-6.5
Sales 275-6.5
Screens and screening

275-6.4
Setbacks 275-6.3; 275-6.5
Shopping centers 275-6.5
Sidewalks 275-6.3; 275-6.5
Signs 275-6.1; 275-6.5
Site plan review and

approval 275-6.4;
275-6.5

Site plans 275-6.3; 275-6.4;
275-6.5

Special exceptions 275-6.2
Stormwater 275-6.5
Stormwater control 275-6.5
Stormwater management

275-6.5
Trash 275-6.5
Utilities 275-6.5
Vendors 275-6.3
Walls 275-6.3
Wetlands 275-6.5
Yards 275-6.3; 275-6.4
ZONING 275-6.1\275-6.5
Zoning districts 275-6.1;

275-6.2
COMMUNICABLE

DISEASES
See CONTAGIOUS

DISEASES
COMPENSATION

CITY CHARTER C-11;
C-24; C-60; C-61;
C-63; C-77

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.13

Legal Basis and
Departmental
Organization 7-4

PLANNING BOARD 176-2
See Also SALARIES AND

COMPENSATION
Taxicabs 254-45
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-54
COMPLAINTS

ANIMALS 28-2
Hawkers, Peddlers and

Itinerant Vendors 171-8
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-8
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.14
SEWERS 200-11
Taxicabs 254-49
WATER 260-11; 260-25

COMPOSTING
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.6

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

See MASTER PLAN
CONDITIONAL USES

Accessory Uses 275-23.1;
275-23.2

Accessory uses and
structures 275-21.4

Appeals 275-21.2
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.7; 275-10.9

Base criteria 275-21.3
Batteries 275-21.4
Bed and breakfast 275-21.4
City Attorney 275-21.4
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.3;
275-6.4

Conditional Uses 275-21.1;
275-21.2; 275-21.3;
275-21.4

Conditions for particular
uses 275-21.4

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.9

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.2

Convenience stores
275-21.4

Costs and expenses
275-21.1

Crosswalks 275-21.1
Drainage 275-21.4
Driveways 275-21.4
Easements 275-21.4
Emergencies 275-21.4
Fees 275-21.2
Fire protection 275-21.3
Gas stations 275-21.4
General provisions 275-21.1
Grievances 275-21.2
Hearings 275-21.1;

275-21.2
Height regulations 275-21.1
Hotels 275-21.4
Improvements 275-21.1
Industrial Zoning Districts

275-7.2
Landscaping 275-21.1;

275-21.4
Liability 275-21.4
Lighting 275-21.4
Lots 275-21.4
Major subdivisions 275-21.4
Master Plan 275-21.1;

275-21.3
Nonconforming Property

275-30.4
See Also

NONCONFORMING
USES

Notices 275-21.4
Nursing homes 275-21.4
Off-street parking 275-21.1
Open space 275-21.4
Parking 275-21.1; 275-21.4
Pedestrians 275-21.4
Performance standards

275-21.1
See Also PERMITTED

USES
Planning Board 275-21.1;

275-21.2; 275-21.3;
275-21.4

Procedures 275-21.2
Records 275-21.1; 275-21.4
Registry 275-21.1

CITY MANAGER...

ROCHESTER INDEX

7 Supp 2, May 2019

C

8/29/19 

62 



Reports 275-21.1
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.5
Sales 275-21.4
Schools 275-21.3; 275-21.4
Screens and screening

275-21.1; 275-21.4
Security standards 275-21.4
Senior housing 275-21.4
Setbacks 275-21.1; 275-21.4
Sidewalks 275-21.1
Signs 275-21.4
Site plans 275-21.1;

275-21.2
Special exceptions 275-21.1
Storage 275-21.4
Tenants 275-21.4
Tires 275-21.4
Trucks 275-21.4
Vehicles 275-21.4
Walls 275-21.4
Water supply 275-21.3
ZONING 275-1.16;

275-2.2; 275-18.4;
275-18.7; 275-19.2;
275-20.1; 275-20.2;
275-21.1\275-21.4;
275-29.14

Zoning Board of
Adjustment 275-21.1

CONDOMINIUMS
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.5

SOLID WASTE 210-1;
210-3; 210-11

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-11

WATER 260-2; 260-24
ZONING 275-2.1; 275-2.2

CONFIDENTIALITY
SEWERS 200-19

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
CITY CHARTER C-72
Legislative Body 7-49
Zoning Board of

Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.4

CONSERVATION
COMMISSION

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-24; 7-32

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.3; 275-12.4;
275-12.8; 275-12.9;
275-12.10; 275-12.11;
275-12.13

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.6

Finance 7-64
Nonconforming Property

275-30.3; 275-30.6
PLANNING BOARD 176-2
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

CONSERVATION
DISTRICTS

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-8

CONSERVATION
EASEMENTS

See EASEMENTS
CONSERVATION

OVERLAY DISTRICT
(COD)

Accessory buildings and
structures 275-12.8;
275-12.12

Appeals 275-12.4;
275-12.13

Assessments 275-12.9
Board of Adjustment

275-12.13
Boats and Boating 275-12.9
Buffer application 275-12.7
Buffer defined 275-12.3
Buffers 275-12.3; 275-12.6;

275-12.7; 275-12.9
City Clerk 275-12.8
Conditional use approvals

275-12.9
Conditional uses 275-12.9
Condominiums 275-12.5
Conservation Commission

275-12.3; 275-12.4;
275-12.8; 275-12.9;
275-12.10; 275-12.11;
275-12.13

Construction 275-12.5;
275-12.8; 275-12.9

Costs and expenses
275-12.1; 275-12.9

Definitions 275-12.6
Delineation process

275-12.4
Drainage 275-12.1;

275-12.5; 275-12.9
Dredge and fill permits

275-12.10
Erosion and sediment

control 275-12.8
Exemptions; preexisting

residential structures,
uses and lots 275-12.5

Farms and farming 275-12.8
Fees 275-12.9
Fill 275-12.10
Fishing 275-12.8
Floodplains 275-12.6
Forestry 275-12.8
Groundwater 275-12.1;

275-12.6
Hearings 275-12.9;

275-12.13
Hunting 275-12.8
Improvements 275-12.5
Inspections 275-12.3
Junkyards 275-12.12
Landscaping 275-12.8
Lawns 275-12.8
Licenses and permits

275-12.9; 275-12.10
Litter 275-12.6
Lots 275-12.1; 275-12.5;

275-12.9
Mitigation 275-12.11
Motor vehicles 275-12.12
Natural resources 275-12.1
Notices 275-12.9
Objectives and

characteristics 275-12.1
Overlay district defined

275-12.2
Parking 275-12.9;

275-12.12
Permitted uses 275-12.9
Planned unit developments

275-12.5
Planning Board 275-12.4;

275-12.5; 275-12.8;
275-12.9; 275-12.11;
275-12.14

Planning Commission
275-12.14

Pollution 275-12.1
Ponds 275-12.1; 275-12.2;

275-12.5; 275-12.14
Prohibited uses 275-12.12
Prohibited uses and

activities 275-12.12
Records 275-12.5
Recycling 275-12.12
Reports 275-12.9

Safety standards 275-12.1
Septic tanks 275-12.9
Shrubs 275-12.6; 275-12.8
Site plan review and

approval 275-12.5
Site plans 275-12.5
Storage 275-12.1; 275-12.8;

275-12.12
Timber harvesting 275-12.8
Trees 275-12.8
Two-family dwellings

275-12.5
Uses allowed 275-12.8
Utilities 275-12.1
Variances 275-12.13
Vehicles 275-12.12
Vernal pools 275-12.2;

275-12.3; 275-12.5;
275-12.6

Very poorly drained soils
275-12.14

Water 275-12.1; 275-12.3;
275-12.6; 275-12.9;
275-12.14

Water quality 275-12.1
Water supply 275-12.1
Watercourses 275-12.1
Wells 275-12.9
Wetlands 275-12.1;

275-12.2; 275-12.3;
275-12.4; 275-12.5;
275-12.6; 275-12.7;
275-12.8; 275-12.9;
275-12.10; 275-12.14

Wildlife 275-12.1; 275-12.8
ZONING 275-12.1\

275-12.14
Zoning Board of

Adjustment 275-12.13
Zoning districts 275-12.6;

275-12.8; 275-12.14
CONSERVATION

SUBDIVISIONS
Accessory buildings and

structures 275-33.9
Allowed uses 275-33.7
Applicability 275-33.2
Base density 275-33.4
Base density bonus

275-33.5
Bicycles 275-33.1
Blocks 275-33.7; 275-33.8
Buffers 275-33.1; 275-33.3;

275-33.4
Cemeteries 275-33.9
Chimneys 275-33.8
Cluster developments

275-33.1
Conditional uses 275-33.2
Conservation Commission

275-33.6
Costs and expenses

275-33.1; 275-33.6
Density bonus 275-33.4;

275-33.5; 275-33.6
Density bonus

enhancements 275-33.6
Design standards 275-33.8
Drainage 275-33.1;

275-33.9
Easements 275-33.3;

275-33.6; 275-33.8
Erosion and sediment

control 275-33.1
Farms and farming 275-33.1
Fences 275-33.8
Fire Department 275-33.8
Floodplains 275-33.1;

275-33.4
Forestry 275-33.9
General provisions 275-33.3
Groundwater 275-33.1
Historic districts 275-33.6

Historic resources 275-33.6
Improvements 275-33.3
Lots 275-33.1; 275-33.2;

275-33.3; 275-33.4;
275-33.7; 275-33.8;
275-33.9

Major subdivisions 275-33.2
Master Plan 275-33.1;

275-33.2
Natural resources 275-33.6
Newspaper 275-33.6
Obstructions 275-33.8
Open space 275-33.1;

275-33.3; 275-33.6;
275-33.9

Pedestrians 275-33.1
Planning Board 275-33.2;

275-33.3; 275-33.4;
275-33.6; 275-33.9

Ponds 275-33.1; 275-33.4
Porches 275-33.8
Purpose 275-33.1
Residential districts

275-33.3
Schools 275-33.6
Setbacks 275-33.8
Single-family dwellings

275-33.3; 275-33.7
Site plans 275-33.6
Steep slopes 275-33.3
Trees 275-33.1; 275-33.6
Utilities 275-33.1; 275-33.3;

275-33.4; 275-33.9
Walls 275-33.6
Water 275-33.4
Wells 275-33.3; 275-33.9
Wetlands 275-33.1;

275-33.3; 275-33.4
Wildlife 275-33.6
Zero lot line subdivision

275-33.8
ZONING 275-33.1\275-33.9
Zoning districts 275-33.3;

275-33.4; 275-33.7;
275-33.8

CONSTRUCTION
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.9; 275-10.11

Aviation Overlay District
(AOD) 275-11.5

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-35

See Also BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-5; 40-9; 40-12;
40-15; 40-18

CITY CHARTER C-43-a
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.3;
275-6.4; 275-6.5

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.5; 275-12.8;
275-12.9

Finance 7-66
Fire Prevention 75-8; 75-12
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.4;
275-13.5; 275-13.6

Food Service
Establishments 80-13

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.2;
275-8.5; 275-8.11

CONDITIONAL USES...

ROCHESTER INDEX

8 Supp 2, May 2019

C

8/29/19 

63 



Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.2;
275-14.4; 275-14.9;
275-14.10; 275-14.12

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-1; 135-4; 135-5;
135-6

Municipal Departments 7-9;
7-10; 7-16

Nonconforming Property
275-30.2

Performance Standards
275-28.3; 275-28.4

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.3; 275-5.5

Roads and Parking 275-26.2
SEWERS 200-1; 200-3;

200-7; 200-16; 200-31;
200-32

SOLID WASTE 210-1;
210-4; 210-11

Special Downtown Overlay
District (SDOD)
275-15.2

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-1; 218-6; 218-7;
218-8; 218-9; 218-10;
218-11; 218-12;
218-13; 218-14

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-2;
223-5; 223-9; 223-12

WATER 260-27; 260-29;
260-31

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.3;
275-20.2; 275-27.2;
275-27.3; 275-29.1;
275-29.6; 275-29.13

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

CONSTRUCTION CODES
See BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
CONSTRUCTION CODES,

UNIFORM
See BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
CONSTRUCTION

OFFICIAL
See BUILDING

INSPECTOR
CONSTRUCTION

PERMITS
See BUILDING PERMITS
See LICENSES AND

PERMITS
CONSTRUCTION SIGNS

See Also SIGNS
ZONING 275-29.13

CONSTRUCTION
STANDARDS

See BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION

CONSTRUCTION
TRAILERS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
See Also TRAILERS

CONTAGIOUS DISEASES
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-10
CONVALESCENT HOMES

See Also NURSING
HOMES

ZONING 275-2.2
CONVENIENCE STORES

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.5
ZONING 275-2.2

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Aviation Overlay District

(AOD) 275-11.8
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-15

See Also CHARGES
CITY CHARTER C-48
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.1;
275-6.5

Conditional Uses 275-21.1
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.1; 275-12.9

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.1; 275-33.6

See Also FEES
Finance 7-63
Fire Prevention 75-7; 75-9;

75-13; 75-16
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.6

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.1

Hawkers, Peddlers and
Itinerant Vendors 171-4

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.5;
275-14.10; 275-14.13;
275-14.14

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-7

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-18

Overnight Parking or
Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-21

Performance Standards
275-28.5

PLANNING BOARD 176-9
Roads and Parking 275-26.6
Salaries 7-45
SEWERS 200-3; 200-4;

200-5; 200-6; 200-7;
200-9; 200-10; 200-13;
200-16; 200-17;
200-20; 200-23;
200-24; 200-28;
200-31; 200-32; 200-33

SOLID WASTE 210-11;
210-12

Special Exceptions
275-22.1; 275-22.3

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-6; 218-8; 218-10

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-5;
223-9; 223-12; 223-14;
223-25; 223-29

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-15;
254-57

WATER 260-2; 260-3;
260-4; 260-6; 260-9;
260-10; 260-13;
260-15; 260-17;
260-21; 260-22;
260-25; 260-29;
260-31; 260-33;
260-39; 260-46

ZONING 275-3.1; 275-3.4;
275-20.2; 275-27.3;
275-29.12

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

CROSSWALKS
Conditional Uses 275-21.1
Special Exceptions 275-22.1
See Also STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-6; 254-25; 254-32

CULTURAL HISTORIC
PRESERVATION

See HISTORIC
PRESERVATION

CULVERTS
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-8

CURBS
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.4;
275-6.5

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.6

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-15

Roads and Parking 275-26.2
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-20
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-25; 254-27; 254-28

WATER 260-2; 260-6
ZONING 275-3.3;

275-29.13
CURFEW

See MINORS

— D —
DAY-CARE FACILITIES

Food Service
Establishments 80-4

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
DECKS

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.3

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.5;
275-14.10

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.5

ZONING 275-2.2;
275-19.2; 275-20.2

DEFECATION
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
DEFENSE AND

INDEMNIFICATION
See LIABILITY

DEFINITIONS AND
ABBREVIATIONS

ABANDONED SIGN
275-29.11

ABANDONED VEHICLE
254-1

ABUTTER 275-2.2
ACCEPTABLE

CONSTRUCTION
AND DEMOLITION
DEBRIS 210-1

ACCESSORY
APARTMENT 275-2.2

ACCESSORY BUILDING
OR STRUCTURE
135-3

ACCESSORY
STRUCTURE 275-2.2

ACCESSORY USE 275-2.2

ADAPTIVE REUSE
275-2.2

ADULT BOOKSTORE
11-2

ADULT DAY-CARE
CENTER 275-2.2

ADULT DAY-CARE
HOME 275-2.2

ADULT
ENTERTAINMENT
11-2

ADULT MINI MOTION-
PICTURE THEATER
11-2

ADULT MOTION-
PICTURE THEATER
11-2

ADULT-ORIENTED
ESTABLISHMENT
11-2

ADULT-ORIENTED
ESTABLISHMENTS
275-2.2

AGENT (OF OWNER)
275-2.2

AGRICULTURE 275-2.2
AIR GAP (approved for

both high- and low-
hazard protection)
260-35

AIRPORT 275-2.2;
275-11.1

AIRPORT APPROACH
ZONE 275-11.1

AIRPORT HAZARD
275-11.1

ALLOWED USE 275-2.2
ALTERNATE TOWER

STRUCTURE (or
STEALTH FACILITY)
275-2.2

ANIMATED SIGN
275-29.11

ANTENNA 275-2.2
ANTENNA SUPPORT

STRUCTURE 275-2.2
ANTIQUE SHOP 275-2.2
APARTMENTS or

APARTMENT
BUILDINGS 275-2.2

APPLICANT 275-2.2
APPLICATION FOR

WATER SERVICE
260-2

APPROVED BACKFLOW
PREVENTION
DEVICE 260-35

APPROVED SOURCE
260-35

AQUACULTURE 275-2.2
AQUIFER 275-10.3
ARCADE 275-2.2
ARCHITECTURAL

PROJECTION
275-29.11

AREA OF SHALLOW
FLOODING 275-13.3

AREA OF SPECIAL
FLOOD HAZARD
275-13.3

ARTERIAL ROAD 275-2.2
ARTIST STUDIO 275-2.2
ASSISTED LIVING

FACILITY 275-2.2
ATMOSPHERIC

VACUUM BREAKER
260-35

AUTOMOBILE 275-2.2
AUXILIARY WATER

SUPPLY 260-35
AVERAGE FINISHED

GRADE 275-2.2
AWNING 275-29.11

CONSTRUCTION...

ROCHESTER INDEX

9 Supp 2, May 2019

D

8/29/19 

64 



AWNING or CANOPY
275-2.2

AWNING SIGN 275-29.11
BACK PRESSURE 260-35
BACKFLOW 260-35
BACKFLOW

PREVENTER WITH
INTERMEDIATE
ATMOSPHERIC
VENT 260-35

BACKFLOW
PREVENTION
DEVICE 260-35

BACKFLOW
PREVENTION
DEVICE INSPECTOR,
CERTIFIED 260-35

BACKLIT AWNING
275-29.11

BACKSIPHONAGE 260-35
BAGS 210-1
BANK 275-2.2
BANNER 275-29.11
BANNER SIGN 275-29.11
BAROMETRIC LOOP

260-35
BASE FLOOD 275-13.3
BASEMENT 275-13.3
BED-AND-BREAKFAST

275-2.2
BEDROOM 275-2.2
BEST MANAGEMENT

PRACTICE (BMP)
218-7

BILLBOARD 275-29.11
BIOCHEMICAL OXYGEN

DEMAND (BOD)
200-1

BMP 218-7
BOARD 80-2
BOARDINGHOUSE (or

ROOMING HOUSE)
275-2.2

BOAT 275-2.2
BREAKAWAY WALL

275-13.3
BUFFER 275-2.2; 275-12.6
BUILD-TO LINE (or

MAXIMUM
SETBACK LINE)
275-2.2

BUILD-TO ZONE 275-2.2
BUILDABLE LOT 275-2.2
BUILDING 135-3; 275-2.2;

275-13.3; 275-14.5;
275-29.11

BUILDING COVERAGE
275-2.2

BUILDING DRAIN 200-1
BUILDING FOOTPRINT

275-2.2
BUILDING FRONTAGE

275-2.2
BUILDING HEIGHT

275-2.2
BUILDING INSPECTOR

275-2.2
BUILDING

RESTRICTION LINE
275-11.1

BUILDING SEPARATION
275-2.2

BULKY WASTE 210-1
BUNDLE 210-1
BUSINESS OFFICE 260-2
BYPASS 200-1
CAFE 275-2.2
CAMP 167-18
CAMPGROUND 275-2.2
CANOPY (ATTACHED)

275-29.11

CANOPY
(FREESTANDING)
275-29.11

CANOPY SIGN 275-29.11
CAR 275-2.2
CARETAKER

APARTMENT 275-2.2
CARPORT 275-2.2
CATERER 275-2.2
CEASE AND DESIST

218-7
CERTIFICATE OF

OCCUPANCY 275-2.2
CERTIFIED SOIL

SCIENTIST 218-7
CFCS

(CHLOROFLUOROC
ARBONS) 210-1

CHANGEABLE SIGN
275-29.11

CHECK VALVE 260-35
CHILD-CARE CENTER

275-2.2
CITY 218-7; 1-2; 210-1;

223-20; 260-2; 275-2.2
CITY COUNCIL 1-2;

275-2.2
CITY ENGINEER 218-7
CITY INSPECTOR 218-7
CITY-OWNED

PROPERTY 167-18
CLASS VI ROAD 275-2.2
CLUB 275-2.2
CO-LOCATION 275-2.2
CODE 1-2
CODE OF ORDINANCES

(GENERAL
ORDINANCES)
275-2.2

COLLECTOR ROAD
275-2.2

COMBINATION SIGN
275-29.11

COMBINED SEWER
200-1

COMMERCIAL USE
275-2.2

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE
275-2.2

COMMISSION 158-1
COMMISSIONER 200-1;

223-1; 260-2
COMMITTEE 223-1
COMMON AREA 135-3
COMMUNITY CENTER

275-2.2
COMMUNITY

RESIDENCE-1 (or
GROUP HOME)
275-2.2

COMMUNITY
RESIDENCE-2 (or
HALFWAY HOUSE)
275-2.2

COMPOSTING FACILITY
275-2.2

CONDITIONAL USE
275-2.2

CONDITIONS OF
APPROVAL 275-2.2

CONFERENCE CENTER
275-2.2

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
7-49

CONSERVATION
COMMISSION
275-2.2

CONSERVATION
SUBDIVISION (or
OPEN SPACE

SUBDIVISION or
CLUSTER
SUBDIVISION)
275-2.2

CONTAINMENT
PHILOSOPHY 260-35

CONTAMINANT 260-35
CONTRACTOR 210-1
CONTRACTOR'S

STORAGE YARD
275-2.2

CONTRIBUTING
PROPERTY
(STRUCTURE OR
SITE) 275-14.5

CONVENIENCE STORE
275-2.2

CONVENTIONAL
SUBDIVISION
275-2.2

COPY 275-29.11
CORNER LOT 275-2.2
COUNTRY CLUB 275-2.2
COUNTY 1-2
COURT or COURTYARD

275-2.2
COVERAGE 275-2.2
CRITICAL AREAS 218-7
CROSS-CONNECTION

260-35
CROSSWALK 254-1
CURB STOP 260-2
CUSTOMER 260-2
CUSTOMER (OWNER)

260-35
DAY CARE - FAMILY

(also called "day
care-2") 275-2.2

DAY-CARE CENTER (also
called "day care-3")
275-2.2

DAY-CARE RESIDENCE
(also called "day
care-1") 275-2.2

DECK 275-2.2
DENSITY 135-3; 275-2.2
DEPARTMENT 260-35
DEPARTMENT OF

PUBLIC WORKS
260-2

DEVELOPER 275-2.2
DEVELOPMENT 218-7;

275-2.2; 275-13.3
DEVELOPMENT

COMPLEX SIGN
275-29.11

DEVELOPMENT,
MULTIFAMILY
275-2.2

DEVICE UPGRADE
260-35

DIAMETER AT BREAST
HEIGHT (or DBH)
275-2.2

DIRECT 7-49
DIRECTIONAL SIGN

275-29.11
DIRECTOR 158-1
DISPLAY 75-16
DISPOSAL SITE 210-1
DISTRIBUTION CENTER

275-2.2
DISTRIBUTION WATER

MAIN 260-2
DISTRICTS 254-1
DISTURBED AREA 218-7
DIVISION 260-35
DOMESTIC

WASTEWATER or
SANITARY SEWAGE
200-1

DOUBLE CHECK VALVE
ASSEMBLY or DCA
(approved for low-
hazard protection only)
260-35

DOUBLE-FACED SIGN
275-29.11

DRIVE-THROUGH USE
275-2.2

DRIVER 254-45
DUMPSTER 210-1
DWELLING 275-2.2
DWELLING UNIT 260-2;

275-2.2
DWELLING,

APARTMENT
BUILDING 275-2.2

DWELLING, MIXED-USE
275-2.2

DWELLING,
MULTIFAMILY
275-2.2

DWELLING, SINGLE-
FAMILY (or SINGLE-
FAMILY HOUSE)
275-2.2

DWELLING, TWO-
FAMILY 275-2.2

EARTH EXCAVATION
(or MINING or
RESOURCE
EXTRACTION)
275-2.2

EASEMENT 200-1; 275-2.2
EATING AND DRINKING

ESTABLISHMENTS
275-2.2

ELDERLY HOUSING
275-2.2

ELECTRIC SIGN
275-29.11

ELECTRONIC MESSAGE
SIGN OR CENTER
275-29.11

EMERGENCY SERVICES
FACILITIES 275-2.2

EMPLOYEE 11-2
ENTERTAINER 11-2
ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION
AGENCY (EPA) 218-7

EPA 218-7
EROSION 218-7
EXOTIC ANIMALS

275-2.2
EXTERIOR

ARCHITECTURAL
APPEARANCE
275-14.5

EXTERIOR SIGN
275-29.11

FACTORY RETAIL
STORE 275-2.2

FAIR 275-2.2
FARM 275-2.2
FARM, GROWING OF

CROPS 275-2.2
FARMERS' MARKET

275-2.2
FEMA 275-13.3
FIRE CHIEF 75-16
FIRE LANE 254-1
FIXTURE ISOLATION

PHILOSOPHY 260-35
FLAG 275-29.11
FLAG LOT 275-2.2
FLASHING SIGN

275-29.11
FLOATABLE OIL 200-1
FLOOD BOUNDARY

AND FLOODWAY
MAP (FLOODWAY)
275-13.3

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS...

ROCHESTER INDEX

10 Supp 2, May 2019

D

8/29/19 

65 



FLOOD ELEVATION
STUDY 275-13.3

FLOOD HAZARD
BOUNDARY MAP
(FHBM) 275-13.3

FLOOD INSURANCE
RATE MAP (FIRM)
275-13.3

FLOOD INSURANCE
STUDY 275-13.3

FLOOD or FLOODING
275-13.3

FLOODPLAIN or FLOOD-
PRONE AREA
275-13.3

FLOODPROOFING
275-13.3

FLOODWAY 275-13.3
FLOOR AREA, GROSS

275-2.2
FLORIST 275-2.2
FOOD CODE 80-2
FOOD SERVICE

ESTABLISHMENT
80-2

FOOD STAND 275-2.2
FOOD WASTES 210-1
FORESTRY 275-2.2
FREESTANDING SIGN

275-29.11
FRONTAGE (BUILDING)

275-29.11
FRONTAGE (or STREET

FRONTAGE) 275-2.2
FRONTAGE (PROPERTY)

275-29.11
FUEL STORAGE 275-2.2;

275-10.3
FUNCTION HALL (or

PLACE OF
ASSEMBLY) 275-2.2

FUNCTIONALLY
DEPENDENT USE
275-13.3

FUNERAL HOME 275-2.2
GARAGE 135-3; 275-2.2
GARBAGE 200-1; 210-1
GAS STATION (or

FILLING STATION)
275-2.2

GASOLINE STATION
275-10.3

GENERAL ORDINANCES
275-2.2

GOLF COURSE 275-2.2
GREASE 200-1
GREEN SPACE 275-2.2
GRIT 200-1
GROCERY STORE 275-2.2
GROSS LAND AREA

135-3
GROUNDWATER

275-10.3
HARDSCAPE (or

HARDSCAPING)
275-2.2

HARDSHIP 275-14.5
HAZARDOUS

SUBSTANCE/WASTE
275-2.2

HAZARDOUS WASTE
and UNACCEPTABLE
WASTES 210-1

HEALTH CLUB 275-2.2
HEALTH OFFICER 80-2
HELIPAD 275-2.2
HIGH DEGREE OF

HAZARD 260-35
HIGHEST ADJACENT

GRADE 275-13.3
HIGHLY ERODIBLE

SOILS 218-7

HISTORIC DISTRICT
COMMISSION
275-2.2

HISTORIC OVERLAY
DISTRICT 275-14.5

HISTORIC STRUCTURE
275-13.3

HOME OCCUPATION
275-2.2

HOSE BIBB VACUUM
BREAKER 260-35

HOSPITAL 275-2.2
HOUSE OF WORSHIP

275-2.2
HOUSEHOLD 275-2.2
HOUSEHOLD

HAZARDOUS
WASTE 210-1

HOUSEHOLD
HAZARDOUS
WASTE
COLLECTION
PROJECT 275-10.3

HOUSEHOLD PET 275-2.2
HOUSING UNIT SALES

275-2.2
ILLUMINATED SIGN

275-29.11
IMPACT FEE 275-27.3
IMPERVIOUS SURFACE

275-10.3
IN-LAW APARTMENT

275-2.2
INDUSTRIAL PARK

275-2.2
INDUSTRIAL USER 200-1
INDUSTRIAL WASTES

200-1
INDUSTRY (or

MANUFACTURING)
275-2.2

INDUSTRY, HEAVY
275-2.2

INDUSTRY, LIGHT
275-2.2

INDUSTRY, RECYCLING
275-2.2

INTERFERENCE 200-1
INTERIOR SIGN

275-29.11
INTERSECTION 254-1
JUNK DEALER 110-1
JUNKYARD 275-2.2;

275-10.3
KENNEL

(COMMERCIAL)
275-2.2

LANDSCAPING
MATERIALS 275-2.2

LAUNDRY
ESTABLISHMENT-1
275-2.2

LAUNDRY
ESTABLISHMENT-2
275-2.2

LAUNDRY
ESTABLISHMENT-3
275-2.2

LIVESTOCK 275-2.2
LIVING UNIT 135-3
LOCAL ROAD 275-2.2
LODGING FACILITY

275-2.2
LOT 275-2.2
LOT AREA 135-3; 275-2.2
LOT COVERAGE 275-2.2
LOT DEPTH 275-2.2
LOT LINE 135-3
LOT LINE, FRONT

275-2.2
LOT LINE, REAR 275-2.2
LOT LINE, SIDE 275-2.2
LOT OF RECORD 275-2.2

LOT WIDTH 275-2.2
LOT, CORNER 275-2.2
LOT, DOUBLE

FRONTAGE 275-2.2
LOT, FLAG 275-2.2
LOT, INTERIOR 275-2.2
LOT, TRIPLE FRONTAGE

275-2.2
LOUNGE 275-2.2
LOW DEGREE OF

HAZARD 260-35
LOWEST FLOOR 275-13.3
MANUFACTURED HOME

275-13.3
MANUFACTURED HOME

PARK OR
SUBDIVISION
275-13.3

MANUFACTURED
HOUSING 135-3;
275-2.2

MANUFACTURED
HOUSING PARK
275-2.2

MANUFACTURED
HOUSING
SUBDIVISION
275-2.2

MARINA 275-2.2
MARQUEE 275-29.11
MASSING 275-14.5
MAXIMUM DAILY

DISCHARGE
LIMITATION 200-1

MAY 200-1
MEAN SEA LEVEL

275-13.3
MECHANICAL

AMUSEMENT
DEVICE 22-5

MEDICAL OFFICE
275-2.2

MEMBER 7-49
MENU BOARD 275-29.11
METEOROLOGICAL

TOWER 275-20.2
MINI-WAREHOUSE (or

SELF-STORAGE)
275-2.2

MINIMUM LOT AREA
275-2.2

MINIMUM LOT AREA
PER DWELLING
UNIT 275-2.2

MINOR 11-2
MOBILE HOME 135-3;

275-2.2
MOBILE HOME LOT

135-3
MOBILE HOME PARK

135-3
MOBILE HOME

SUBDIVISION 135-3
MODIFICATION 275-20.2
MODULAR HOUSING OR

STRUCTURE (or
PRESITE BUILT
HOUSING) 275-2.2

MONTHLY AVERAGE
DISCHARGE
LIMITATION 200-1

MONUMENT
PRODUCTION
275-2.2

MOTEL 275-2.2
MOTOR VEHICLE

JUNKYARD 275-2.2
MULTIFAMILY 275-2.2
MULTIFAMILY

DWELLING 94-2;
210-1

MULTIPLE-FACED SIGN
275-29.11

MUNICIPAL BODY 7-49
MUSEUM (or EXHIBIT

HALL) 275-2.2
NATIONAL

CATEGORICAL
PRETREATMENT
STANDARD 200-1

NATIONAL POLLUTANT
DISCHARGE
ELIMINATION
SYSTEM 218-7

NATIONAL
PRETREATMENT
STANDARD 200-1

NATURAL OUTLET 200-1
NET METERING 275-20.2
NEW DEVELOPMENT

275-27.3
NEW SOURCE 200-1
NEWSPAPER or NEWS

PERIODICAL 223-20
NEWSRACK 223-20
NIGHTCLUB 275-2.2
NOI 218-7
NON-BUILDABLE LAND

275-2.2
NONCONFORMING LOT

275-2.2
NONCONFORMING

PROPERTY 275-2.2
NONCONFORMING SIGN

275-29.11
NONCONFORMING SITE

275-2.2
NONCONFORMING

STRUCTURE 275-2.2
NONCONFORMING USE

275-2.2; 275-11.1
NONCONTRIBUTING

PROPERTY 275-14.5
NOPV 218-7
NORMAL HOUSEHOLD

ACTIVITIES 210-1
NOT 218-7
NOTICE OF INTENT

(NOI) 218-7
NOTICE OF PROBABLE

VIOLATION (NOPV)
218-7

NOTICE OF
TERMINATION
(NOT) 218-7

NPDES 218-7
NURSING HOME (also

called "convalescent
home," "rehab center,"
"home for the aged,"
"retirement home" or
"rest home") 275-2.2

OFF-PREMISES SIGN
275-29.11

OFF-PREMISES SIGN,
DIRECTIONAL
275-29.11

OFFICE 275-2.2
OFFICE, MEDICAL (or

HEALTH CLINIC or
MEDICAL
FACILITY) 275-2.2

OFFICE, PROFESSIONAL
275-2.2

OFFICIAL TIME 254-1
ON-PREMISES SIGN

275-29.11
ONE-HUNDRED-YEAR

FLOOD 275-13.3
OPEN SPACE 275-2.2
OPERATOR 254-45; 11-2
ORDINARY HIGH-

WATER MARK
275-12.6

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS...

ROCHESTER INDEX

11 Supp 2, May 2019

D

8/29/19 

66 



OUTDOOR
ADVERTISING SIGN
275-29.11

OVERLAY DISTRICT
275-12.6

OWNER 94-2
PARCEL (or TRACT or

LAND UNIT) 275-2.2
PARK 158-1
PARK ROAD 135-3
PARKING FACILITY,

COMMERCIAL
275-2.2

PARKING FACILITY,
PUBLIC 275-2.2

PARKING GARAGE
275-2.2

PARKING LOT 275-2.2
PARKWAY 223-20
PASS-THROUGH 200-1
PECUNIARY INTEREST

7-49
PERMANENT BUILDING

135-3
PERMANENT

FOUNDATION
275-2.2

PERMANENT SIGN
275-29.11

PERMISSIBLE
FIREWORKS 75-16

PERMIT 158-1; 260-35
PERMITTED USE 275-2.2
PERSON 1-2; 200-1;

260-30; 260-35;
275-11.1

PERSON, DRIVER and
PEDESTRIAN 254-1

PERSON, FIRM,
CORPORATION or
ASSOCIATION 22-5

PERSONAL 7-49
PERSONAL SERVICES

ESTABLISHMENTS
275-2.2

pH 200-1
PHARMACY 275-2.2
PLANNED UNIT

DEVELOPMENT (or
PUD) 275-2.2

PLANNING BOARD
275-2.2

PLANT NURSERY 275-2.2
PLAT 275-2.2
POLE SIGN 275-29.11
POLICE CHIEF 75-16
POLICE OFFICER 254-1
POLITICAL SIGN

275-29.11
POORLY DRAINED SOIL

275-12.6
PORCH 275-2.2
PORKCHOP

SUBDIVISION
275-2.2

PORTABLE SIGN
275-29.11

POTABLE WATER 260-35
POTW or PUBLICLY

OWNED
TREATMENT
WORKS 200-1

POWER GRID 275-20.2
PREMISES 260-35
PRESITE BUILT

HOUSING 275-2.2
PRESSURE VACUUM

BREAKER or PVB
(approved for low-
hazard protection only)
260-35

PRETREATMENT
REQUIREMENT
200-1

PRIMARY PERSONAL
RESIDENCE 210-1

PRINCIPAL BUILDING
275-2.2

PRINCIPAL USE 275-2.2
PRINTING FACILITY

275-2.2
PRIVATE ROAD 275-2.2
PRIVATE SEWER 200-1
PROCESS

WASTEWATER 200-1
PROFESSIONAL OFFICE

275-2.2
PROHIBITED USE 275-2.2
PROJECT AREA 218-7
PROJECTING SIGN

275-29.11
PROPERLY SHREDDED

GARBAGE 200-1
PROPORTION 275-14.5
PUBLIC SEWER 200-1
PUBLIC STREET 210-1
PUBLIC SYSTEM 135-3
PUBLIC WATER

SYSTEM 260-35
PUBLIC WAY 1-2;

275-14.5
PUBLIC WAY

OBSTRUCTION
223-20

RAILROADS 254-1
READER 260-2
REAL ESTATE SIGN

275-29.11
RECREATION, INDOOR

275-2.2
RECREATION,

OUTDOOR 275-2.2
RECREATION, PARK

275-2.2
RECREATIONAL

VEHICLE 167-18
RECREATIONAL

VEHICLE (or RV)
275-2.2

RECYCLABLE
MATERIAL 210-1

RECYCLING FACILITY
275-2.2

REDUCED PRESSURE
ZONE PRINCIPLE
BACKFLOW
PREVENTION
DEVICE or RPZ
(approved for both
high- and low-hazard
protection) 260-35

REFUSE 210-1
REGULATED

CONTAINER 275-10.3
REGULATED

SUBSTANCE
275-10.3

REGULATORY
FLOODWAY 275-13.3

REPLACEMENT COSTS
260-2

RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT
FACILITY 275-2.2

RESIDENCE 210-1
RESIDENTIAL

DEVELOPMENT
275-2.2

RESIDENTIAL DROPOFF
CENTER 210-1

RESIDENTIAL FACILITY
275-2.2

RESIDENTIAL NO. 7
DUAL CHECK 260-35

RESIDENTIAL
PROPERTY 275-2.2

RESIDENTIAL
RECYCLING CART
210-1

RESIDENTIAL SOLID
WASTE 210-1

RESIDENTIAL WASTE
RECEPTACLE 210-1

RESTAURANT 275-2.2
RESTAURANT, DRIVE-

THROUGH 275-2.2
RETAIL

ESTABLISHMENTS
275-2.2

RETAIL SALES 275-2.2
RETAIL SERVICES

275-2.2
RIGHT-OF-WAY 254-1;

275-2.2
RIVERINE 275-13.3
ROADSIDE FARM

STAND 275-2.2
ROADWAY 223-20
ROCHESTER

MUNICIPAL WATER
SYSTEM 275-10.3

SAFETY ZONE 254-1
SANDWICH BOARD

SIGN 275-29.11
SANITARY PROTECTIVE

RADIUS 275-10.3
SANITARY SEWER 200-1
SAWMILL 275-2.2
SAWMILL, TEMPORARY

275-2.2
SCALE 275-14.5
SCHOOL, K-12 275-2.2
SCHOOL, OTHER 275-2.2
SCREENING LEVEL

200-1
SEASONAL FOOD

SERVICE
ESTABLISHMENT
80-2

SEASONAL HIGH
WATER TABLE
275-10.3

SECONDARY USE
275-2.2

SECONDHAND DEALER
110-1

SECONDHAND SHOP
275-2.2

SECURITY APARTMENT
275-2.2

SEDIMENT 218-7
SENIOR HOUSING

275-2.2
SERVICE

ESTABLISHMENT
275-2.2

SETBACK 275-2.2
SETBACK AREA 275-2.2
SETBACK, FRONT

275-2.2
SETBACK, GENERAL

275-2.2
SETBACK, REAR 275-2.2
SETBACK, SIDE 275-2.2
SETBACK, SPECIAL

275-2.2
SEWAGE 218-7; 200-1
SEWER 200-1
SEWER DEDUCT METER

260-2
SEWER SERVICE 200-1
SHADOW FLICKER

275-20.2
SHALL 200-1
SHARED DRIVEWAY

275-2.2
SHELTER 275-2.2

SIDEWALK 223-20
SIGHT TRIANGLE 275-2.2
SIGN 275-2.2; 275-29.11
SIGN AREA 275-29.11
SIGN FACE 275-29.11
SIGN STRUCTURE

275-29.11
SIGNIFICANT

INDUSTRIAL USER
(SIU) 200-1

SIGNIFICANT
NONCOMPLIANCE
200-1

SINGLE-FAMILY
DWELLING 275-2.2

SITE PLAN 275-2.2
SITE PLAN

REGULATIONS
275-2.2

SITE SURVEYS 260-35
SLUG 200-1
SMALL WIND ENERGY

275-2.2
SMALL WIND ENERGY

SYSTEM 275-20.2
SNACK BAR/

CONCESSION
STAND 275-2.2

SNIPE SIGN 275-29.11
SNOW DUMP 275-10.3
SOLAR PANEL 275-2.2
SOLID WASTE FACILITY

275-2.2
SPECIAL EVENT

275-29.11
SPECIAL EXCEPTION

275-2.2
SPECIAL FLOOD

HAZARD AREA
275-13.3

SPECIAL WASTE 210-1
SPECIFIED

ANATOMICAL
AREAS 11-2

SPECIFIED SEXUAL
ACTIVITIES 11-2

STABILIZED 218-7
STABLE 275-2.2
STABLE, COMMERCIAL

275-2.2
START OF

CONSTRUCTION
275-13.3

STATE 1-2
STORAGE BUILDING

135-3
STORM DRAIN

(sometimes termed
"storm sewer") 200-1

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
PLAN (SWMP) 218-7

STORMWATER PERMIT
(SWP) 218-7

STORMWATER
POLLUTION
PREVENTION PLAN
(SWPPP) 218-7

STORMWATER RUNOFF
218-7

STRATIFIED DRIFT
AQUIFER 275-10.3

STREAM 218-7
STREET 135-3; 223-20
STRUCTURE 275-2.2;

275-11.1; 275-13.3;
275-14.5

SUBDIVISION 275-2.2
SUBDIVISION, MAJOR

275-2.2
SUBDIVISION, MINOR

275-2.2

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS...

ROCHESTER INDEX

12 Supp 2, May 2019

D

8/29/19 

67 



SUBORDINATE 275-2.2
SUBSTANTIAL DAMAGE

275-13.3
SUBSTANTIAL

IMPROVEMENT
275-13.3

SUPPLIER 260-35
SUSPENDED SOLIDS

(SS) 200-1
SWMP 218-7
SWP 218-7
SWPPP 218-7
SYSTEM HEIGHT

275-20.2
TANK STORAGE

FACILITY 275-2.2
TAVERN 275-2.2
TAXICAB 254-45
TEMPORARY FOOD

SERVICE
ESTABLISHMENT
80-2

TEMPORARY SIGN
275-29.11

TEMPORARY
STRUCTURE 275-2.2

TEMPORARY USE
275-2.2

TEMPORARY WIRELESS
COMMUNICATIONS
FACILITY 275-2.2

THEATER 275-2.2
TIMBER HARVESTING

275-2.2
TOWER 275-2.2; 275-20.2
TOWER HEIGHT 275-20.2
TRADE SHOP 275-2.2
TRADITIONAL 275-14.5
TRAFFIC 254-1
TRAFFIC CONTROL

DEVICES 254-1
TRAFFIC MOVEMENTS

254-1
TRANSPORTATION

SERVICE 275-2.2
TRASH 210-1
TRAVELED WAYS 254-1
TREE 210-1; 275-11.1
TRUCK TERMINAL

275-2.2
TWO FAMILY 275-2.2
UA 218-7
UNENGAGED TAXICAB

254-45
UNPOLLUTED WATER

200-1
UPLAND 275-2.2
URBAN AGRICULTURE

275-2.2
URBANIZED AREA (UA)

218-7
USE 275-2.2
UTILITY ADVISORY

BOARD 260-2
UTILITY, OTHER 275-2.2
UTILITY, POWER

GENERATION
275-2.2

VARIANCE 275-2.2
VEGETATIVE BUFFER,

DENSE 275-2.2
VEHICLE (or MOTOR

VEHICLE) 275-2.2
VEHICLE SALES, NEW

275-2.2
VEHICLE SALES, USED

275-2.2
VEHICLE SERVICE

275-2.2
VEHICLES 254-1
VERNAL POOLS 275-12.6

VERY POORLY
DRAINED SOIL
275-12.6

VETERINARY CLINIC
275-2.2

WALL OR FASCIA SIGN
275-29.11

WAREHOUSE 275-2.2
WASTEWATER 200-1
WASTEWATER

FACILITIES 200-1
WASTEWATER RATES

AND CHARGES
200-1

WASTEWATER
TREATMENT
WORKS 200-1

WATER METER 260-2
WATER SERVICE 260-2
WATER SERVICE

ENTRANCE 260-35
WATER SUPPLY

SHORTAGE 260-30
WATER SURFACE

ELEVATION 275-13.3
WATER TREATMENT

CHIEF OPERATOR
260-35

WATER UTILITY 260-35
WATERCOURSE 218-7;

200-1
WEEKDAY 254-1
WELLHEAD

PROTECTION AREA
275-10.3

WETLAND 275-12.6
WHITE GOODS and

SCRAP METAL 210-1
WIND GENERATOR

275-20.2
WINDOW SIGN 275-29.11
WIRELESS

COMMUNICATIONS
FACILITIES (or WCF)
275-2.2

YARD 135-3
YARD SALE,

COMMERCIAL
275-2.2

YARD SALE,
RESIDENTIAL
275-2.2

YARD WASTE 210-1
ZERO LOT LINE

DEVELOPMENT
275-2.2

DEMOLITION
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-5; 40-15

CITY CHARTER C-43-a
Finance 7-66
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.1;
275-14.11; 275-14.12;
275-14.14

SOLID WASTE 210-1;
210-2

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-9; 218-12

ZONING 275-2.2
DEMOLITION DEBRIS

SOLID WASTE 210-1;
210-4; 210-11

DEMOLITION OF
BUILDINGS

Finance 7-66

DENSITY BONUS
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.4; 275-33.5;
275-33.6

DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH

See BOARD OF HEALTH
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS

AND RECREATION
See PARKS AND

RECREATION
DEPARTMENT OF

PLANNING
See PLANNING BOARD

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
WORKS

CITY CHARTER C-19
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.4
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-6
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.2
SEWERS 200-1; 200-5;

200-6; 200-7; 200-8;
200-9; 200-10; 200-11;
200-12; 200-13;
200-14; 200-15;
200-23; 200-24;
200-25; 200-31

SOLID WASTE 210-13
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-7; 218-9; 218-10;
218-13; 218-14; 218-15

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-2

WATER 260-1; 260-2;
260-4; 260-6; 260-7;
260-8; 260-9; 260-10;
260-11; 260-12;
260-13; 260-14;
260-15; 260-17;
260-18; 260-23;
260-24; 260-26;
260-27; 260-29;
260-35; 260-38; 260-45

DEPUTY MAYOR
CITY CHARTER C-9
Salaries 7-44

DESIGN STANDARDS
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.5
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.8
Granite Ridge Development

(GRD) 275-8.6;
275-8.10; 275-8.11

Industrial Zoning Districts
275-7.2

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-5

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-26

See Also PERFORMANCE
STANDARDS

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-8; 218-9

DEVELOPMENT FEES
See FEES
See IMPACT FEES

DINING FACILITIES
See Also FAST-FOOD

RESTAURANTS
See Also FOOD

ESTABLISHMENTS
See Also RESTAURANTS
ZONING 275-2.2

DIRECT SELLERS
See SALES

DIRT
See Also EXCAVATIONS
See Also FILL
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-3
SOLID WASTE 210-1
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-8
ZONING 275-2.2

DISABILITY
See Also AMERICANS

WITH DISABILITIES
ACT

CITY CHARTER C-9;
C-34; C-51

Finance 7-51
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-25;
254-29

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

DISABLED PERSONS
See Also AMERICANS

WITH DISABILITIES
ACT

See Also HANDICAPPED
PERSONS

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-29

DISABLED VEHICLES
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-26
DISABLED VETERANS

See VETERANS
DISCLOSURE

JUNK AND
SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-3

SEWERS 200-19
DISORDERLY CONDUCT

See Also NOISE
See Also PEACE AND

GOOD ORDER
SEWERS 200-18

DISTURBING THE PEACE
See Also NOISE
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
See Also PEACE AND

GOOD ORDER
DOG WASTE

See FECAL MATTER
DOGS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
ANIMALS 28-2; 28-3;

28-4; 28-5
Granite Ridge Development

(GRD) 275-8.11
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
SEWERS 200-14
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
WATER 260-14
ZONING 275-2.2

DRAINAGE
Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.1; 275-12.5;
275-12.9

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.1; 275-33.9

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.5

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-5

Nonconforming Property
275-30.5

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS...

ROCHESTER INDEX

13 Supp 2, May 2019

D

8/29/19 

68 



Roads and Parking 275-26.2
SEWERS 200-1; 200-16
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-1; 218-6; 218-7;
218-8; 218-9; 218-16

ZONING 275-20.2;
275-27.3

DRAINAGE PLAN
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-5
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-9

DRIVE-THROUGH
RESTAURANTS

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.5

See Also FAST-FOOD
RESTAURANTS

See Also RESTAURANTS
DRIVEWAYS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.1;
275-6.4; 275-6.5

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Granite Ridge Development

(GRD) 275-8.3;
275-8.10

Home Occupations 275-24.1
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-5
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.2
Roads and Parking

275-26.2; 275-26.5
SEWERS 200-7
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-25

ZONING 275-1.11;
275-2.2; 275-3.3;
275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-29.14

DRUGS AND DRUG
PARAPHERNALIA

Fire Prevention 75-16
ZONING 275-2.2

DUMPS AND DUMPING
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3; 275-10.8

SEWERS 200-16
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-8
ZONING 275-20.2

DUMPSTERS
Performance Standards

275-28.4
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.5
SOLID WASTE 210-1;

210-8; 210-12
DUST

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Aviation Overlay District

(AOD) 275-11.1;
275-11.4

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-11

Home Occupations 275-24.1
Performance Standards

275-28.2; 275-28.4
Roads and Parking 275-26.2
SOLID WASTE 210-2
ZONING 275-2.2

— E —
EASEMENTS

Adoption of Code 1-15
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.5
Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.3; 275-33.6;
275-33.8

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.9

SEWERS 200-1; 200-6;
200-19

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-8; 218-9

WATER 260-2; 260-6
ZONING 275-2.2

ELECTRICAL CODE
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE 40-7

ELECTRICAL
DISTURBANCES

Performance Standards
275-28.2; 275-28.4

ELEVATORS
ZONING 275-19.2

E-MAIL
Home Occupations 275-24.1

EMERGENCIES
ALARM SYSTEMS 16-1
Appointment, Election and

Removal of City
Officers 7-73

Aquifer Protection Overlay
District (APOD)
275-10.11

CITY CHARTER C-15
Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Finance 7-62
Fire Prevention 75-8; 75-9
Overnight Parking or

Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-19

Performance Standards
275-28.3

SEWERS 200-5; 200-13;
200-17

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-6; 218-13

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-5;
223-10

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-10;
254-14; 254-19;
254-21; 254-33;
254-37; 254-57

WATER 260-4; 260-13;
260-15; 260-30

See Also WATER
EMERGENCIES

ZONING 275-2.2
EMERGENCY

MANAGEMENT
AGENCY

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.2; 275-13.3

EMERGENCY VEHICLES
See Also VEHICLES
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-10; 254-25;
254-37; 254-43

ENCROACHMENTS
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.4

ZONING 275-19.2
EROSION AND SEDIMENT

CONTROL
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.6; 275-10.9

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.8

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.1

See Also SOIL EROSION
AND SEDIMENT
CONTROL

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-6; 218-7; 218-8;
218-9; 218-10

ESCROW ACCOUNTS
SEWERS 200-6
WATER 260-6

ESCROW DEPOSITS
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-10

EXCAVATIONS
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.9

See Also BACKFILLING
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE 40-9

See Also DIRT
See Also FILL
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3

SEWERS 200-7
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-12

See Also STREET
EXCAVATIONS

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-5

See Also TRENCHES
WATER 260-6; 260-7
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-27.2
EXPLOSION HAZARDS

See BLASTING
See COMBUSTIBLES
See FLAMMABLES

EXPLOSIVES
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.8

See Also BLASTING
See Also COMBUSTIBLES
See Also FIREWORKS
See Also FLAMMABLES
SEWERS 200-16
ZONING 275-2.2

— F —
FAIR HOUSING

ZONING 275-2.2
FALSE ALARMS

ALARM SYSTEMS 16-8;
16-9; 16-10

See Also ALARM
SYSTEMS

See Also FIRE ALARMS
Fire Prevention 75-10
PEACE AND GOOD

ORDER 167-8
FAMILY DAY-CARE

See DAY-CARE
FACILITIES

FARMS AND FARMING
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
CEMETERIES 49-2
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.8

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.1

Hawkers, Peddlers and
Itinerant Vendors 171-4

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.4

Roads and Parking 275-26.6
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-29.13
FAST-FOOD

RESTAURANTS
See Also DINING

FACILITIES
See Also DRIVE-

THROUGH
RESTAURANTS

See Also FOOD
ESTABLISHMENTS

See Also RESTAURANTS
ZONING 275-2.2

FECAL MATTER
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-11
SOLID WASTE 210-2

FEES
Accessory Uses 275-23.1
Adoption of Code 1-10;

1-15
ALARM SYSTEMS 16-4;

16-10
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.13

Bowling Alleys and Billiard
Tables 22-4

Boxing and Wrestling
Exhibitions 22-2

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-15

See Also CHARGES
CITY CHARTER C-47;

C-52
Conditional Uses 275-21.2
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.9

See Also COSTS AND
EXPENSES

Finance 7-53; 7-63; 7-66
Fire Prevention 75-10;

75-16
Food Service

Establishments 80-4
Hawkers, Peddlers and

Itinerant Vendors 171-4
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-11
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.10;
275-14.13

See Also IMPACT FEES
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-3

Municipal Departments
7-20; 7-21; 7-22

DRAINAGE...

ROCHESTER INDEX

14 Supp 2, May 2019

F

8/29/19 

69 



Municipal Elections 7-69;
7-72

NUISANCES 149-2
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-17
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-3
PAWNBROKERS 162-1
Pinball and Video Games

and Machines 22-10
Public Dances, Circuses and

Parades 22-3
SEWERS 200-5; 200-6;

200-7; 200-11; 200-13;
200-16; 200-17;
200-20; 200-23;
200-24; 200-33

Soliciting Funds 171-13
SOLID WASTE 210-11
Special Downtown Overlay

District (SDOD)
275-15.2

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-9

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-7;
223-23

Taxicabs 254-46; 254-47;
254-48

Theaters 22-1
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-43;
254-53; 254-56

WATER 260-4; 260-6;
260-11; 260-13;
260-15; 260-17;
260-20; 260-30;
260-32; 260-33;
260-38; 260-39; 260-43

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.1;
275-3.5; 275-20.2;
275-27.3; 275-29.8;
275-29.14

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.4

FENCES
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-15

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.8

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-9

See Also HEIGHT
REGULATIONS

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.5;
275-14.10; 275-14.11;
275-14.12

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-3; 135-4; 135-5

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-2

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-6; 218-9

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-2;
223-5

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.3;
275-20.2; 275-27.1;
275-27.2; 275-29.11

FERAL CATS
See CATS

FILL
See Also BACKFILLING
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.10

See Also DIRT
See Also EXCAVATIONS
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-9

ZONING 275-20.2
FILLING STATIONS

See Also GAS STATIONS
ZONING 275-2.2

FINAL PLANS
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-9; 218-11

FINANCE
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

7-50\7-67
Annual report of City

receipts and
expenditures 7-56

Assessments 7-66
Assessor 7-66
Audit of City accounts 7-58
Bonds 7-59
Budget 7-57; 7-60; 7-62;

7-64; 7-65; 7-66
Budget line items for merit

salary increases or pay
adjustments 7-65

Building permits 7-66
Charges 7-52
City Clerk 7-55; 7-57; 7-59
City Council 7-51; 7-52;

7-54; 7-55; 7-57; 7-58;
7-61; 7-62; 7-63; 7-64;
7-65; 7-66; 7-67

City Finance Director 7-50
City funds 7-52
City Manager 7-50; 7-51;

7-52; 7-54; 7-55; 7-56;
7-57; 7-59; 7-63; 7-64;
7-66

City Treasurer 7-51; 7-52;
7-54; 7-55; 7-59; 7-64

Claims against City 7-51
Collection of motor vehicle

permit fees 7-53
Conservation Commission

7-64
Conservation Fund 7-64
Construction 7-66
Contracts with City officials

limited 7-61
Costs and expenses 7-63
Demolition 7-66
Demolition of buildings

7-66
Disability 7-51
Economic Development

Special Reserve Fund
7-63

Emergencies 7-62
Fees 7-53; 7-63; 7-66
Fiscal year 7-60
Hearings 7-57; 7-62; 7-64;

7-67
Inspections 7-52
Library 7-51
Licenses and permits 7-66
Limitation on budget

increase 7-66
Mayor 7-65; 7-66
Motor vehicles 7-53
Natural resources 7-64
Negotiation of loans to City

7-54
Notes of City 7-55

Notices 7-52; 7-57; 7-62;
7-63; 7-64; 7-67

Preparation of City budget
7-57

Records 7-52; 7-53; 7-59
Recycling 7-63
Redemption of City bonds

7-59
Registration 7-53
Reports 7-52; 7-54; 7-56
Safety standards 7-62
Salaries and compensation

7-65
Sales 7-61
School Building Fund 7-67
Schools 7-51; 7-65; 7-66;

7-67
Solid waste 7-63
Tax Collector 7-52; 7-53
Treasurer 7-52; 7-55; 7-59
Trees 7-63
Trustees 7-51; 7-67
Undesignated fund balance

7-62
Websites 7-66

FINANCE DEPARTMENT
Municipal Departments

7-11
FINANCIAL

DISCLOSURES
See DISCLOSURE

FINES
See VIOLATIONS AND

PENALTIES
FIRE ALARMS

ALARM SYSTEMS 16-9
See Also ALARM

SYSTEMS
See Also FALSE ALARMS
Fire Prevention 75-10;

75-18
PEACE AND GOOD

ORDER 167-8
FIRE CHIEF

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-6; 40-10

Fire Department 75-1; 75-2;
75-3

Fire Prevention 75-7; 75-8;
75-10; 75-13; 75-16;
75-17; 75-18

Legal Basis and
Departmental
Organization 7-2

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-7; 135-8

Municipal Departments
7-12

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER 167-5

Special Downtown Overlay
District (SDOD)
275-15.2

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-6;
223-10

WATER 260-32
FIRE DEPARTMENT

ALARM SYSTEMS 16-3;
16-5; 16-8; 16-9; 16-10

Appointment and
requirements of Fire
Chief 75-1

Appointments 75-1
CITY CHARTER C-18
City Manager 75-1; 75-3
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.8
Fire Chief 75-1; 75-2; 75-3
Fire Department 75-1

Fire Marshal 75-2
Fire Prevention 75-4; 75-5;

75-7; 75-9; 75-12;
75-17

FIRES AND FIRE
SAFETY 75-1\75-3

LICENSING BOARD
123-1

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

Municipal Departments
7-12

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-27

Performance Standards
275-28.2

Taking equipment and
apparatus outside of
City 75-3

Transfer of authority in
Chief's absence 75-2

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-1

FIRE HAZARDS
Fire Prevention 75-13
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
Municipal Departments

7-12
Performance Standards

275-28.4
FIRE HYDRANTS

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

Municipal Departments
7-18

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-21

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-25;
254-43

WATER 260-7; 260-32;
260-33

FIRE INSURANCE
See CERTIFICATES OF

INSURANCE
See INSURANCE

FIRE INSURANCE
CLAIMS

See CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

See INSURANCE
FIRE LANES

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-22

FIRE LIMITS
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-13

Special Downtown Overlay
District (SDOD)
275-15.1

FIRE MARSHAL
Fire Department 75-2
Fire Prevention 75-4; 75-5

FIRE PREVENTION
Administration and

enforcement 75-10
Alarm systems 75-10
Antennas 75-9
Apartments 75-8
Asbestos 75-9
Batteries 75-9
Blasting 75-10
Block parties 75-16
Certificates of occupancy

75-9
Charges 75-10
City Council 75-16

FEES...

ROCHESTER INDEX

15 Supp 2, May 2019

F

8/29/19 

70 



City Manager 75-16
Combustibles 75-13; 75-16
Construction 75-8; 75-12
Costs and expenses 75-7;

75-9; 75-13; 75-16
Drugs and drug

paraphernalia 75-16
Emergencies 75-8; 75-9
Enforcement officer 75-5
False alarms 75-10
Fees 75-10; 75-16
Fire alarms 75-10; 75-18
Fire Chief 75-7; 75-8;

75-10; 75-13; 75-16;
75-17; 75-18

Fire Department 75-4; 75-5;
75-7; 75-9; 75-12;
75-17

Fire Department access
75-12

Fire hazards 75-13
Fire Marshal 75-4; 75-5
Fire protection 75-15
Fire Safety Rules and

Regulations 75-4
Fires 75-7; 75-13
FIRES AND FIRE

SAFETY 75-4\75-18
Firesafety 75-4
Fireworks 75-16
Flammables 75-16
Gases 75-16
Hazardous materials and

substances 75-9
Heating 75-9
Hotels 75-11
Inspections 75-10; 75-13;

75-16
Inspections; control of fire

hazards 75-13
Investigations 75-10
Liability 75-14
Licenses and permits 75-7;

75-9; 75-10; 75-16
Lighting 75-6
Listed Agent Program 75-17
Mayor 75-16
Means of escape 75-11
Notices 75-9
Obstructions 75-16
Outdoor fires 75-7
Parking 75-9
Police Chief 75-16
Police officers 75-9
Provisions for rapid entry

75-8
Public safety amplification

system required in large
facilities 75-9

Records 75-13; 75-14
Regulation of fire alarms

75-18
Reports 75-10
Safety standards 75-8; 75-9;

75-11; 75-16
Sales 75-16
Single-family dwellings

75-12; 75-15
Smoke detector wiring 75-6
Smoke detectors 75-6
Sprinkler requirements for

certain dwellings 75-15
Sprinkler systems 75-10;

75-15
Storage 75-16
Tenants 75-13
Tests 75-9
Trees 75-16
Variances 75-9
Ventilation 75-9
Violations and penalties

75-14; 75-16

FIRE PROTECTION
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-5; 40-15

Conditional Uses 275-21.3
Fire Prevention 75-15
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
WATER 260-2; 260-30;

260-32; 260-33
ZONING 275-27.3

FIREARMS
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-1

FIRES
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-5; 40-15

See Also BURNING
Fire Prevention 75-7; 75-13
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
Municipal Departments

7-12
See Also OPEN FIRES
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
WATER 260-38

FIRES AND FIRE SAFETY
See Fire Department 75-1\

75-3
See Fire Prevention 75-4\

75-18
FIRESAFETY

Fire Prevention 75-4
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-8
FIREWORKS

See Also EXPLOSIVES
Fire Prevention 75-16

FISHING
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.8

FLAMMABLES
See Also COMBUSTIBLES
See Also EXPLOSIVES
Fire Prevention 75-16
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
Performance Standards

275-28.2
SEWERS 200-16
SOLID WASTE 210-2
ZONING 275-2.2

FLOOD HAZARD AREAS
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.2; 275-13.3;
275-13.4; 275-13.5

FLOOD HAZARD
OVERLAY DISTRICT
(FHOD)

Accessory buildings and
structures 275-13.3

Air conditioning 275-13.4
Anchoring 275-13.4;

275-13.5
Appeals 275-13.1; 275-13.6
Authority and purpose

275-13.1
Building Inspector

275-13.4; 275-13.6
Building permits 275-13.3;

275-13.4

Construction 275-13.3;
275-13.4; 275-13.5;
275-13.6

Costs and expenses
275-13.3; 275-13.6

Definitions 275-13.3
Drainage 275-13.5
Emergency Management

Agency 275-13.2;
275-13.3

Encroachments 275-13.4
Excavations 275-13.3
Flood hazard areas

275-13.2; 275-13.3;
275-13.4; 275-13.5

Floodplains 275-13.1;
275-13.3

Floodways 275-13.2;
275-13.3; 275-13.4;
275-13.6

Garages 275-13.3
Gas 275-13.3
Grades and grading

275-13.3; 275-13.5
Heating 275-13.4
Height regulations 275-13.3
Historic districts 275-13.3
Historic preservation

275-13.3
Improvements 275-13.3;

275-13.4; 275-13.5
Insurance 275-13.2;

275-13.3; 275-13.5;
275-13.6

Licenses and permits
275-13.4; 275-13.5

Lots 275-13.3
Manufactured home parks

275-13.3
Manufactured homes

275-13.3; 275-13.5
Mining 275-13.3
Notices 275-13.4; 275-13.6
Official Map 275-13.3
Parking 275-13.3; 275-13.5
Plumbing 275-13.4
Records 275-13.6
Recreational vehicles

275-13.5
Regulatory floodway

boundaries 275-13.2
Reports 275-13.6
Restrictions in regulatory

floodway zone
275-13.4

Safety standards 275-13.3;
275-13.6

Sales 275-13.3
Sanitary facilities 275-13.3;

275-13.5
Screens and screening

275-13.5
Sewers 275-13.4
Sheds 275-13.3
Standards 275-13.5
Storage 275-13.3; 275-13.5
Storage tanks 275-13.3
Trailers 275-13.3
Utilities 275-13.3; 275-13.5
Variances 275-13.6
Variances and appeals

275-13.6
Vehicles 275-13.3; 275-13.5
Ventilation 275-13.4
Violations and penalties

275-13.3
Walls 275-13.3; 275-13.5
Water 275-13.3; 275-13.4;

275-13.5
Water pollution 275-13.4
Watercourses 275-13.3;

275-13.4
Wetlands 275-13.4

ZONING 275-13.1\275-13.6
Zoning Board of

Adjustment 275-13.6
FLOODPLAINS

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.6

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.1; 275-33.4

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.1; 275-13.3

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-7; 218-9

ZONING 275-20.2
FLOODWAYS

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.2; 275-13.3;
275-13.4; 275-13.6

FLY ASH
See ASHES

FOOD AND FOOD
SERVICE

See Food Service
Establishments 80-1\
80-13

See Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-14\
80-31

FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS
See Also DINING

FACILITIES
See Also FAST-FOOD

RESTAURANTS
Food Service

Establishments 80-4
See Also RESTAURANTS

FOOD SERVICE
ESTABLISHMENTS

Access to establishments
80-10

Bed and breakfast 80-4
Board of Health 80-2; 80-7
Building permits 80-13
Carnivals 80-2
Charges 80-2
Circuses 80-2
Construction 80-13
Day-care facilities 80-4
Definitions 80-2
Fees 80-4
FOOD AND FOOD

SERVICE 80-1\80-13
Food Code adopted 80-1
Food establishments 80-4
Food from food service

establishments outside
City 80-12

Health Officer 80-2; 80-5;
80-6; 80-7; 80-9;
80-10; 80-11; 80-12;
80-13

Hearing 80-8
Hearings 80-5; 80-7; 80-8
Inspection of food service

establishments 80-9
Inspections 80-4; 80-9;

80-10; 80-11
Issuance of license; fees

80-4
License required 80-3
Licenses and permits 80-2;

80-3; 80-4; 80-5; 80-6;
80-7; 80-8; 80-11

Notices 80-5; 80-7; 80-8;
80-11

Nursing homes 80-4
Poultry 80-4
Records 80-8; 80-10; 80-11

FIRE PREVENTION...

ROCHESTER INDEX

16 Supp 2, May 2019

F

8/29/19 

71 



Reinstatement of suspended
license 80-6

Reports 80-8; 80-12
Restaurants 80-2
Review of future

construction 80-13
Revocation of license 80-7
Right to know 80-8
Roadside stands 80-2
Safety standards 80-4
Sales 80-2
Schools 80-4
Service of notices 80-11
Sidewalks 80-2
Suspension of license 80-5
Trucks 80-2
Vending machines 80-4
Vendors 80-4
Violations and penalties

80-7
FORESTRY

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.8

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.9

Roads and Parking 275-26.6
ZONING 275-2.2

FOWL
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

FUEL
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3; 275-10.8;
275-10.11

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

SEWERS 200-16
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-19.2; 275-20.2
FUMES

See Also GAS
See Also GASES
Home Occupations 275-24.1
See Also ODORS
Performance Standards

275-28.4

— G —
GAMBLING

Pinball and Video Games
and Machines 22-6;
22-17

GARAGE SALES
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-1

See Also SALES
See Also YARD SALES
ZONING 275-2.2

GARAGES
Accessory Uses 275-23.1;

275-23.2
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3

Home Occupations 275-24.1
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-3; 135-5
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.2
Special Exceptions

275-22.1; 275-22.3
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-20
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-15
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

GARBAGE, RUBBISH AND
REFUSE

CITATIONS 54-3
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-12
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
NUISANCES 149-1
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-27
SEWERS 200-1; 200-3;

200-16
SOLID WASTE 210-1;

210-4
See Also SOLID WASTE
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-8
See Also TRASH

GARDEN APARTMENTS
See APARTMENTS

GAS
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.3

See Also FUMES
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-1

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

See Also ODORS
SEWERS 200-16
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-6

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-10

WATER 260-7
ZONING 275-2.2

GAS STATIONS
Conditional Uses 275-21.4
See Also FILLING

STATIONS
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

GASES
Fire Prevention 75-16
See Also FUMES
See Also ODORS
Performance Standards

275-28.4
SEWERS 200-16
WATER 260-35

GENERAL PROVISIONS
See Adoption of Code 1-3\

1-18
City Council 1-2
Construction and Penalties

1-1\1-2
Definitions and word usage

1-2
General penalty 1-1
Sidewalks 1-2
Violations and penalties 1-1

GLARE
Aviation Overlay District

(AOD) 275-11.1;
275-11.4

Performance Standards
275-28.2; 275-28.4

ZONING 275-2.2;
275-29.12

GLASS
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-1

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER 167-8

SEWERS 200-16
SOLID WASTE 210-1

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-8

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-57

ZONING 275-2.2
GOLF COURSES

ZONING 275-2.2
GRADES AND GRADING

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Adoption of Code 1-15
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.5

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-5

Roads and Parking 275-26.2
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-7; 218-9; 218-12

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-27

WATER 260-45
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-29.12

GRANDFATHERING
ZONING 275-20.2;

275-29.3
GRANITE RIDGE

DEVELOPMENT
(GRD)

Adjustments in
requirements 275-8.11

Bridges 275-8.11
Brush, grass and weeds

275-8.6
Buffers 275-8.3
Commercial districts

275-8.1
Construction 275-8.2;

275-8.5; 275-8.11
Costs and expenses 275-8.1
Curbs 275-8.6
Delineation of Granite

Ridge Development
Zone 275-8.2

Design standards 275-8.6;
275-8.10; 275-8.11

Dogs 275-8.11
Driveways 275-8.3;

275-8.10
Easements 275-8.9
Granite Ridge Development

Study 275-8.4
Guarantees 275-8.3
Improvements 275-8.2
Landscaping 275-8.3
Licenses and permits

275-8.2
Lots 275-8.1; 275-8.3;

275-8.5; 275-8.7;
275-8.9; 275-8.10

Parking 275-8.3; 275-8.7;
275-8.9

Parking lot interconnections
275-8.9

Pavement dimensional
regulations 275-8.3

Planning Board 275-8.5;
275-8.7; 275-8.11

Purpose 275-8.1
Restaurants 275-8.10;

275-8.11
Road design standards

275-8.6
Rural districts 275-8.11
Service road regulations

275-8.5
Setbacks 275-8.3
Sidewalks 275-8.6
Signs 275-8.10

Site plans 275-8.3; 275-8.4;
275-8.5; 275-8.7;
275-8.10

Stormwater 275-8.7
Stormwater control 275-8.7
Stormwater management

275-8.7; 275-8.11
Stormwater management

requirements 275-8.7
Trash 275-8.10
Utilities 275-8.8; 275-8.11
Utility standards 275-8.8
Wetlands 275-8.7; 275-8.9;

275-8.10
ZONING 275-8.1\275-8.11
Zoning Maps 275-8.2

GRASS
See BRUSH, GRASS AND

WEEDS
GRASS CLIPPINGS

See Also BRUSH, GRASS
AND WEEDS

See Also LAWNS
SOLID WASTE 210-1
See Also YARD WASTE

GRIEVANCES
CITY CHARTER C-62
Conditional Uses 275-21.2
Hawkers, Peddlers and

Itinerant Vendors 171-9
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.15
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-4

Performance Standards
275-28.4

SEWERS 200-26
WATER 260-19; 260-30;

260-49
ZONING 275-27.3
Zoning Board of

Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

GROUNDWATER
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.2; 275-10.3;
275-10.6; 275-10.9

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.1; 275-12.6

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.1

Performance Standards
275-28.4

SEWERS 200-1; 200-7;
200-16

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-8; 218-14

ZONING 275-20.2
GUARANTEES

Aquifer Protection Overlay
District (APOD)
275-10.9

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.5

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.3

SEWERS 200-7
ZONING 275-27.3

GUIDE DOGS
ANIMALS 28-5

GUNS
See FIREARMS

GUTTERS
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
ZONING 275-19.2

FOOD SERVICE ESTABLISHMENTS...

ROCHESTER INDEX

17 Supp 2, May 2019

G

8/29/19 

72 



— H —
HANDICAPPED PARKING

See PARKING
HANDICAPPED PERSONS

See Also DISABLED
PERSONS

ZONING 275-29.13
HAWKERS, PEDDLERS

AND ITINERANT
VENDORS

Appeals 171-9
Application for license

171-4
Authority 171-1
City Council 171-9
Complaints 171-8
Costs and expenses 171-4
Definitions 171-3
Exhibition of license 171-10
Farms and farming 171-4
Fees 171-4
Grievances 171-9
Hearings 171-8; 171-9
Investigations 171-6
License required 171-2
Licenses and permits 171-2;

171-4; 171-5; 171-6;
171-7; 171-8; 171-9;
171-10; 171-11

Licensing Board action
171-6

Motor vehicles 171-5
Notices 171-8; 171-9
PEDDLING AND

SOLICITING 171-1\
171-12

Police Department 171-4
Police officers 171-11
Records 171-4
Restrictions on issuance of

licenses 171-5
Revocation of license 171-8
Safety standards 171-6;

171-8
Sales 171-3; 171-5
Storage 171-5
Streets and sidewalks

171-11
Transfer of license 171-7
Use of streets and sidewalks

171-11
Vehicles 171-4
Vendors 171-2; 171-3;

171-5; 171-8; 171-10;
171-11

Violations and penalties
171-8; 171-12

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS
AND SUBSTANCES

Aquifer Protection Overlay
District (APOD)
275-10.3; 275-10.6;
275-10.11; 275-10.13

Fire Prevention 75-9
Industrial Zoning Districts

275-7.2
Performance Standards

275-28.4
See Also TOXIC

SUBSTANCES
ZONING 275-2.2

HAZARDOUS WASTES
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3; 275-10.11

SEWERS 200-17
SOLID WASTE 210-1;

210-2; 210-14
See Also TOXIC

SUBSTANCES
ZONING 275-2.2

HEALTH AND
SANITATION

Animals 94-3; 94-6; 94-12;
94-13

Ashes 94-3
Board of Health 94-10
Board of Health rules and

regulations 94-10
Chickens 94-7
City Solicitor 94-8
Complaints 94-8
Contagious diseases 94-10
Dirt 94-3
Drains, privies and sewers

94-4
Dust 94-11
Fecal matter 94-11
Fees 94-11
Fences 94-9
Garbage, rubbish and refuse

94-12
General Public Health

Regulations 94-1\94-11
Health Officer 94-8; 94-12
Investigations 94-8
Licenses and permits 94-2;

94-11
Lots 94-5
Manure 94-3; 94-12
Multifamily dwellings 94-2
Multifamily dwellings;

posting of contact
information required
94-2

Notices 94-8; 94-9
Nuisances 94-5; 94-8; 94-9;

94-10; 94-11
Nuisances in lots, buildings

and other places 94-5
Nuisances to be reported;

investigations 94-8
Odors 94-11; 94-13
Overcrowded housing 94-1
Periodic removal of

putrefied animal or
vegetable substances
94-12

Pigpens, goat pens, chicken
coops and barnyards
94-7

Ponds 94-3
Privies 94-4
Records 94-2
Registry 94-2
Removal or Transportation

of Putrefied Animal or
Vegetable Substances
94-12\94-13

Reports 94-8
Residential solid waste and

refuse 94-3
Safety standards 94-2;

94-10; 94-11
Service of notice to abate

nuisance 94-9
Sewers 94-4
Sheds 94-3
Solid waste 94-3; 94-11
Stockpiling or land

application of septage
and sludge 94-11

Swill house in compact part
of City 94-6

Tax Collector 94-2
Tenants 94-2
Tests 94-11
Vacant lots 94-3
Vectors 94-11
Vessels to be used in

transporting 94-13
Violations and penalties

94-8
Walls 94-9

Water 94-3
HEALTH DEPARTMENT

See BOARD OF HEALTH
HEALTH HAZARDS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
HEALTH OFFICER

See Also BOARD OF
HEALTH

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-26

CITY CHARTER C-21
Food Service

Establishments 80-2;
80-5; 80-6; 80-7; 80-9;
80-10; 80-11; 80-12;
80-13

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-8;
94-12

Legal Basis and
Departmental
Organization 7-2

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4; 135-7; 135-8

Municipal Departments
7-13

SEWERS 200-4
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-15

HEARING DOGS
See GUIDE DOGS

HEARING OFFICER
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.13
HEARINGS

ALARM SYSTEMS 16-7;
16-9

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-26

Boxing and Wrestling
Exhibitions 22-2

CITY CHARTER C-17;
C-25; C-42; C-45; C-70

Conditional Uses 275-21.1;
275-21.2

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.9; 275-12.13

Finance 7-57; 7-62; 7-64;
7-67

Food Service
Establishments 80-5;
80-7; 80-8

Hawkers, Peddlers and
Itinerant Vendors
171-8; 171-9

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.9;
275-14.10; 275-14.12;
275-14.13; 275-14.14

Home Occupations 275-24.1
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-4;
110-5

Legislative Body 7-49
Performance Standards

275-28.3; 275-28.4
Pinball and Video Games

and Machines 22-16
PLANNING BOARD

176-4; 176-9; 176-10
SEWERS 200-23
Special Exceptions

275-22.1; 275-22.3
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-11
Taxicabs 254-49; 254-50
WATER 260-17

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.1;
275-3.5; 275-20.2

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.3;
275-4.4

HEATING
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3; 275-10.11

Fire Prevention 75-9
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.4

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-3; 135-4

Performance Standards
275-28.2; 275-28.4

PLANNING BOARD 176-8
ZONING 275-2.2

HEDGES
See FENCES

HEIGHT REGULATIONS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Aviation Overlay District

(AOD) 275-11.3;
275-11.6; 275-11.9

Conditional Uses 275-21.1
See Also FENCES
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.5

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

Nonconforming Property
275-30.1; 275-30.4

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-26

PLANNING BOARD 176-8
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-11
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-2.3;

275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.2; 275-29.12;
275-29.13; 275-29.14

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL
DISTRICTS

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-13

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.5

ZONING 275-1.8
HISTORIC DISTRICTS

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.6

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.3

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.1;
275-14.4; 275-14.5;
275-14.6; 275-14.7;
275-14.8; 275-14.9;
275-14.10; 275-14.11;
275-14.12; 275-14.13;
275-14.15

Legislative Body 7-49
Nonconforming Property

275-30.3; 275-30.6
PLANNING BOARD 176-2
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-2.3;

275-29.5; 275-29.13;
275-29.14

ROCHESTER INDEX

18 Supp 2, May 2019

H

8/29/19 

73 



HISTORIC OVERLAY
DISTRICT (HOD)

Air conditioning 275-14.10;
275-14.11; 275-14.12

Animals 275-14.5
Antennas 275-14.10;

275-14.11; 275-14.12
Appeals 275-14.1;

275-14.13; 275-14.15
Applicability 275-14.3
Appointments 275-14.4
Bonds 275-14.12
Budget 275-14.4
Building Official 275-14.9;

275-14.14
Building permits 275-14.9;

275-14.10
Certificates of

appropriateness
275-14.9; 275-14.10

Certificates of approval
275-14.4; 275-14.9;
275-14.10; 275-14.11

Chimneys 275-14.14
City Attorney 275-14.13
City Clerk 275-14.7
City Council 275-14.2;

275-14.4; 275-14.6;
275-14.9; 275-14.14

City Manager 275-14.10
Compensation 275-14.13
Complaints 275-14.14
Construction 275-14.2;

275-14.4; 275-14.9;
275-14.10; 275-14.12

Costs and expenses
275-14.5; 275-14.10;
275-14.13; 275-14.14

Decks 275-14.5; 275-14.10
Definitions 275-14.5
Delineation of Historic

District 275-14.8
Demolition 275-14.1;

275-14.11; 275-14.12;
275-14.14

Demolition by neglect
275-14.14

Designation of Historic
District 275-14.6

Determination of hardship
275-14.13

Development involving
property within
Historic District
275-14.10

Effect of inclusion in
Historic District
275-14.9

Enforcement 275-14.16
Fees 275-14.10; 275-14.13
Fences 275-14.5; 275-14.10;

275-14.11; 275-14.12
Grievances 275-14.15
Hearing Officer 275-14.13
Hearings 275-14.9;

275-14.10; 275-14.12;
275-14.13; 275-14.14

Height regulations 275-14.5
Historic District

Commission 275-14.4
Historic District demolition

permit 275-14.11
Historic District relocation

permit 275-14.12
Historic districts 275-14.1;

275-14.4; 275-14.5;
275-14.6; 275-14.7;
275-14.8; 275-14.9;
275-14.10; 275-14.11;
275-14.12; 275-14.13;
275-14.15

Historic preservation
275-14.4; 275-14.10;
275-14.11; 275-14.12

Historic resources 275-14.4
Identification of Historic

District 275-14.7
Improvements 275-14.10;

275-14.12
Inspections 275-14.14
Investigations 275-14.7;

275-14.14
Licenses and permits

275-14.9; 275-14.11;
275-14.14

Liens 275-14.14
Lots 275-14.6; 275-14.8
Markers 275-14.4
Meetings 275-14.10
Membership 275-14.4;

275-14.9
Monuments 275-14.4
Notices 275-14.10;

275-14.14
Parking 275-14.10
Patios 275-14.10
Permitted uses 275-14.10
Planning Board 275-14.4;

275-14.6; 275-14.9
Porches 275-14.5;

275-14.14
Powers and duties 275-14.4
Purpose and intent 275-14.2
Qualifications 275-14.4
Records 275-14.4;

275-14.10; 275-14.14
Reports 275-14.10;

275-14.11; 275-14.12;
275-14.13; 275-14.14

Roofs 275-14.5; 275-14.14
Safety standards 275-14.10;

275-14.11
Satellite dish antennas

275-14.10; 275-14.11;
275-14.12

Sidewalks 275-14.5
Signs 275-14.4; 275-14.5;

275-14.10
Site plans 275-14.4;

275-14.9; 275-14.10
Special exceptions 275-14.4
Table of contents 275-14.1
Variances 275-14.4;

275-14.5
Violations and penalties

275-14.13
Walls 275-14.5; 275-14.14
ZONING 275-14.1\

275-14.16
Zoning Board of

Adjustment 275-14.9;
275-14.13; 275-14.15

Zoning Maps 275-14.7;
275-14.8

HISTORIC
PRESERVATION

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-37

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.3

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.4;
275-14.10; 275-14.11;
275-14.12

HISTORIC RESOURCES
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.6
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.4
HOLIDAYS

Taxicabs 254-47; 254-48;
254-50

HOME OCCUPATIONS
Accessory Uses 275-23.1;

275-23.2
Appeals 275-24.1
Appointments 275-24.1
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.11

Bed and breakfast 275-24.7
Certificates of occupancy

275-24.1
Commercial districts

275-24.1
Driveways 275-24.1
Dust 275-24.1
E-mail 275-24.1
Fumes 275-24.1
Garages 275-24.1
Hearings 275-24.1
Home occupation-1

275-24.2
Home occupation-2

275-24.3
Home occupation-3

275-24.4
Home Occupations

275-24.1; 275-24.2;
275-24.3; 275-24.4;
275-24.5; 275-24.6;
275-24.7

Kennels 275-24.7
Licenses and permits

275-24.1
Multifamily dwellings

275-24.1
Noise 275-24.1
Nursing homes 275-24.7
Odors 275-24.1
Parking 275-24.1
Performance standards

275-24.1
Prohibited home

occupations 275-24.7
Requirements for all home

occupations 275-24.1
Restaurants 275-24.7
Review process with special

exception 275-24.6
Review process without

special exception
275-24.5

Roads and Parking 275-26.6
Sales 275-24.1; 275-24.4;

275-24.7
Screens and screening

275-24.1
Septic systems 275-24.1
Signs 275-24.2; 275-24.3;

275-24.4
Single-family dwellings

275-24.1
Site plan review and

approval 275-24.5;
275-24.6

Site plans 275-24.5;
275-24.6

Smoke 275-24.1
Special exceptions

275-24.1; 275-24.4;
275-24.5; 275-24.6

Storage 275-24.1; 275-24.7
Trucks 275-24.1
Vehicles 275-24.1;

275-24.4; 275-24.7
Vibrations 275-24.1
Violations and penalties

275-24.1
Water 275-24.1
Yard sales 275-24.7
Yards 275-24.1; 275-24.7

ZONING 275-2.2;
275-18.7; 275-20.2;
275-24.1\275-24.7;
275-29.13

Zoning Board of
Adjustment 275-24.1;
275-24.6

Zoning districts 275-24.1
HORSES

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Legislative Body 7-48
See Also LIVESTOCK
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

HOSPITALS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Performance Standards

275-28.3
SEWERS 200-16
Special Zoning Districts

275-9.3
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1
WATER 260-3
ZONING 275-1.8; 275-2.2;

275-29.14
HOTELS

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Fire Prevention 75-11
See Also MOTELS
SEWERS 200-16
SOLID WASTE 210-1
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

HOUSES OF WORSHIP
See CHURCHES

HUNTING
ANIMALS 28-3
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.8

HYDRONIC HEATERS
ZONING 275-20.2

— I —
ILLICIT CONNECTIONS

SEWERS 200-16
See Also SEWERS
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-14

IMPACT FEES
See Also FEES
ZONING 275-27.3

IMPOUNDMENT
Pinball and Video Games

and Machines 22-17
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-57
IMPROVEMENTS

Adoption of Code 1-15
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-35
CEMETERIES 49-2
CITY CHARTER C-60
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.5
Conditional Uses 275-21.1
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.5

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.3

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.4;
275-13.5

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.2

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.10;
275-14.12

ROCHESTER INDEX

19 Supp 2, May 2019

I

8/29/19 

74 



MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-7

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-26

PLANNING BOARD 176-9
PUBLIC BUILDINGS

183-1
Special Exceptions 275-22.1
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-6; 218-7

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-9

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.3;
275-27.3

INDEMNIFICATION
See LIABILITY

INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Industrial Zoning Districts

275-7.2; 275-7.3
Performance Standards

275-28.3
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-1.8; 275-2.2;

275-19.1; 275-20.2;
275-29.13; 275-29.14

INDUSTRIAL USER
SEWERS 200-1; 200-16;

200-17; 200-19
WATER 260-35

INDUSTRIAL WASTES
SEWERS 200-1; 200-4;

200-7; 200-16
INDUSTRIAL ZONING

DISTRICTS
Buffers 275-7.3
Conditional uses 275-7.2
Design standards 275-7.2
General Industrial District

(GI) 275-7.2
General terms 275-7.1
Hazardous materials and

substances 275-7.2
Industrial districts 275-7.2;

275-7.3
Junkyards 275-7.3
Landfills 275-7.3
Planning Board 275-7.2
Recycling 275-7.3
Recycling Industrial District

(RI) 275-7.3
Screens and screening

275-7.3
Setbacks 275-7.2
Special exceptions 275-7.1
Storage 275-7.3
ZONING 275-7.1\275-7.3
Zoning districts 275-7.1

INFESTATION
CITATIONS 54-3

IN-LAW APARTMENTS
ZONING 275-2.2

INSECTS
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
Performance Standards

275-28.4
See Also VECTORS

INSPECTIONS
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.11; 275-10.13

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE 40-8

See Also BUILDING
INSPECTOR

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.3

Finance 7-52
Fire Prevention 75-10;

75-13; 75-16
Food Service

Establishments 80-4;
80-9; 80-10; 80-11

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.14

JUNK AND
SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-7

Legislative Body 7-46
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4; 135-7; 135-8
Municipal Departments

7-12
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-27
Pinball and Video Games

and Machines 22-9
SEWERS 200-4; 200-5;

200-7; 200-9; 200-15;
200-16; 200-17;
200-19; 200-33

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-1; 218-9; 218-10;
218-11; 218-13

Taxicabs 254-46; 254-47;
254-49

WATER 260-9; 260-15;
260-33; 260-35;
260-38; 260-39;
260-42; 260-43;
260-44; 260-45; 260-46

ZONING 275-3.1
INSURANCE

See Also CERTIFICATES
OF INSURANCE

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.2; 275-13.3;
275-13.5; 275-13.6

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-19

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-25

Taxicabs 254-46; 254-47
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-54
INTOXICATED PERSONS

See ALCOHOLIC
BEVERAGES

INTOXICATING
BEVERAGES

See ALCOHOLIC
BEVERAGES

INTOXICATION
See ALCOHOLIC

BEVERAGES
INVESTIGATIONS

CITY CHARTER C-16;
C-62

Fire Prevention 75-10
Hawkers, Peddlers and

Itinerant Vendors 171-6
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-8
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.7;
275-14.14

JUNK AND
SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-3

Performance Standards
275-28.5

PLANNING BOARD 176-9
SEWERS 200-17; 200-33
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-9

Taxicabs 254-46; 254-48
ZONING 275-2.2

— J —
JUNK

JUNK AND
SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-3

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-8

ZONING 275-2.2
JUNK AND SECONDHAND

DEALERS
Aluminum 110-1
Appeals 110-4
Chief of Police 110-3
City Manager 110-4
Definitions 110-1
Disclosure 110-3
Exclusions 110-8
Fees 110-3
Firearms 110-1
Garage sales 110-1
Gas 110-1
Glass 110-1
Grievances 110-4
Hearings 110-4; 110-5
Inspections 110-7
Investigations 110-3
Junk 110-3
Junk dealers 110-1; 110-2;

110-3; 110-6; 110-7
Liability 110-9
License expiration and

revocation 110-5
License required 110-2
Licenses and permits 110-2;

110-3; 110-4; 110-5;
110-7; 110-9

Minors 110-6
Notices 110-3; 110-4; 110-5
Police officers 110-7
Procedure for issuance of

license 110-3
Purchases from minors

110-6
Records 110-6; 110-7
Registration 110-7
Reports 110-3
Right of appeal 110-4
Sales 110-1
Severability 110-10
Vehicles 110-7
Violations and penalties

110-9
Water meters 110-1
Yard sales 110-1

JUNK DEALERS
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-1;
110-2; 110-3; 110-6;
110-7

JUNKYARDS
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3; 275-10.8

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.12

Industrial Zoning Districts
275-7.3

Performance Standards
275-28.4

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

JUVENILES
See MINORS

— K —
KENNELS

Home Occupations 275-24.7
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2

— L —
LANDFILLS

Industrial Zoning Districts
275-7.3

SOLID WASTE 210-1
ZONING 275-2.2

LANDLORDS
ZONING 275-29.11;

275-29.12
LANDSCAPING

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.5
Conditional Uses 275-21.1;

275-21.4
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.8

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.3

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

See Also SCREENS AND
SCREENING

Special Exceptions
275-22.1; 275-22.3

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-6; 218-12

WATER 260-30
ZONING 275-1.3; 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-27.2;
275-29.13

LAWNS
See Also BRUSH, GRASS

AND WEEDS
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.8

See Also GRASS
CLIPPINGS

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

Performance Standards
275-28.3

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-6; 218-14

WATER 260-30
See Also YARD WASTE
ZONING 275-20.2

LEAF WASTE
See YARD WASTE

LEASHING
ANIMALS 28-3
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
LEGAL BASIS AND

DEPARTMENTAL
ORGANIZATION

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
7-1\7-5

Administrative departments
7-2

Appointment and
compensation of
department heads 7-4

Appointments 7-4; 7-5
Assessor 7-2
Budget 7-4
Chief of Police 7-2

IMPROVEMENTS...

ROCHESTER INDEX

20 Supp 2, May 2019

L

8/29/19 

75 



City Clerk 7-2
City Council 7-3
City Manager 7-3
City Solicitor 7-2
Compensation 7-4
Department staffs 7-5
Fire Chief 7-2
Health Officer 7-2
Legal basis 7-1
Library 7-2
Licenses and permits 7-2
Powers and duties 7-3
Powers and duties of

department heads 7-3
Purchasing Agent 7-2
Records 7-2
Tax Collector 7-2

LEGISLATIVE BODY
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

7-46\7-49
Advisory Board 7-49
Citations 7-46
City Clerk 7-46; 7-47; 7-48
City Council 7-46; 7-47;

7-49
City Manager 7-48
City Seal 7-48
Conflict of interest 7-49
Conflicts of interest 7-49
Hearings 7-49
Historic districts 7-49
Horses 7-48
Inspections 7-46
Introduction of ordinances,

resolutions and
petitions 7-47

Meetings 7-47; 7-49
Ordinances 7-46
Paper 7-46
Planning Board 7-49
Records 7-46
Schools 7-49
Utilities 7-49
Zoning Board of

Adjustment 7-49
LETTERS OF CREDIT

ZONING 275-27.3
LIABILITY

Adoption of Code 1-15
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-16

CITY CHARTER C-63
Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Fire Prevention 75-14
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-9

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-19

Pinball and Video Games
and Machines 22-18

SEWERS 200-7; 200-8;
200-19; 200-20

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-3;
223-8; 223-25

WATER 260-8; 260-27
ZONING 275-29.12

LIABILITY INSURANCE
SEWERS 200-6
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-25
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-54
WATER 260-6

LIBRARY
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-24; 7-27
CITY CHARTER C-22
Finance 7-51

Legal Basis and
Departmental
Organization 7-2

Municipal Departments
7-15

PUBLIC BUILDINGS
183-1

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-27.3

LICENSES AND PERMITS
Accessory Uses 275-23.1;

275-23.2
Adoption of Code 1-15
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-3

ALARM SYSTEMS 16-4;
16-9; 16-10

ANIMALS 28-2
Aviation Overlay District

(AOD) 275-11.7
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-24; 7-31
Bowling Alleys and Billiard

Tables 22-4
Boxing and Wrestling

Exhibitions 22-2
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-4; 40-5; 40-7; 40-8;
40-10; 40-15; 40-18

See Also BUILDING
PERMITS

CITY CHARTER C-43-a
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.4
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.9; 275-12.10

Finance 7-66
Fire Prevention 75-7; 75-9;

75-10; 75-16
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.4; 275-13.5

Food Service
Establishments 80-2;
80-3; 80-4; 80-5; 80-6;
80-7; 80-8; 80-11

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.2

Hawkers, Peddlers and
Itinerant Vendors
171-2; 171-4; 171-5;
171-6; 171-7; 171-8;
171-9; 171-10; 171-11

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-2;
94-11

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.9;
275-14.11; 275-14.14

Home Occupations 275-24.1
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-2;
110-3; 110-4; 110-5;
110-7; 110-9

Legal Basis and
Departmental
Organization 7-2

LICENSING BOARD
123-1

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4; 135-7; 135-8

Municipal Departments 7-9;
7-20; 7-22

Nonconforming Property
275-30.3; 275-30.8

Observances of Sundays
167-2; 167-3

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-27

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-2;
158-4

PAWNBROKERS 162-1
Performance Standards

275-28.2; 275-28.3;
275-28.4; 275-28.5

Pinball and Video Games
and Machines 22-6;
22-7; 22-8; 22-10;
22-11; 22-12; 22-13;
22-15; 22-16; 22-18

Public Dances, Circuses and
Parades 22-3

Roads and Parking 275-26.2
SEWERS 200-1; 200-4;

200-6; 200-7; 200-17;
200-33

Soliciting Funds 171-13
SOLID WASTE 210-1;

210-15
Special Downtown Overlay

District (SDOD)
275-15.2

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-2; 218-6; 218-7;
218-9; 218-10; 218-11;
218-12; 218-13; 218-15

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-7;
223-8; 223-11; 223-22;
223-23; 223-25

Taxicabs 254-46; 254-47;
254-48; 254-49; 254-50

Theaters 22-1
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-25;
254-55; 254-56; 254-59

WATER 260-6; 260-30;
260-33; 260-35;
260-38; 260-42;
260-43; 260-44

ZONING 275-2.1; 275-2.2;
275-3.1; 275-3.3;
275-3.4; 275-19.2;
275-20.2; 275-27.7;
275-29.3; 275-29.5;
275-29.6; 275-29.12;
275-29.13; 275-29.14

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.2

LICENSING BOARD
Chief of Police 123-1
City Manager 123-1
Fire Department 123-1
Licenses and permits 123-1
Licensing Board established

123-1
Powers and duties 123-1

LIENS
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.14
Performance Standards

275-28.4
Purchases and Contracts

7-41
SEWERS 200-25; 200-28;

200-32
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-9
WATER 260-18; 260-21;

260-31
ZONING 275-20.2;

275-27.3

LIGHTING
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-3

Aviation Overlay District
(AOD) 275-11.8

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.1;
275-6.5

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Fire Prevention 75-6
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-15;
80-27

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER 167-5

Performance Standards
275-28.4

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.5

See Also
STREETLIGHTING

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-14

ZONING 275-20.2;
275-29.2; 275-29.9;
275-29.11; 275-29.12;
275-29.13

LITTER
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.6

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

LIVESTOCK
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
ANIMALS 28-4
See Also HORSES
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

LOITERING
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-3

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-5

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER 167-6; 167-11

LOTS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-3

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-29

CEMETERIES 49-2
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.3;
275-6.4; 275-6.5

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.1; 275-12.5;
275-12.9

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.1; 275-33.2;
275-33.3; 275-33.4;
275-33.7; 275-33.8;
275-33.9

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.3

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.1;
275-8.3; 275-8.5;
275-8.7; 275-8.9;
275-8.10

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-5

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.6;
275-14.8

LEGAL BASIS AND DEPARTMENTAL
ORGANIZATION...

ROCHESTER INDEX

21 Supp 2, May 2019

L

8/29/19 

76 



MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-3; 135-4; 135-5

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-1

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER 167-6

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.2; 275-5.5

Roads and Parking
275-26.2; 275-26.5;
275-26.6

SEWERS 200-8
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-6; 218-10

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-9;
223-20

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-7;
254-11; 254-15; 254-24

WATER 260-8
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.5;

275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.4; 275-27.6;
275-29.13; 275-29.14

— M —
MAGAZINES

ADULT-ORIENTED
ESTABLISHMENTS
11-2

Municipal Departments
7-15

ZONING 275-2.2
MAJOR SUBDIVISIONS

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.2
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-6
ZONING 275-2.2

MANHOLES
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-15
SEWERS 200-2

MANUFACTURED HOME
PARKS

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.3

See Also MOBILE HOME
PARKS

ZONING 275-2.2
MANUFACTURED HOMES

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.5

See Also MOBILE HOMES
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-27.3
MANURE

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-3;
94-12

SEWERS 200-16
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-20.2

MARINAS
ZONING 275-2.2

MARKERS
Aviation Overlay District

(AOD) 275-11.8
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.4
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-10
ZONING 275-1.11; 275-2.2

MASTER PLAN
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-37
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.1
Conditional Uses 275-21.1;

275-21.3
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.1; 275-33.2
PLANNING BOARD

176-8; 176-9
Roads and Parking 275-26.6
Special Exceptions

275-22.1; 275-22.2
ZONING 275-1.3; 275-3.1
Zoning Board of

Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

MAYOR
Appointment, Election and

Removal of City
Officers 7-76; 7-78;
7-79

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-28; 7-29;
7-30; 7-32; 7-35

CITY CHARTER C-4; C-6;
C-7; C-8; C-9; C-10;
C-10-a; C-69; C-71;
C-72; C-74

Finance 7-65; 7-66
Fire Prevention 75-16
Municipal Elections 7-69;

7-70; 7-71
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-3
PLANNING BOARD 176-5
Salaries 7-44
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-1
WATER 260-28
ZONING 275-3.5
Zoning Board of

Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.4

MEETINGS
Appointment, Election and

Removal of City
Officers 7-76; 7-78

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-37

CITY CHARTER C-7; C-9;
C-10; C-14; C-32;
C-33; C-34; C-36;
C-56; C-68

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.10

Legislative Body 7-47; 7-49
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-5
PLANNING BOARD

176-6; 176-9
Public Dances, Circuses and

Parades 22-3
Salaries 7-44
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-10

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-29

WATER 260-30
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-19.2

MEMBERSHIP
Appointment, Election and

Removal of City
Officers 7-79

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-28

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.4;
275-14.9

PLANNING BOARD 176-5
SEWERS 200-30
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-1;
223-9

WATER 260-28
Zoning Board of

Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.4

METERS
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-15
Performance Standards

275-28.3
SEWERS 200-1; 200-8;

200-9; 200-10; 200-11;
200-12; 200-13;
200-14; 200-16;
200-24; 200-29; 200-33

WATER 260-2; 260-3;
260-4; 260-5; 260-6;
260-8; 260-9; 260-10;
260-11; 260-12;
260-13; 260-14;
260-24; 260-27; 260-33

MINING
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3

ZONING 275-2.2
MINOR SUBDIVISIONS

ZONING 275-2.2
MINORS

ADULT-ORIENTED
ESTABLISHMENTS
11-2; 11-3

JUNK AND
SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-6

Pinball and Video Games
and Machines 22-13;
22-14

MINUTES
PLANNING BOARD 176-9
See Also RECORDS

MIXED USE DISTRICTS
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.5
ZONING 275-1.8;

275-29.13
MOBILE HOME PARKS

Accessory buildings and
structures 135-3; 135-5

Administration and
enforcement 135-8

Air pollution 135-4
Animals 135-4
Appeals 135-8
Application for approval

135-6
Authority 135-2
Board of Health 135-4
Buffers 135-4
Building permits 135-4
Cable television 135-5
Cats 135-4
Charges 135-7
City Council 135-2
City Manager 135-7; 135-8
City Solicitor 135-8
Construction 135-1; 135-4;

135-5; 135-6
Costs and expenses 135-7
Definitions 135-3
Department of Public Works

135-6
Design standards 135-5
Dogs 135-4
Drainage 135-5

Drainage plan 135-5
Driveways 135-5
Fences 135-3; 135-4; 135-5
Fire Chief 135-7; 135-8
Fire Department 135-4
Fire hazards 135-4
Fire hydrants 135-4
Fire protection 135-4
Fires 135-4
Firesafety 135-8
Flammables 135-4
Fuel 135-4
Garages 135-3; 135-5
Garbage, rubbish and refuse

135-4
Gas 135-4
General requirements 135-4
Grades and grading 135-5
Health hazards 135-4
Health Officer 135-4; 135-7;

135-8
Heating 135-3; 135-4
Height regulations 135-4
Improvements 135-7
Insects 135-4
Inspections 135-4; 135-7;

135-8
Landscaping 135-4
Lawns 135-4
Licenses and permits 135-4;

135-7; 135-8
Licensing 135-7
Litter 135-4
Lots 135-3; 135-4; 135-5
Major subdivisions 135-6
See Also

MANUFACTURED
HOME PARKS

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-3; 135-4; 135-5;
135-6; 135-7; 135-8

Mobile homes 135-3; 135-4;
135-5

Notices 135-7
Nuisances 135-4
Off-street parking 135-5
Open fires 135-4
Open space 135-5
Parking 135-5
Planning Board 135-6;

135-7; 135-8
Plumbing 135-3
Police Chief 135-7; 135-8
Porches 135-3; 135-4
Purpose and intent 135-1
Records 135-3
Recreation areas 135-5;

135-7
Registry 135-3
Rodents 135-4
Roofs 135-4
Safety standards 135-4;

135-5; 135-8
Sales 135-7
Sanitary facilities 135-4
Sanitation 135-3; 135-7
Screens and screening

135-3; 135-4
Setbacks 135-4; 135-5
Sewers 135-5; 135-7;

200-24
Shrubs 135-4
Solid waste 135-4
Storage 135-3; 135-4; 135-5
Storage tanks 135-4
Stormwater 135-5
Trees 135-4
Utilities 135-3; 135-4; 135-6
Vehicles 135-3
Violations and penalties

135-7; 135-8
Waivers 135-7
Walls 135-4

LOTS...

ROCHESTER INDEX

22 Supp 2, May 2019

M

8/29/19 

77 



Water 135-3; 135-4; 135-5;
135-7; 260-3

Water supply 135-5
Yards 135-3; 135-4
ZONING 275-20.2
Zoning Administrator

135-7; 135-8
Zoning Board of

Adjustment 135-8
MOBILE HOMES

See Also
MANUFACTURED
HOMES

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-3; 135-4; 135-5

WATER 260-2
ZONING 275-2.2

MONUMENTS
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-29
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.4
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
PLANNING BOARD 176-9
ZONING 275-2.2

MOTELS
See Also HOTELS
SOLID WASTE 210-1
ZONING 275-2.2

MOTOR VEHICLES
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3

CITATIONS 54-3
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.12

Finance 7-53
Hawkers, Peddlers and

Itinerant Vendors 171-5
Municipal Departments

7-22
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-26
Taxicabs 254-44; 254-45;

254-49
See Also VEHICLES
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-11; 254-15;
254-24; 254-29

ZONING 275-2.2
MOVING OF BUILDINGS

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-7

MULCHING
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-7; 218-9

MULTIFAMILY
DWELLINGS

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-2

Home Occupations 275-24.1
SEWERS 200-7
SOLID WASTE 210-1;

210-12
ZONING 275-19.2;

275-20.2
MUNICIPAL

DEPARTMENTS
Abandonment 7-16
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

7-6\7-23
Administrative head of City

7-6
Advertising 7-10
Alarm systems 7-12
Appeals 7-8
Assessing Department 7-8
Assessments 7-8

Assessor 7-8
Bonds 7-11; 7-20
Bridges 7-18
Brush, grass and weeds 7-18
Budget 7-8; 7-9; 7-10; 7-11;

7-12; 7-13; 7-14; 7-15;
7-16; 7-17; 7-18; 7-19;
7-20; 7-21; 7-22; 7-23

Charges 7-18
Chief of Police 7-17
City Clerk 7-20
City Council 7-11; 7-14;

7-20; 7-21
City Manager 7-6; 7-11;

7-14
City Solicitor 7-14
City Treasurer 7-11; 7-20;

7-22
Construction 7-9; 7-10; 7-16
Department of Building,

Zoning, and Licensing
Services 7-9

Economic Development
Department 7-10

Fees 7-20; 7-21; 7-22
Finance Department 7-11
Fire Chief 7-12
Fire Department 7-12
Fire hazards 7-12
Fire hydrants 7-18
Fires 7-12
Health Department 7-13
Health Officer 7-13
Inspections 7-12
Legal Department 7-14
Library 7-15
Library Department 7-15
Licenses and permits 7-9;

7-20; 7-22
Magazines 7-15
Motor vehicles 7-22
Notices 7-8; 7-22
Parking 7-16
Parks and recreation 7-21
Planning and Development

Department 7-16
Playgrounds 7-16; 7-21
Plumbing 7-9
Police Department 7-17
Public Works Department

7-18
Purchasing Agent 7-19
Purchasing Department 7-19
Records 7-8; 7-9; 7-11;

7-12; 7-13; 7-15; 7-17;
7-18; 7-19; 7-20; 7-21;
7-22; 7-23

Records Department 7-20
Recreation and Arena

Department 7-21
Reports 7-11; 7-16
Septic tanks 7-13
Sidewalks 7-18
Signs 7-9
Swimming pools 7-21
Tax Collection Department

7-22
Tax Collector 7-8; 7-22
Trees 7-18
Trustees 7-11
Warrants 7-8; 7-11
Water 7-18
Water supply 7-13; 7-18
Welfare Department 7-23

MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

7-68\7-72
City Clerk 7-69; 7-70; 7-72
City Council 7-69
Conduct of municipal

elections 7-68
Fees 7-69; 7-72

Filing declaration of
candidacy 7-69

Incompatible candidacies
7-70

Incompatible offices 7-71
Mayor 7-69; 7-70; 7-71
Recount 7-72
Schools 7-69; 7-70; 7-71

MUSEUMS
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

— N —
NATURAL FEATURES

ZONING 275-1.11
NATURAL RESOURCES

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.1

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.6

Finance 7-64
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-8

NEWSPAPER
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.6
See Also PAPER
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-20
ZONING 275-2.2

NEWSRACKS
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-19;
223-20; 223-21;
223-22; 223-23;
223-24; 223-25;
223-26; 223-29

NOISE
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
ANIMALS 28-4
See Also DISORDERLY

CONDUCT
See Also DISTURBING

THE PEACE
Home Occupations 275-24.1
NUISANCES 149-2
See Also PEACE AND

GOOD ORDER
Performance Standards

275-28.2; 275-28.3
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-8;
254-10

ZONING 275-2.2
NONCONFORMING LOTS

Nonconforming Property
275-30.1; 275-30.5

ZONING 275-2.2
NONCONFORMING

PROPERTY
Abandonment 275-30.4
Building permits 275-30.2
Changes to nonconforming

property 275-30.3
Conditional uses 275-30.4
Conservation Commission

275-30.3; 275-30.6
Construction 275-30.2
Drainage 275-30.5
Height regulations 275-30.1;

275-30.4
Historic districts 275-30.3;

275-30.6
Introduction 275-30.1
Licenses and permits

275-30.3; 275-30.8
Nonconforming lots

275-30.1; 275-30.5

Nonconforming structures
275-30.1; 275-30.2;
275-30.6; 275-30.8

Nonconforming uses
275-30.1; 275-30.3;
275-30.4

Nonconformities 275-30.3;
275-30.6; 275-30.7;
275-30.9

Notices 275-30.2
Other nonconforming site

conditions 275-30.7
Other terms 275-30.9
Permitted uses 275-30.4
Planning Board 275-30.2;

275-30.3; 275-30.6;
275-30.7

Reconstruction 275-30.8
Records 275-30.5
Registry 275-30.5
Setbacks 275-30.1;

275-30.4; 275-30.5;
275-30.6

Sewers 275-30.5
Signs 275-30.9
Site plan review and

approval 275-30.2
Special exceptions

275-30.4; 275-30.5;
275-30.8

Vested nonconforming
property 275-30.2

Water 275-30.5
ZONING 275-30.1\275-30.9
Zoning districts 275-30.4;

275-30.5
NONCONFORMING SIGNS

See Also SIGNS
ZONING 275-29.3;

275-29.11
NONCONFORMING

STRUCTURES
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.10

Nonconforming Property
275-30.1; 275-30.2;
275-30.6; 275-30.8

ZONING 275-2.2
NONCONFORMING USES

Aquifer Protection Overlay
District (APOD)
275-10.10

Aviation Overlay District
(AOD) 275-11.1;
275-11.5; 275-11.7

See Also CONDITIONAL
USES

Nonconforming Property
275-30.1; 275-30.3;
275-30.4

See Also PERMITTED
USES

See Also PROHIBITED
USES

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2
NONCONFORMITIES

Nonconforming Property
275-30.3; 275-30.6;
275-30.7; 275-30.9

ZONING 275-19.2
NONRESIDENTIAL

DISTRICTS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2

NOTICES
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Adoption of Code 1-8
ALARM SYSTEMS 16-8;

16-9
Appointment, Election and

Removal of City
Officers 7-76

MOBILE HOME PARKS...

ROCHESTER INDEX

23 Supp 2, May 2019

N

8/29/19 

78 



Aquifer Protection Overlay
District (APOD)
275-10.13

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-9; 40-12; 40-18

CITY CHARTER C-7;
C-32; C-42; C-66; C-70

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.9

Finance 7-52; 7-57; 7-62;
7-63; 7-64; 7-67

Fire Prevention 75-9
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.4; 275-13.6

Food Service
Establishments 80-5;
80-7; 80-8; 80-11

Hawkers, Peddlers and
Itinerant Vendors
171-8; 171-9

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-8;
94-9

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.10;
275-14.14

JUNK AND
SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-3;
110-4; 110-5

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-7

Municipal Departments 7-8;
7-22

Nonconforming Property
275-30.2

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-2

Performance Standards
275-28.4

Pinball and Video Games
and Machines 22-15;
22-16

SEWERS 200-3; 200-7;
200-17; 200-20;
200-25; 200-26; 200-29

Special Downtown Overlay
District (SDOD)
275-15.2

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-7; 218-10; 218-13;
218-14

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-11;
223-23

Taxicabs 254-50
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-12;
254-16; 254-17;
254-22; 254-31; 254-41

WATER 260-7; 260-15;
260-18; 260-19;
260-20; 260-22;
260-24; 260-27;
260-30; 260-38; 260-43

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.1;
275-3.4; 275-3.5;
275-20.2; 275-29.3;
275-29.10; 275-29.12

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.3

NOTICES OF VIOLATIONS
Performance Standards

275-28.5
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-15

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-41;
254-42

See Also VIOLATIONS
AND PENALTIES

ZONING 275-3.4
Zoning Board of

Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

NUDITY
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-2

NUISANCES
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
ANIMALS 28-4
Burning 149-1
Burning of refuse and

garbage 149-1
Chief of Police 149-2
Fees 149-2
Garbage, rubbish and refuse

149-1
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-5;
94-8; 94-9; 94-10;
94-11

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

Noise 149-2
Noise; use of public address

system 149-2
NUISANCES 149-3
Performance Standards

275-28.1; 275-28.2
SEWERS 200-14; 200-16
Sidewalks 149-2
SOLID WASTE 210-1
Special Exceptions 275-22.2
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-28
Trash 149-1
Violations and penalties

149-3
WATER 260-14
Zoning Board of

Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

NURSING HOMES
Conditional Uses 275-21.4
See Also

CONVALESCENT
HOMES

Food Service
Establishments 80-4

Home Occupations 275-24.7
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

— O —
OBSERVANCES OF

SUNDAYS
Activities permissible on

Sunday 167-1
City Council 167-1; 167-3
License required 167-2
Licenses and permits 167-2;

167-3
Motion pictures, lectures,

concerts and theatricals
167-3

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER 167-1\167-4

Retail establishments 167-4

OBSTRUCTIONS
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-3

Aviation Overlay District
(AOD) 275-11.4;
275-11.9

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.8

Fire Prevention 75-16
SEWERS 200-16
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-13;
223-19; 223-20;
223-21; 223-22;
223-23; 223-24;
223-25; 223-26; 223-29

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-25

OCCUPANCY,
CERTIFICATES OF

See CERTIFICATES OF
OCCUPANCY

OCCUPANCY PERMITS
See CERTIFICATES OF

OCCUPANCY
ODORS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
See Also FUMES
See Also GAS
See Also GASES
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-11;
94-13

Home Occupations 275-24.1
Performance Standards

275-28.4
Roads and Parking 275-26.3
SEWERS 200-16
ZONING 275-2.2

OFFENSES
See VIOLATIONS AND

PENALTIES
OFFICERS AND

EMPLOYEES
Adoption of Code 1-15
Appointment, Election and

Removal of City
Officers 7-73; 7-74

CITY CHARTER C-15;
C-61

PLANNING BOARD 176-9
Salaries 7-43

OFFICIAL MAP
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3

PLANNING BOARD 176-9
See Also ZONING MAPS

OFFICIAL ZONING MAP
See ZONING MAPS

OFF-ROAD VEHICLES
See Also ALL-TERRAIN

VEHICLES
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-11
ZONING 275-2.2

OFF-STREET LOADING
See PARKING

OFF-STREET PARKING
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.4
Conditional Uses 275-21.1
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-5
See Also PARKING
Roads and Parking 275-26.1
Special Downtown Overlay

District (SDOD)
275-15.2

Special Exceptions
275-22.1; 275-22.3

ONE-FAMILY
DWELLINGS

See SINGLE-FAMILY
DWELLINGS

ONE-WAY STREETS
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-2
OPEN BURNING

See BURNING
See FIRES

OPEN CONTAINERS
PEACE AND GOOD

ORDER 167-9
OPEN FIRES

See Also BURNING
See Also FIRES
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
OPEN SPACE

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.1; 275-33.3;
275-33.6; 275-33.9

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-5

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.4

ZONING 275-2.2;
275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.3; 275-29.13

OUTDOOR BURNING
See FIRES

OUTDOOR DINING
See DINING FACILITIES

OUTDOOR DINING
ESTABLISHMENTS

Accessibility 80-23
Advertising 80-26
Alcoholic beverages 80-21;

80-22
Americans with Disabilities

Act 80-23
Approval of agreement

80-28
Area service agreement;

season 80-16
Certificates of insurance

80-19
City Manager 80-14; 80-15;

80-16; 80-18; 80-22;
80-25; 80-26; 80-28;
80-29; 80-30

Costs and expenses 80-18
Curbs 80-15
Damaging or obstructing

public facilities 80-20
Design standards 80-26
Fee 80-17
Fees 80-17
Fire Department 80-27
FOOD AND FOOD

SERVICE 80-14\80-31
Garbage, rubbish and refuse

80-27
Height regulations 80-26
Hours of operation 80-21
Improvements 80-26
Indemnification; insurance

80-19
Inspections 80-27
Insurance 80-19
Liability 80-19
Licenses and permits 80-27
Lighting 80-15; 80-27
Manholes 80-15
Meters 80-15
Motor vehicles 80-26
Number and location of

establishments 80-30
Other terms and conditions

80-29

NOTICES...

ROCHESTER INDEX

24 Supp 2, May 2019

O

8/29/19 

79 



Paper 80-27
Parking 80-15
Pedestrians 80-26
Reports 80-22
Requests for use of City

property 80-14
Restaurants 80-26
Restoration of area 80-18
Revocation of area service

agreement 80-25
Rules and regulations 80-27
Safety standards 80-26
Sidewalks 80-15; 80-20;

80-26; 80-31
Signs 80-15
Site design standards for

establishments with
alcohol service 80-26

Site plans 80-15
Site plans required 80-15
Street trees 80-15; 80-20
Suspension of area service

agreement 80-24
Trash 80-15; 80-20
Trees 80-15
Use of property other than

sidewalks 80-31
Utilities 80-20
Violations and penalties

80-22
OVERNIGHT PARKING

OR CAMPING ON
CITY-OWNED
PROPERTY

Acts prohibited 167-17
Authority 167-15
Camping 167-15; 167-18
Camps 167-17; 167-18
Charges 167-20
Chief of Police 167-19
Citations 167-22
City Council 167-15
City Manager 167-19
Costs and expenses 167-21
Definitions 167-18
Emergencies 167-19
Exceptions 167-19
Parking 167-15; 167-20
PEACE AND GOOD

ORDER 167-15\167-23
Police Department 167-21
Police officers 167-22
Purpose 167-16
Recreational vehicles

167-17; 167-18
Removal of vehicle 167-21
Responsibility 167-20
Safety standards 167-16
Severability 167-23
Towing 167-21
Vehicles 167-17; 167-18;

167-20; 167-21
Violations and penalties

167-20; 167-21; 167-22

— P —
PAPER

Appointment, Election and
Removal of City
Officers 7-77

Legislative Body 7-46
See Also NEWSPAPER
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-27
SEWERS 200-16
SOLID WASTE 210-1;

210-19
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-9

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-8

ZONING 275-2.2;
275-29.11

PARADES
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-5
Public Dances, Circuses and

Parades 22-3
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-8
PARKING

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-3

Aquifer Protection Overlay
District (APOD)
275-10.3

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.1;
275-6.3; 275-6.4;
275-6.5

Conditional Uses 275-21.1;
275-21.4

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.9; 275-12.12

Fire Prevention 75-9
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.5

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.3;
275-8.7; 275-8.9

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.10

Home Occupations 275-24.1
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-5
Municipal Departments

7-16
See Also OFF-STREET

PARKING
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-15
Overnight Parking or

Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-15; 167-20

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-1

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER 167-6; 167-9

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.2; 275-5.5

Roads and Parking
275-26.1; 275-26.2;
275-26.3

Special Downtown Overlay
District (SDOD)
275-15.2

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-20

Taxicabs 254-49
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-6; 254-7; 254-11;
254-13; 254-14;
254-15; 254-16;
254-17; 254-19;
254-21; 254-24;
254-25; 254-26;
254-28; 254-29;
254-30; 254-31;
254-37; 254-40; 254-43

ZONING 275-2.2;
275-20.2; 275-27.1;
275-27.2

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.2

PARKING METERS
See METERS

PARKING OFF-STREET
See OFF-STREET

PARKING
PARKS AND

RECREATION
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.3
Municipal Departments

7-21
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-1;
158-2; 158-4; 158-5;
158-6

PLANNING BOARD 176-8
See Also PLAYGROUNDS
See Also RECREATION

AREAS
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-1;
223-20

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-7;
254-11

ZONING 275-1.3
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA
Alcoholic beverages 158-2
Animals 158-2
Appointments 158-3
Appropriation; reports

158-6
Budget 158-6
Charges 158-2; 158-6
City Council 158-2; 158-3;

158-6
City Manager 158-4; 158-6
City Treasurer 158-6
Conduct prohibited in parks

and Arena 158-2
Defecation 158-2
Definitions 158-1
Disturbing the peace 158-2
Dogs 158-2
Fees 158-3
Fences 158-2
Fires 158-2
Gutters 158-2
Leashing 158-2
Licenses and permits 158-2;

158-4
Loitering 158-5
Lots 158-1
Mayor 158-3
Meetings 158-5
Monuments 158-2
Notices 158-2
Parades 158-5
Parking 158-1
Parks and recreation 158-1;

158-2; 158-4; 158-5;
158-6

Playgrounds 158-1
Police officers 158-2
Recreation and Arena

Commission 158-3
Recreation and Arena

Director 158-4
Recreation areas 158-1
Reports 158-6
Sales 158-5
Schools 158-3; 158-5
Sewers 158-2
Shrubs 158-2
Signs 158-2; 158-5
Smoke 158-2
Smoking 158-2
Storm sewers 158-2
Swimming pools 158-1
Toilet facilities 158-2
Trees 158-2
Urination 158-2

Use of Arena and parks
158-5

Violations and penalties
158-7

Waivers 158-2
Water 158-2

PATIOS
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.10
ZONING 275-2.2

PAWNBROKERS
Fees 162-1
Licenses and permits 162-1
Pawnbroker's license 162-1
PAWNBROKERS 162-1

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER

Air rifles 167-13
Alcoholic beverages 167-9
Chief of Police 167-5
City Manager 167-5; 167-6;

167-9
Consumption of liquor on

private property 167-10
Damaging streetlights 167-5
See Also DISORDERLY

CONDUCT
Disturbing funeral

processions 167-7
See Also DISTURBING

THE PEACE
False alarms 167-8
False alarms and tampering

with fire alarm
apparatus 167-8

Fire alarms 167-8
Fire Chief 167-5
Games and loitering on City

parking lots 167-6
Glass 167-8
Lighting 167-5
Loitering 167-6; 167-11
Loitering on school property

and Hanson Pines
Recreation Area 167-11

Lots 167-6
Miscellaneous Police

Regulations 167-5\
167-12

See Also NOISE
See Observances of Sundays

167-1\167-4
Open containers 167-9
See Overnight Parking or

Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-15\167-23

Parking 167-6; 167-9
Possession or consumption

of liquor on City
property 167-9

Recreation areas 167-11
Schools 167-11
Sidewalks 167-9
Streetlighting 167-5
Use in compact part of City

167-13
Use of Air Rifles 167-13\

167-14
Violations and penalties

167-12; 167-14
PEDALCYCLES

See BICYCLES
PEDDLING AND

SOLICITING
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-37
Hawkers, Peddlers and

Itinerant Vendors 171-8
See Hawkers, Peddlers and

Itinerant Vendors
171-1\171-12

See Also SALES

OUTDOOR DINING
ESTABLISHMENTS...

ROCHESTER INDEX

25 Supp 2, May 2019

P

8/29/19 

80 



See Soliciting Funds 171-13
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-18
See Also VENDORS

PEDESTRIAN
WALKWAYS

See CROSSWALKS
PEDESTRIANS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.1;
275-6.3; 275-6.4

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.1
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-26
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.5
Special Exceptions 275-22.2
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-20;
223-21

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-6; 254-32; 254-33

ZONING 275-2.2;
275-29.11; 275-29.13

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

PENALTIES FOR
OFFENSES

See VIOLATIONS AND
PENALTIES

PENSIONS
Adoption of Code 1-15
See Also RETIREMENT

PERFORMANCE
STANDARDS

Abandonment 275-28.4
Administration 275-28.5
Air pollution 275-28.2;

275-28.4
Alarm systems 275-28.3
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.6; 275-10.7;
275-10.9; 275-10.11;
275-10.13

Board of Appeals 275-28.4
Commercial districts

275-28.3
Conditional Uses 275-21.1
Construction 275-28.3;

275-28.4
Costs and expenses

275-28.5
See Also DESIGN

STANDARDS
Dumpsters 275-28.4
Dust 275-28.2; 275-28.4
Electrical disturbances

275-28.2; 275-28.4
Emergencies 275-28.3
Fire Department 275-28.2
Fire hazards 275-28.4
Flammables 275-28.2
Fumes 275-28.4
Gases 275-28.4
General provisions 275-28.2
Glare 275-28.2; 275-28.4
Grievances 275-28.4
Groundwater 275-28.4
Hazardous materials and

substances 275-28.4
Hearings 275-28.3;

275-28.4
Heating 275-28.2; 275-28.4
Home Occupations 275-24.1
Hospitals 275-28.3
Industrial districts 275-28.3

Insects 275-28.4
Investigations 275-28.5
Junkyards 275-28.4
Lawns 275-28.3
Licenses and permits

275-28.2; 275-28.3;
275-28.4; 275-28.5

Liens 275-28.4
Lighting 275-28.4
Meters 275-28.3
Noise 275-28.2; 275-28.3
Notices 275-28.4
Notices of violations

275-28.5
Nuisances 275-28.1;

275-28.2
Odors 275-28.4
Other specific standards

275-28.4
Performance Standards

275-28.1; 275-28.2;
275-28.5

Planning Board 275-28.2;
275-28.5

Police Department 275-28.3
Ponds 275-28.4
Purpose 275-28.1
Radiation 275-28.2;

275-28.4
Registration 275-28.4
Rodents 275-28.4
Safety standards 275-28.2;

275-28.3; 275-28.4
Screens and screening

275-28.4
Septic systems 275-28.4
Sidewalks 275-28.4
Site plan review and

approval 275-28.4;
275-28.5

Site plans 275-28.2;
275-28.4

Smoke 275-28.2; 275-28.4
Snowmobiles 275-28.3
Special exceptions

275-22.1; 275-22.3;
275-28.3

Storage 275-28.4
Tenants 275-28.2
Tests 275-28.3
Trespassing 275-28.4
Vermin 275-28.2; 275-28.4
Vibrations 275-28.2;

275-28.4
Violations and penalties

275-28.2; 275-28.5
Water 275-28.4
Water pollution 275-28.2;

275-28.4
ZONING 275-3.1;

275-20.2; 275-28.1\
275-28.5

Zoning districts 275-28.3
PERMIT PARKING

See PARKING
PERMITTED USES

Aquifer Protection Overlay
District (APOD)
275-10.7

See Also CONDITIONAL
USES

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.9

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.10

Nonconforming Property
275-30.4

See Also
NONCONFORMING
USES

Roads and Parking 275-26.6

Special Zoning Districts
275-9.2

ZONING 275-2.2;
275-18.3; 275-18.7;
275-19.2; 275-20.1

PERSONNEL
See OFFICERS AND

EMPLOYEES
PERSONNEL POLICIES

See OFFICERS AND
EMPLOYEES

PET WASTE
See FECAL MATTER

PET WASTE DISPOSAL
See FECAL MATTER

PINBALL AND VIDEO
GAMES AND
MACHINES

Amusement devices 22-5;
22-7; 22-10; 22-13;
22-14; 22-15; 22-17

Amusements 22-5
AMUSEMENTS AND

ENTERTAINMENT
22-5\22-19

Appeals 22-16
Application for license 22-8
Birth certificates 22-14
Chief of Police 22-7; 22-9;

22-12; 22-17
City Clerk 22-16
City Council 22-16
Definitions 22-5
Display of license 22-11
False representation of age

22-14
Fees 22-10
Gambling 22-6; 22-17
Gambling devices not

permitted 22-6
Hearings 22-16
Hours of operation by

minors 22-13
Impoundment 22-17
Inspection 22-9
Inspections 22-9
Liability 22-18
License fees 22-10
License required 22-7
Licenses and permits 22-6;

22-7; 22-8; 22-10;
22-11; 22-12; 22-13;
22-15; 22-16; 22-18

Minors 22-13; 22-14
Notices 22-15; 22-16
Police Department 22-8
Records 22-8
Revocation of license 22-15
Schools 22-13
Seizure 22-17
Seizure and destruction of

machine 22-17
Severability 22-19
Transfer of license 22-12
Violations and penalties

22-15; 22-18
PLACES OF WORSHIP

See CHURCHES
PLANNED UNIT

DEVELOPMENTS
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.5

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-2.3;
275-27.8; 275-29.13

PLANNING BOARD
Abandonment 176-8
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Appointments 176-7
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3; 275-10.6;
275-10.9; 275-10.13

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-24; 7-28;
7-32; 7-37

Bridges 176-8
City Clerk 176-4
City Manager 176-3; 176-4
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.3;
275-6.4; 275-6.5

Compensation 176-2
Compensation; holding

other municipal offices
176-2

Conditional Uses 275-21.1;
275-21.2; 275-21.3;
275-21.4

Conservation Commission
176-2

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.4; 275-12.5;
275-12.8; 275-12.9;
275-12.11; 275-12.14

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.2; 275-33.3;
275-33.4; 275-33.6;
275-33.9

Costs and expenses 176-9
Creation and composition

176-1
Granite Ridge Development

(GRD) 275-8.5;
275-8.7; 275-8.11

Hearings 176-4; 176-9;
176-10

Heating 176-8
Height regulations 176-8
Historic districts 176-2
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.4;
275-14.6; 275-14.9

Improvements 176-9
Industrial Zoning Districts

275-7.2
Investigations 176-9
Legislative Body 7-49
Master Plan 176-8; 176-9
Mayor 176-5
Meetings 176-6; 176-9
Membership 176-5
Minutes 176-9
Miscellaneous duties 176-9
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-6; 135-7; 135-8
Monuments 176-9
Nonconforming Property

275-30.2; 275-30.3;
275-30.6; 275-30.7

Officers and employees
176-9

Official Map 176-9
Organization 176-6
Parks and recreation 176-8
Performance Standards

275-28.2; 275-28.5
PLANNING BOARD

176-1; 176-2; 176-4;
176-5; 176-6; 176-7;
176-8; 176-9; 176-10

Playgrounds 176-8
Records 176-6; 176-8
Removal of members 176-4
Reports 176-9; 176-10
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.2; 275-5.5
Roads and Parking

275-26.1; 275-26.2;
275-26.4

Safety standards 176-8
Sanitation 176-8
SEWERS 200-4

PEDDLING AND SOLICITING...

ROCHESTER INDEX

26 Supp 2, May 2019

P

8/29/19 

81 



Special Downtown Overlay
District (SDOD)
275-15.2

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
Staff and finances 176-7
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-2; 218-6; 218-7;
218-8; 218-9; 218-11;
218-15

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-9;
223-10

Terms of office 176-3
Utilities 176-8; 176-9
Vacancies 176-5
Water 176-8
ZONING 275-1.7; 275-2.2;

275-3.1; 275-3.3;
275-3.5; 275-18.4;
275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.1; 275-27.3;
275-29.13; 275-29.14

Zoning Board of
Adjustment 176-2

Zoning Commission 176-10
PLANNING COMMISSION

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.14

PLASTICS
SEWERS 200-16
SOLID WASTE 210-1
ZONING 275-2.2

PLAYGROUNDS
Municipal Departments

7-16; 7-21
See Also PARKS AND

RECREATION
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-1
PLANNING BOARD 176-8
See Also RECREATION

AREAS
Special Exceptions 275-22.3

PLUMBERS
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-17
WATER 260-24

PLUMBING
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-5; 40-15

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.4

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-3

Municipal Departments 7-9
WATER 260-35; 260-38;

260-39; 260-48
ZONING 275-2.2

PLUMBING CODE
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE 40-8

SEWERS 200-7; 200-8
WATER 260-8

POLICE CHIEF
See Also CHIEF OF

POLICE
Fire Prevention 75-16
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-7; 135-8
Special Downtown Overlay

District (SDOD)
275-15.2

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-10

Taxicabs 254-47
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-14
POLICE DEPARTMENT

ADULT-ORIENTED
ESTABLISHMENTS
11-3

ALARM SYSTEMS 16-2;
16-3; 16-5; 16-8; 16-9;
16-10

Appointment, Election and
Removal of City
Officers 7-73; 7-74

Hawkers, Peddlers and
Itinerant Vendors 171-4

Municipal Departments
7-17

Overnight Parking or
Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-21

Performance Standards
275-28.3

Pinball and Video Games
and Machines 22-8

Roads and Parking 275-26.3
SOLID WASTE 210-15
Taxicabs 254-49
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-33; 254-42;
254-43; 254-53; 254-57

ZONING 275-3.4
POLICE OFFICERS

CITY CHARTER C-24;
C-25

Fire Prevention 75-9
Hawkers, Peddlers and

Itinerant Vendors
171-11

JUNK AND
SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-7

Overnight Parking or
Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-22

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-2

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-3; 254-25; 254-35;
254-37; 254-41

POLITICAL SIGNS
See Also SIGNS
ZONING 275-29.11;

275-29.13
POLLUTION

See Also AIR POLLUTION
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.1

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-7; 218-10

See Also WATER
POLLUTION

PONDS
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.1; 275-12.2;
275-12.5; 275-12.14

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.1; 275-33.4

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-3

Performance Standards
275-28.4

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.4

SEWERS 200-1

PORCHES
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.8
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.5;
275-14.14

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-3; 135-4

ZONING 275-2.2;
275-19.2; 275-20.2

POULTRY
Food Service

Establishments 80-4
ZONING 275-2.2

POWERS AND DUTIES
ANIMALS 28-2
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-27; 7-31;
7-33; 7-34; 7-35

CITY CHARTER C-18;
C-21; C-49

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.4

Legal Basis and
Departmental
Organization 7-3

LICENSING BOARD
123-1

PRIVACY PROTECTION
See CONFIDENTIALITY

PRIVIES
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-4
SEWERS 200-3

PRIVY VAULTS
SEWERS 200-3

PROHIBITED USES
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.7; 275-10.8

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.12

See Also
NONCONFORMING
USES

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-15

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.1;
275-18.6

PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-5; 40-7

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-11

PROSTITUTION
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-1

PUBLIC ASSEMBLIES
WATER 260-45; 260-46

PUBLIC BUILDINGS
City Manager 183-1; 183-2;

183-3
Improvements 183-1
Jurisdiction over public

buildings 183-1
Library 183-1
Schools 183-1
Use of buildings 183-2
Use of buildings by

Selectmen 183-3
PUBLIC DANCES,

CIRCUSES AND
PARADES

AMUSEMENTS AND
ENTERTAINMENT
22-3

Carnivals 22-3

Circuses 22-3
Fees 22-3
License required 22-3
Licenses and permits 22-3
Meetings 22-3
Parades 22-3

PUBLIC RECORDS,
ACCESS TO

See RECORDS
PUBLIC SAFETY

See SAFETY
STANDARDS

PUBLIC WORKS
DEPARTMENT

See DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC WORKS

PUD
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-2.3

PURCHASES AND
CONTRACTS

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
7-38\7-41

City Council 7-40; 7-41
City Manager 7-40; 7-41
Legal basis 7-38
Liens 7-41
Purchase orders required

7-39
Purchasing procedures 7-40
Records 7-41
Registry 7-41
Sale of tax-deeded property

7-41
Sales 7-41
Vehicles 7-40
Vendors 7-40

PURCHASING AGENT
Legal Basis and

Departmental
Organization 7-2

Municipal Departments
7-19

— Q —
QUALIFICATIONS

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-37

CITY CHARTER C-6; C-31
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.4
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-54;
254-55

QUORUM
CITY CHARTER C-7; C-32
Salaries 7-44

— R —
RADIATION

Performance Standards
275-28.2; 275-28.4

ZONING 275-2.2
RADIOACTIVE WASTE

SEWERS 200-16
RAFFLES

See GAMBLING
REAL ESTATE SIGNS

See Also SIGNS
ZONING 275-29.11;

275-29.13
RECORDS

ALARM SYSTEMS 16-9
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.13

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-29

CITY CHARTER C-54;
C-56; C-71

PLANNING BOARD...

ROCHESTER INDEX

27 Supp 2, May 2019

R

8/29/19 

82 



Conditional Uses 275-21.1;
275-21.4

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.5

Finance 7-52; 7-53; 7-59
Fire Prevention 75-13;

75-14
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.6

Food Service
Establishments 80-8;
80-10; 80-11

Hawkers, Peddlers and
Itinerant Vendors 171-4

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-2

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.4;
275-14.10; 275-14.14

JUNK AND
SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-6;
110-7

Legal Basis and
Departmental
Organization 7-2

Legislative Body 7-46
See Also MINUTES
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-3
Municipal Departments 7-8;

7-9; 7-11; 7-12; 7-13;
7-15; 7-17; 7-18; 7-19;
7-20; 7-21; 7-22; 7-23

Nonconforming Property
275-30.5

Pinball and Video Games
and Machines 22-8

PLANNING BOARD
176-6; 176-8

Purchases and Contracts
7-41

Roads and Parking 275-26.6
SEWERS 200-5; 200-16;

200-17; 200-22;
200-24; 200-32

Special Exceptions 275-22.1
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-11; 218-13

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-9;
223-10

Taxicabs 254-46; 254-48;
254-49

WATER 260-4; 260-31;
260-38

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.4;
275-27.3

RECREATION AREAS
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-5; 135-7
See Also PARKS AND

RECREATION
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-1
PEACE AND GOOD

ORDER 167-11
See Also PLAYGROUNDS
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-11
RECREATIONAL FIRES

See FIRES
RECREATIONAL

VEHICLES
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.5

Overnight Parking or
Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-17; 167-18

See Also VEHICLES
ZONING 275-2.2

RECYCLABLE
MATERIALS

SOLID WASTE 210-1;
210-6; 210-17; 210-20

ZONING 275-2.2
RECYCLABLES

SOLID WASTE 210-1
RECYCLING

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.12

Finance 7-63
Industrial Zoning Districts

275-7.3
SEWERS 200-1
SOLID WASTE 210-1;

210-5; 210-9; 210-17;
210-18

See Also SOLID WASTE
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-1
ZONING 275-1.8; 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-27.3;
275-27.6; 275-29.14

REFUSE
See GARBAGE, RUBBISH

AND REFUSE
REGISTRATION

CITY CHARTER C-55
Finance 7-53
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-7

Performance Standards
275-28.4

SEWERS 200-11; 200-12
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-41
WATER 260-11; 260-12
ZONING 275-2.2

REGISTRY
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.13

Conditional Uses 275-21.1
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-2
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-3
Nonconforming Property

275-30.5
Purchases and Contracts

7-41
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-11

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-9

ZONING 275-2.2
RENTAL PROPERTY

See LANDLORDS
See TENANTS

REPORTS
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-2

ALARM SYSTEMS 16-9
ANIMALS 28-2
Appointment, Election and

Removal of City
Officers 7-76; 7-79

Aquifer Protection Overlay
District (APOD)
275-10.13

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-35; 7-37

CITY CHARTER C-14;
C-39; C-46; C-62

Conditional Uses 275-21.1
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.9

Finance 7-52; 7-54; 7-56
Fire Prevention 75-10
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.6

Food Service
Establishments 80-8;
80-12

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-8

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.10;
275-14.11; 275-14.12;
275-14.13; 275-14.14

JUNK AND
SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-3

Municipal Departments
7-11; 7-16

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-22

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-6

PLANNING BOARD
176-9; 176-10

SEWERS 200-7; 200-17
Special Exceptions 275-22.1
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-9

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-9

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-41

ZONING 275-3.1;
275-20.2; 275-27.3

RESIDENCY
REQUIREMENTS

CITY CHARTER C-12
RESIDENTIAL

CONSTRUCTION
See BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
See CONSTRUCTION

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.3
Roads and Parking 275-26.3
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-1.8; 275-2.2;

275-19.1; 275-29.13
RESIDENTIAL ZONING

DISTRICTS
Agricultural District (AG)

275-5.4
Agricultural districts

275-5.4
Churches 275-5.5
City Council 275-5.5
Conditional uses 275-5.5
Construction 275-5.3;

275-5.5
Convenience stores 275-5.5
Decks 275-5.5
Department of Public Works

275-5.2
Driveways 275-5.2
Dumpsters 275-5.5
Farms and farming 275-5.4
Garages 275-5.2
General development

standards 275-5.2
General terms 275-5.1
Lighting 275-5.5
Lots 275-5.2; 275-5.5

Mixed use districts 275-5.5
Neighborhood Mixed-Use

District (NMU) 275-5.5
Open space 275-5.4
Parking 275-5.2; 275-5.5
Pedestrians 275-5.5
Planning Board 275-5.2;

275-5.5
Ponds 275-5.4
Residential-1 and

Residential-2 Districts
(R1 and R2) 275-5.3

Schools 275-5.5
Screens and screening

275-5.2; 275-5.5
Senior citizens 275-5.5
Setbacks 275-5.2; 275-5.4;

275-5.5
Sewers 275-5.4
Signs 275-5.5
Site plans 275-5.2; 275-5.5
Special exceptions 275-5.1
Two-family dwellings

275-5.2
Waivers 275-5.5
Water 275-5.4
Wetlands 275-5.4
Yards 275-5.5
ZONING 275-5.1\275-5.5
Zoning districts 275-5.1

RESTAURANTS
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.5
See Also DINING

FACILITIES
See Also DRIVE-

THROUGH
RESTAURANTS

See Also FAST-FOOD
RESTAURANTS

See Also FOOD
ESTABLISHMENTS

Food Service
Establishments 80-2

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.10;
275-8.11

Home Occupations 275-24.7
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-26
SEWERS 200-16
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-29.11
RETAIL FOOD

ESTABLISHMENTS
See RESTAURANTS

RETAINING WALLS
See WALLS

RETIREMENT
See Also PENSIONS
ZONING 275-2.2

RIGHT OF ENTRY
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-10

RIGHT TO FARM
See FARMS AND

FARMING
RIGHT TO KNOW

Food Service
Establishments 80-8

ROADS
See STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS
ROADS AND PARKING

Accessory uses and
structures 275-26.6

Building permits 275-26.4;
275-26.6

City Council 275-26.6

RECORDS...

ROCHESTER INDEX

28 Supp 2, May 2019

R

8/29/19 

83 



Class VI roads 275-26.6
Commercial vehicles

275-26.3
Construction 275-26.2
Costs and expenses

275-26.6
Curbs 275-26.2
Drainage 275-26.2
Driveways 275-26.2;

275-26.5
Driveways, curb cuts and

parking design
275-26.2

Dust 275-26.2
Farms and farming 275-26.6
Forestry 275-26.6
Grades and grading

275-26.2
Home occupations 275-26.6
Licenses and permits

275-26.2
Lots 275-26.2; 275-26.5;

275-26.6
Master Plan 275-26.6
Minimum parking

requirements 275-26.1
Odors 275-26.3
Off-street parking 275-26.1
Parking 275-26.1; 275-26.2;

275-26.3
Permitted uses 275-26.6
Planning Board 275-26.1;

275-26.2; 275-26.4
Police Department 275-26.3
Private roads 275-26.4
Records 275-26.6
Residential districts

275-26.3
Setbacks 275-26.2
Shared driveways 275-26.5
Sidewalks 275-26.2
Single-family dwellings

275-26.1; 275-26.6
Site plan review and

approval 275-26.1
Site plans 275-26.1;

275-26.2
Special exceptions 275-26.3
Stormwater 275-26.2
Trucks 275-26.3
Two-family dwellings

275-26.1
Vehicles 275-26.3
Waivers 275-26.1
ZONING 275-26.1\275-26.6
Zoning Administrator

275-26.2
Zoning districts 275-26.2

ROADSIDE STANDS
Food Service

Establishments 80-2
RODENTS

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

Performance Standards
275-28.4

See Also VECTORS
ROLLER BLADES

See Also BICYCLES
See Also SKATEBOARDS
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-7
ROLLER SKATES

See Also BICYCLES
See Also SKATEBOARDS
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-7
ROOFS

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.5;
275-14.14

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

SEWERS 200-7; 200-16
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-19.2; 275-29.11
RUBBISH

See GARBAGE, RUBBISH
AND REFUSE

RURAL DISTRICTS
Granite Ridge Development

(GRD) 275-8.11

— S —
SAFETY HAZARDS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-29.13

SAFETY STANDARDS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-1

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-26

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-4; 40-6

CITY CHARTER C-14
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.1

Finance 7-62
Fire Prevention 75-8; 75-9;

75-11; 75-16
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.6

Food Service
Establishments 80-4

Hawkers, Peddlers and
Itinerant Vendors
171-6; 171-8

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-2;
94-10; 94-11

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.10;
275-14.11

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4; 135-5; 135-8

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-26

Overnight Parking or
Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-16

Performance Standards
275-28.2; 275-28.3;
275-28.4

PLANNING BOARD 176-8
SEWERS 200-19
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-1; 218-6; 218-9;
218-13; 218-14

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-19;
223-21

Taxicabs 254-49
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-5; 254-6; 254-37

WATER 260-30; 260-35;
260-45; 260-47

ZONING 275-1.3; 275-2.2;
275-3.4; 275-20.2;
275-27.3; 275-29.9;
275-29.10; 275-29.13

SALARIES
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

7-42\7-45
Budget 7-43
City Clerk 7-44
City Council 7-44
Costs and expenses 7-45
Declaration of policy 7-42
Deputy Mayor 7-44
Expenses 7-45
Mayor 7-44
Meetings 7-44
Officers and employees

7-43
Payment 7-43
Quorum 7-44
Salaries and compensation

7-42; 7-43; 7-44; 7-45
Salaries of elected officials

7-44
Schools 7-44

SALARIES AND
COMPENSATION

Adoption of Code 1-15
ANIMALS 28-1
CITY CHARTER C-11;

C-61; C-69; C-79
See Also COMPENSATION
Finance 7-65
Salaries 7-42; 7-43; 7-44;

7-45
SALES

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Adoption of Code 1-10;

1-15
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.11

CEMETERIES 49-2
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.5
Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Finance 7-61
Fire Prevention 75-16
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3

Food Service
Establishments 80-2

See Also GARAGE SALES
Hawkers, Peddlers and

Itinerant Vendors
171-3; 171-5

Home Occupations
275-24.1; 275-24.4;
275-24.7

JUNK AND
SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-1

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-7

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-5

See Also PEDDLING AND
SOLICITING

Purchases and Contracts
7-41

SEWERS 200-29
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-9;
223-20

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-19

WATER 260-24
See Also YARD SALES
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-18.2; 275-18.9;
275-20.2; 275-29.11;
275-29.13

SANITARY FACILITIES
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.5

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

See Also TOILET
FACILITIES

ZONING 275-2.2
SANITARY LANDFILL

See LANDFILLS
SANITATION

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-3; 135-7

PLANNING BOARD 176-8
SATELLITE DISH

ANTENNAS
See Also ANTENNAS
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.10;
275-14.11; 275-14.12

ZONING 275-19.2
SCHOOLS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Appointment, Election and

Removal of City
Officers 7-73; 7-74

CITY CHARTER C-14;
C-15; C-27; C-28;
C-29; C-30; C-31;
C-32; C-33; C-34;
C-35; C-36; C-37;
C-43-a; C-68; C-69;
C-72

Conditional Uses 275-21.3;
275-21.4

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.6

Finance 7-51; 7-65; 7-66;
7-67

Food Service
Establishments 80-4

Legislative Body 7-49
Municipal Elections 7-69;

7-70; 7-71
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-3;
158-5

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER 167-11

Pinball and Video Games
and Machines 22-13

PUBLIC BUILDINGS
183-1

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.5

Salaries 7-44
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-11;
254-30

WATER 260-3
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-27.3; 275-29.10
SCOOTERS

ZONING 275-2.2
SCREENS AND

SCREENING
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3

See Also BUFFERS
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.4
Conditional Uses 275-21.1;

275-21.4
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.5

Home Occupations 275-24.1
Industrial Zoning Districts

275-7.3

ROADS AND PARKING...

ROCHESTER INDEX

29 Supp 2, May 2019

S

8/29/19 

84 



See Also LANDSCAPING
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-3; 135-4
Performance Standards

275-28.4
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.2; 275-5.5
SEWERS 200-1
Special Exceptions

275-22.1; 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-27.1
SEARCH WARRANTS

See WARRANTS
SECURITY STANDARDS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Conditional Uses 275-21.4

SEEING EYE DOGS
See GUIDE DOGS

SEIZURE
Pinball and Video Games

and Machines 22-17
SENIOR CITIZENS

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.5

ZONING 275-27.3
SENIOR HOUSING

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
ZONING 275-2.2

SEPTIC SYSTEMS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Home Occupations 275-24.1
Performance Standards

275-28.4
SEPTIC TANKS

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.9

Municipal Departments
7-13

SEWERS 200-3; 200-4;
200-16

SERVICE DOGS
See GUIDE DOGS

SERVICE STATIONS
See FILLING STATIONS
See GAS STATIONS

SETBACKS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-15

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.3;
275-6.5

Conditional Uses 275-21.1;
275-21.4

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.8

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.3

Industrial Zoning Districts
275-7.2

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4; 135-5

Nonconforming Property
275-30.1; 275-30.4;
275-30.5; 275-30.6

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.2; 275-5.4;
275-5.5

Roads and Parking 275-26.2
Special Exceptions

275-22.1; 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-29.13

SEWAGE DISPOSAL,
INDIVIDUAL

See ILLICIT
CONNECTIONS

SEWAGE DISPOSAL,
PRIVATE

See ILLICIT
CONNECTIONS

SEWERS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Accidental discharges

200-17
Adoption of Code 1-15
Advisory Board 200-13;

200-23; 200-26; 200-30
Agreements 200-27
Air conditioning 200-9
Animals 200-1; 200-3;

200-16
Apartments 200-24
Appeals 200-13; 200-26;

200-30; 200-32
Application for service

200-5
Arrest provision 200-18
Ashes 200-16
Assessments 200-7; 200-32;

200-33
Attorneys fees 200-20
Backfilling 200-7
Barricades 200-7
Billing and payment 200-25
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-36
Bonds 200-6; 200-32
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE 40-8

Building permits 200-4
Cesspools 200-3; 200-4
Charges 200-1; 200-6;

200-10; 200-11;
200-13; 200-16;
200-23; 200-24;
200-26; 200-28;
200-29; 200-30;
200-32; 200-33

CITY CHARTER C-19
City Clerk 200-31
City Council 200-23;

200-30; 200-32
City Manager 200-6; 200-7;

200-23; 200-25;
200-26; 200-27

Complaints 200-11
Confidentiality 200-19
Construction 200-1; 200-3;

200-7; 200-16; 200-31;
200-32

Construction/extension of
public sewers for new
development 200-31

Costs and expenses 200-3;
200-4; 200-5; 200-6;
200-7; 200-9; 200-10;
200-13; 200-16;
200-17; 200-20;
200-23; 200-24;
200-28; 200-31;
200-32; 200-33

Definitions 200-1
Department of Public Works

200-1; 200-5; 200-6;
200-7; 200-8; 200-9;
200-10; 200-11;
200-12; 200-13;
200-14; 200-15;
200-23; 200-24;
200-25; 200-31

Disclosure 200-19
Disorderly conduct 200-18
Dogs 200-14
Drainage 200-1; 200-16
Driveways 200-7
Dumps and dumping 200-16

Easements 200-1; 200-6;
200-19

Emergencies 200-5; 200-13;
200-17

Escrow accounts 200-6
Establishment of wastewater

rates and fees 200-23
Excavations 200-7
Explosives 200-16
Extension of existing public

sewers in accepted
roadways 200-32

Fees 200-5; 200-6; 200-7;
200-11; 200-13;
200-16; 200-17;
200-20; 200-23;
200-24; 200-33

Flammables 200-16
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.4

Fuel 200-16
Garbage, rubbish and refuse

200-1; 200-3; 200-16
Gas 200-16
Gases 200-16
Glass 200-16
Grievances 200-26
Groundwater 200-1; 200-7;

200-16
Guarantees 200-7
Hazardous wastes 200-17
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-4
Health Officer 200-4
Hearings 200-23
Hospitals 200-16
Hotels 200-16
Illicit connection to public

sewers 200-16
Illicit connections 200-16
See Also ILLICIT

CONNECTIONS
Industrial pretreatment rules

200-17
Industrial user 200-1;

200-16; 200-17; 200-19
Industrial wastes 200-1;

200-4; 200-7; 200-16
Inspections 200-4; 200-5;

200-7; 200-9; 200-15;
200-16; 200-17;
200-19; 200-33

Investigations 200-17;
200-33

Liability 200-7; 200-8;
200-19; 200-20

Liability insurance 200-6
Licenses and permits 200-1;

200-4; 200-6; 200-7;
200-17; 200-33

Liens 200-25; 200-28;
200-32

Lots 200-8
Manholes 200-2
Manure 200-16
Membership 200-30
Meter repairs 200-10
Meter testing 200-11
Meters 200-1; 200-8; 200-9;

200-10; 200-11;
200-12; 200-13;
200-14; 200-16;
200-24; 200-29; 200-33

Miscellaneous bills 200-28
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-5; 135-7; 200-24
Multifamily dwellings

200-7
Nonconforming Property

275-30.5

Notices 200-3; 200-7;
200-17; 200-20;
200-25; 200-26; 200-29

Nuisances 200-14; 200-16
Obstructions 200-16
Odors 200-16
Outside reader 200-14
Paper 200-16
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
Plan of sewer systems 200-2
Planning Board 200-4
Plastics 200-16
Plumbing Code 200-7;

200-8
Ponds 200-1
Powers and authority of

inspectors 200-19
Private wastewater disposal

200-4
Privies 200-3
Privy vaults 200-3
Radioactive waste 200-16
Rates and Charges 200-23\

200-33
Rates, charges and fees

200-24
Records 200-5; 200-16;

200-17; 200-22;
200-24; 200-32

Recycling 200-1
Registration 200-11; 200-12
Repealer; severability

200-21
Reports 200-7; 200-17
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.4
Restaurants 200-16
Roofs 200-7; 200-16
Safety standards 200-19
Sale or transfer of property

200-29
Sales 200-29
Screens and screening 200-1
Sealing of meter 200-12
Septic tanks 200-3; 200-4;

200-16
Service installation and

repair 200-6
Sewer deduct meter 200-9
Sewer only meters 200-8
Sewer services and

connections 200-7
Sewer Use 200-1\200-22
SEWERS 200-1; 200-2;

200-3; 200-4; 200-5;
200-6; 200-7; 200-8;
200-9; 200-11; 200-16;
200-17; 200-19;
200-20; 200-23;
200-24; 200-31;
200-32; 200-33

Sidewalks 200-7
Sprinkler systems 200-9
Storage 200-1; 200-17
Storm sewers 200-1; 200-16
Stormwater 200-1; 200-16
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-15

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-9

Surcharges 200-24; 200-33
Tampering with meter

200-13
Tax Collector 200-25
Tenants 200-25
Tests 200-7; 200-10;

200-11; 200-12;
200-16; 200-19;
200-24; 200-33

Toilet facilities 200-1; 200-3

SCREENS AND SCREENING...

ROCHESTER INDEX

30 Supp 2, May 2019

S

8/29/19 

85 



Toxic substances 200-16
Trenches 200-7
Use of public sewers

required 200-3
Utilities 200-1; 200-13;

200-23; 200-26; 200-30
Utility Advisory Board

200-30
Violations and penalties

200-1; 200-7; 200-16;
200-17; 200-18;
200-20; 200-24; 200-33

Waivers 200-3; 200-5;
200-7; 200-16

Walls 200-1; 200-7
Wastewater Rate and Fee

Schedule 200-33
Water 200-1; 200-7; 200-8;

200-9; 200-10; 200-11;
200-15; 200-16;
200-24; 200-33; 260-2;
260-3; 260-7; 260-9

Water pollution 200-1
Water quality 200-1; 200-24
Water supply 200-8
Watercourses 200-1
When effective 200-22
ZONING 275-20.2;

275-27.3
SHADE TREES

See TREES
SHEDS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-3

ZONING 275-2.2
SHOPPING CENTERS

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.5

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-1

ZONING 275-29.11;
275-29.12

SHRUBS
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.6; 275-12.8

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-2

See Also TREES
ZONING 275-2.2

SIDEWALK SALES
See GARAGE SALES
See YARD SALES

SIDEWALKS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.3;
275-6.5

Conditional Uses 275-21.1
Food Service

Establishments 80-2
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1-2
Granite Ridge Development

(GRD) 275-8.6
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.5
Municipal Departments

7-18
NUISANCES 149-2
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-15;
80-20; 80-26; 80-31

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER 167-9

Performance Standards
275-28.4

Roads and Parking 275-26.2
SEWERS 200-7
Special Exceptions

275-22.1; 275-22.3
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-2;
223-5; 223-6; 223-7;
223-8; 223-12; 223-13;
223-17; 223-20;
223-21; 223-22;
223-23; 223-25; 223-26

See Also STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-7; 254-25

WATER 260-6
ZONING 275-19.2;

275-29.13
SIGNS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-15

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.1;
275-6.5

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
See Also CONSTRUCTION

SIGNS
Granite Ridge Development

(GRD) 275-8.10
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.4;
275-14.5; 275-14.10

Home Occupations
275-24.2; 275-24.3;
275-24.4

Municipal Departments 7-9
Nonconforming Property

275-30.9
See Also

NONCONFORMING
SIGNS

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-15

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-2;
158-5

See Also POLITICAL
SIGNS

See Also REAL ESTATE
SIGNS

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.5

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-8;
223-16; 223-20; 223-21

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-2; 254-5; 254-12;
254-16; 254-17;
254-21; 254-22;
254-23; 254-25;
254-31; 254-37

ZONING 275-1.3; 275-2.1;
275-2.2; 275-3.3;
275-20.2; 275-27.2;
275-29.1; 275-29.2;
275-29.3; 275-29.4;
275-29.5; 275-29.6;
275-29.7; 275-29.8;
275-29.9; 275-29.10;
275-29.11; 275-29.12;
275-29.13; 275-29.14

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.2

SINGLE-FAMILY
DWELLINGS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.3; 275-33.7
Fire Prevention 75-12;

75-15
Home Occupations 275-24.1
Roads and Parking

275-26.1; 275-26.6
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-6

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-27.1
SITE PLAN APPROVAL

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-9

SITE PLAN REVIEW AND
APPROVAL

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.4;
275-6.5

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.5

Home Occupations
275-24.5; 275-24.6

Nonconforming Property
275-30.2

Performance Standards
275-28.4; 275-28.5

Roads and Parking 275-26.1
Special Downtown Overlay

District (SDOD)
275-15.2

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-19.2;

275-20.2
SITE PLANS

Accessory Uses 275-23.1;
275-23.2

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.3;
275-6.4; 275-6.5

Conditional Uses 275-21.1;
275-21.2

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.5

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.6

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.3;
275-8.4; 275-8.5;
275-8.7; 275-8.10

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.4;
275-14.9; 275-14.10

Home Occupations
275-24.5; 275-24.6

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-15

Performance Standards
275-28.2; 275-28.4

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.2; 275-5.5

Roads and Parking
275-26.1; 275-26.2

Special Exceptions
275-22.1; 275-22.3

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-1; 218-7; 218-8;
218-9; 218-11; 218-15

ZONING 275-1.7; 275-2.1;
275-2.2; 275-3.1;
275-3.3; 275-20.2;
275-27.3

SKATEBOARDS
See Also BICYCLES
See Also ROLLER

BLADES
See Also ROLLER

SKATES
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-7
SMOKE

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Aviation Overlay District

(AOD) 275-11.1;
275-11.4

Home Occupations 275-24.1
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
Performance Standards

275-28.2; 275-28.4
ZONING 275-2.2

SMOKE DETECTORS
Fire Prevention 75-6

SMOKING
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
SNOW AND ICE

EMERGENCIES
See EMERGENCIES

SNOW AND ICE
REMOVAL

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-43

SNOWMOBILES
Performance Standards

275-28.3
ZONING 275-2.2

SOIL EROSION AND
SEDIMENT CONTROL

See Also EROSION AND
SEDIMENT
CONTROL

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-7; 218-8; 218-9

SOIL REMOVAL
See DIRT

SOLICITING FUNDS
Fees 171-13
Licenses and permits 171-13
PEDDLING AND

SOLICITING 171-13
Permits 171-13

SOLID WASTE
Aluminum 210-1
Animals 210-1; 210-2;

210-10
Apartments 210-1; 210-11
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.8

Bicycles 210-1
Brush, grass and weeds

210-1; 210-19
Bulky waste collection

210-13
Campgrounds 210-1
CITATIONS 54-3
Collection for multifamily

dwellings 210-12
Collection schedule;

restrictions 210-5
Combustibles 210-1
Condominiums 210-1;

210-3; 210-11
Construction 210-1; 210-4;

210-11
Construction and demolition

debris 210-11
Costs and expenses 210-11;

210-12
Definitions 210-1
Demolition 210-1; 210-2

SEWERS...

ROCHESTER INDEX

31 Supp 2, May 2019

S

8/29/19 

86 



Demolition debris 210-1;
210-4; 210-11

Department of Public Works
210-13

Dirt 210-1
Dumpsters 210-1; 210-8;

210-12
Dust 210-2
Enforcement 210-15
Fecal matter 210-2
Fees 210-11
Finance 7-63
Flammables 210-2
Garbage, rubbish and refuse

210-1; 210-4
See Also GARBAGE,

RUBBISH AND
REFUSE

Glass 210-1
Grass clippings 210-1
Hazardous waste and

unacceptable wastes
210-14

Hazardous wastes 210-1;
210-2; 210-14

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-3;
94-11

Hotels 210-1
Landfills 210-1
Licenses and permits 210-1;

210-15
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
Motels 210-1
Multifamily dwellings

210-1; 210-12
Nuisances 210-1
Paper 210-1; 210-19
Placement of residential

solid waste and waste
material for collection
210-2

Plastics 210-1
Police Department 210-15
Prohibited activities 210-9
Receptacles for residential

solid waste 210-6
Recyclable materials 210-1;

210-6; 210-17; 210-20
Recyclables 210-1
Recycling 210-1; 210-5;

210-9; 210-17; 210-18
See Also RECYCLING
Removal of empty

containers and debris
210-10

Residential dropoff center
210-18

Residential roadside
recycling 210-17

Residential solid waste
collection 210-3

Scavenging prohibited
210-20

Severability 210-21
SOLID WASTE 210-1;

210-2; 210-3; 210-4;
210-5; 210-6; 210-7;
210-10; 210-12;
210-17; 210-18

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
Storage 210-1; 210-8;

210-12
Storage of containers and

dumpsters 210-8
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-1;
223-8

Trash 210-1
See Also TRASH
Trees 210-1

Unauthorized placement of
residential solid waste
on private property
210-4

Use of approved containers
required 210-7

Violations and penalties
210-16

Water 210-1
Yard waste 210-1; 210-2;

210-4; 210-19
Yard waste and brush

210-19
Yards 210-1
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-27.3
SPECIAL DOWNTOWN

OVERLAY DISTRICT
(SDOD)

Boundaries 275-15.1
Construction 275-15.2
Fees 275-15.2
Fire Chief 275-15.2
Fire limits 275-15.1
Licenses and permits

275-15.2
Notices 275-15.2
Off-street parking 275-15.2
Parking 275-15.2
Planning Board 275-15.2
Police Chief 275-15.2
Regulations and restrictions

275-15.2
Site plan review and

approval 275-15.2
Vehicles 275-15.2
ZONING 275-15.1\275-15.2
Zoning Maps 275-15.1

SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS
Abandonment 275-22.3
Accessory Uses 275-23.1;

275-23.2
Adult-oriented

establishments
275-22.3

Animals 275-22.3
Antennas 275-22.3
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.7

Assessments 275-22.3
Base criteria 275-22.2
Blocks 275-22.3
Board of Appeals 275-22.1
Bonds 275-22.3
Buffers 275-22.3
Building permits 275-22.1
Churches 275-22.3
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.2
Conditional Uses 275-21.1
Conditions for particular

uses 275-22.3
Costs and expenses

275-22.1; 275-22.3
Crosswalks 275-22.1
Day-care facilities 275-22.3
Dogs 275-22.3
Driveways 275-22.3
Excavations 275-22.3
Farms and farming 275-22.3
Fences 275-22.3
Floodplains 275-22.3
Fowl 275-22.3
Garages 275-22.1; 275-22.3
General provisions 275-22.1
Groundwater 275-22.3
Hearings 275-22.1;

275-22.3
Height regulations 275-22.3
Historic Overlay District

(HOD) 275-14.4

Home Occupations
275-24.1; 275-24.4;
275-24.5; 275-24.6

Horses 275-22.3
Improvements 275-22.1
Industrial districts 275-22.3
Industrial Zoning Districts

275-7.1
Junkyards 275-22.3
Kennels 275-22.3
Landscaping 275-22.1;

275-22.3
Library 275-22.3
Licenses and permits

275-22.3
Liens 275-22.3
Livestock 275-22.3
Manure 275-22.3
Master Plan 275-22.1;

275-22.2
Nonconforming Property

275-30.4; 275-30.5;
275-30.8

Nuisances 275-22.2
Off-street parking 275-22.1;

275-22.3
Pedestrians 275-22.2
Performance Standards

275-22.1; 275-22.3;
275-28.3

Planning Board 275-22.3
Playgrounds 275-22.3
Pollution 275-22.3
Records 275-22.1
Reports 275-22.1
Residential districts

275-22.3
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.1
Restaurants 275-22.3
Roads and Parking 275-26.3
Roofs 275-22.3
Safety hazards 275-22.3
Safety standards 275-22.3
Sales 275-22.3
Schools 275-22.3
Screens and screening

275-22.1; 275-22.3
Setbacks 275-22.1; 275-22.3
Sidewalks 275-22.1;

275-22.3
Signs 275-22.3
Site plan review and

approval 275-22.3
Site plans 275-22.1;

275-22.3
Soil erosion and sediment

control 275-22.3
Solid waste 275-22.3
Special Exceptions

275-22.1; 275-22.2;
275-22.3

Special Zoning Districts
275-9.1

Storage 275-22.1; 275-22.3
Towers 275-22.3
Trees 275-22.3
Utilities 275-22.2
Vehicles 275-22.3
Waivers 275-22.3
Walls 275-22.3
Water 275-22.3
Wetlands 275-22.3
Wireless communications

275-22.3
Yards 275-22.1; 275-22.3
ZONING 275-1.16;

275-2.2; 275-18.5;
275-18.7; 275-19.2;
275-20.1; 275-20.2;
275-22.1\275-22.3;
275-27.2; 275-29.13

Zoning Administrator
275-22.3

Zoning Board of
Adjustment 275-22.1;
275-22.2; 275-22.3

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

Zoning districts 275-22.3
SPECIAL PERMITS

See LICENSES AND
PERMITS

SPECIAL ZONING
DISTRICTS

Accessory uses and
structures 275-9.2

Airport Special (AS)
District 275-9.2

General terms 275-9.1
Hospital Special (HS)

District 275-9.3
Hospitals 275-9.3
Permitted uses 275-9.2
Special exceptions 275-9.1
Storage 275-9.2
ZONING 275-9.1\275-9.3
Zoning districts 275-9.1

SPRINKLER SYSTEMS
Fire Prevention 75-10;

75-15
SEWERS 200-9
WATER 260-4; 260-9;

260-30
STEEP SLOPES

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.3

ZONING 275-2.2
STORAGE

Accessory Uses 275-23.1;
275-23.2

Aquifer Protection Overlay
District (APOD)
275-10.3; 275-10.8;
275-10.9; 275-10.11;
275-10.13

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE 40-9

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.1; 275-12.8;
275-12.12

Fire Prevention 75-16
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.5

Hawkers, Peddlers and
Itinerant Vendors 171-5

Home Occupations
275-24.1; 275-24.7

Industrial Zoning Districts
275-7.3

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-3; 135-4; 135-5

Performance Standards
275-28.4

SEWERS 200-1; 200-17
SOLID WASTE 210-1;

210-8; 210-12
Special Exceptions

275-22.1; 275-22.3
Special Zoning Districts

275-9.2
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-9

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-20

SOLID WASTE...

ROCHESTER INDEX

32 Supp 2, May 2019

S

8/29/19 

87 



VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-15;
254-43; 254-54; 254-57

WATER 260-35
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-18.2; 275-19.2;
275-20.2; 275-27.1;
275-29.9; 275-29.12

STORAGE TANKS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3; 275-10.11

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.3

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

See Also UNDERGROUND
STORAGE TANKS

STORM SEWERS
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
SEWERS 200-1; 200-16
See Also STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-1; 218-9; 218-14;
218-16

STORMWATER
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.5
Granite Ridge Development

(GRD) 275-8.7
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-5
Roads and Parking 275-26.2
SEWERS 200-1; 200-16
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-1; 218-6; 218-7;
218-8; 218-9; 218-10;
218-12; 218-13;
218-14; 218-15

ZONING 275-20.2;
275-27.3

STORMWATER CONTROL
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.5
Granite Ridge Development

(GRD) 275-8.7
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.6; 275-10.9

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.5

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.7;
275-8.11

See Also STORM SEWERS
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-1; 218-6; 218-7;
218-8; 218-9; 218-10;
218-16

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL

Amendments 218-5
Applicability 218-6
Application; plan review

and approval 218-9
Authority; when effective

218-2
Bonds 218-8; 218-10

Brush, grass and weeds
218-7

Buffers 218-9
Building permits 218-1
City Council 218-2; 218-5;

218-7; 218-15
City Manager 218-7
Conservation districts 218-8
Construction 218-1; 218-6;

218-7; 218-8; 218-9;
218-10; 218-11;
218-12; 218-13; 218-14

Costs and expenses 218-6;
218-8; 218-10

Culverts 218-8
Definitions and

abbreviations 218-7
Demolition 218-9; 218-12
Department of Public Works

218-7; 218-9; 218-10;
218-13; 218-14; 218-15

Design standards 218-8;
218-9

Drainage 218-1; 218-6;
218-7; 218-8; 218-9;
218-16

Drainage plan 218-9
Easements 218-8; 218-9
Emergencies 218-6; 218-13
Enforcement 218-15
Erosion and sediment

control 218-6; 218-7;
218-8; 218-9; 218-10

Escrow deposits 218-10
Excavations 218-12
Fees 218-9
Fences 218-6; 218-9
Fill 218-9
Final plans 218-9; 218-11
Floodplains 218-7; 218-9
Gas 218-6
Grades and grading 218-7;

218-9; 218-12
Groundwater 218-8; 218-14
Health Officer 218-15
Illicit connections 218-14
Illicit discharge and

connection 218-14
Improvements 218-6; 218-7
Inspections 218-1; 218-9;

218-10; 218-11; 218-13
Investigations 218-9
Jurisdiction 218-3
Landscaping 218-6; 218-12
Lawns 218-6; 218-14
Licenses and permits 218-2;

218-6; 218-7; 218-9;
218-10; 218-11;
218-12; 218-13; 218-15

Lots 218-6; 218-10
Maintenance and inspection

218-11
Mandatory regulated MS4s

in urbanized areas; map
218-16

Meetings 218-10
Mulching 218-7; 218-9
Natural resources 218-8
Notices 218-7; 218-10;

218-13; 218-14
Notices of violations 218-15
Other required permits

218-12
Paper 218-9
Planning Board 218-2;

218-6; 218-7; 218-8;
218-9; 218-11; 218-15

Pollution 218-7; 218-10
Post-construction operation

218-13
Purpose and objectives

218-1
Records 218-11; 218-13

Registry 218-11
Reports 218-9
Responsibility for

installation,
construction and
inspection 218-10

Safety standards 218-1;
218-6; 218-9; 218-13;
218-14

Severability 218-4
Sewers 218-15
Single-family dwellings

218-6
Site plan approval 218-9
Site plans 218-1; 218-7;

218-8; 218-9; 218-11;
218-15

Soil erosion and sediment
control 218-7; 218-8;
218-9

Storage 218-9
Storm sewers 218-1; 218-9;

218-14; 218-16
Stormwater 218-1; 218-6;

218-7; 218-8; 218-9;
218-10; 218-12;
218-13; 218-14; 218-15

Stormwater management
218-1; 218-6; 218-7;
218-8; 218-9; 218-10;
218-16

Stormwater quality 218-8
Swimming pools 218-14
Tests 218-8; 218-9; 218-14
Trash 218-14
Trenches 218-6
Utilities 218-6; 218-9
Vehicles 218-9; 218-14
Vernal pools 218-7
Violations and penalties

218-7; 218-11; 218-14;
218-15

Waivers 218-14
Warrants 218-6
Water 218-1; 218-6; 218-7;

218-8; 218-9; 218-14;
218-15

Water quality 218-8; 218-9;
218-11; 218-13; 218-14

Watercourses 218-7; 218-14
Websites 218-8
Wells 218-9
Wetlands 218-1; 218-6;

218-8; 218-9; 218-12;
218-14

STORMWATER QUALITY
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-8

STREET EXCAVATIONS
See Also EXCAVATIONS
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-25
STREET OPENINGS

See EXCAVATIONS
STREET TREES

Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-15;
80-20

ZONING 275-29.9
STREETLIGHTING

See Also LIGHTING
PEACE AND GOOD

ORDER 167-5
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-1;
223-14

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS

"Adopt-A-Spot" areas
223-16

911 223-11

Abandonment 223-23
Address numbers on streets,

highways and rights-of-
way 223-11

Advertising 223-15; 223-16;
223-20

Amusements 223-8
Apartments 223-11
Ashes 223-8
Assessments 223-9; 223-12
Bonds 223-7; 223-17
Bridges 223-2; 223-17
Building construction

223-11
Certificates of insurance

223-25
Certificates of occupancy

223-11
Circuses 223-8
City Attorney 223-25;

223-28
City Clerk 223-10; 223-16
City Council 223-1; 223-5;

223-9; 223-10; 223-11;
223-25

City Manager 223-2; 223-8;
223-16; 223-26

Condominiums 223-11
Conduct on public streets

and highways 223-8
Construction 223-2; 223-5;

223-9; 223-12
Construction of sidewalks

223-12
Costs and expenses 223-5;

223-9; 223-12; 223-14;
223-25; 223-29

See Also CROSSWALKS
Curbs 223-20
Damage to newsracks and

public way obstructions
223-29

Definitions 223-1; 223-20
Department of Public Works

223-2
Dirt 223-8
Dumps and dumping 223-8
Elevation 223-4
Emergencies 223-5; 223-10
Excavations 223-5
Fees 223-7; 223-23
Fences 223-2; 223-5
Fire Chief 223-6; 223-10
Fire Chief to be notified

223-6
Fire hydrants 223-21
Garages 223-20
Garbage, rubbish and refuse

223-8
General Regulations 223-1\

223-18
Glass 223-8
Hawkers, Peddlers and

Itinerant Vendors
171-11

Hearings 223-11
Height regulations 223-11
Hold harmless agreement;

insurance 223-25
Identification required

223-24
Improvements 223-9
Injunction 223-28
Insurance 223-25
Junk 223-8
Liability 223-3; 223-8;

223-25
Liability insurance 223-25
Licenses and permits 223-7;

223-8; 223-11; 223-22;
223-23; 223-25

Liens 223-9
Lighting 223-14

STORAGE...

ROCHESTER INDEX

33 Supp 2, May 2019

S

8/29/19 

88 



Lots 223-9; 223-20
Markers 223-10
Mayor 223-1
Membership 223-1; 223-9
Moving of buildings 223-7
Moving of buildings

through streets 223-7
Naming of public streets

and rights-of-way
223-10

Newspaper 223-20
Newsracks 223-19; 223-20;

223-21; 223-22;
223-23; 223-24;
223-25; 223-26; 223-29

Newsracks and Public Way
Obstructions 223-19\
223-30

Notices 223-11; 223-23
Nuisances 223-28
Obstruction of sidewalks

223-13
Obstructions 223-13;

223-19; 223-20;
223-21; 223-22;
223-23; 223-24;
223-25; 223-26; 223-29

Paper 223-8
Parades 223-8
Parking 223-20
Parks and recreation 223-1;

223-20
Pedestrians 223-20; 223-21
Permit for excavation upon

highway or sidewalk
223-5

Permit required; application
for permit 223-22

Planning Board 223-9;
223-10

Police Chief 223-10
Prohibited acts 223-21
Prohibited use of poles

223-15
Prohibited uses 223-15
Prohibiting use of highways

223-3
Property maintenance

223-11
Proposal for new street or

highway or public
improvements; sewer
and water assessments
223-9

Purpose 223-19
Records 223-9; 223-10
Recycling 223-1
Registry 223-9
Removal of newsrack or

public way obstruction
223-26

Repair of highway, bridge
or sidewalk 223-2

Reports 223-9
Safety standards 223-19;

223-21
Sales 223-9; 223-20
Severability 223-27
Sewers 223-9
Sidewalks 223-2; 223-5;

223-6; 223-7; 223-8;
223-12; 223-13;
223-17; 223-20;
223-21; 223-22;
223-23; 223-25; 223-26

See Also SIDEWALKS
Signs 223-8; 223-16;

223-20; 223-21
Solid waste 223-1; 223-8
Standards for installation,

maintenance and
operation 223-23

Storage 223-20

Streetlighting 223-1; 223-14
Through streets 223-7
Utilities 223-21
Utility poles 223-14
Vacant lots 223-11
Vehicles 223-3; 223-8;

223-20; 223-21
Violations and penalties

223-3; 223-5; 223-16;
223-18; 223-22;
223-26; 223-28; 223-30

Water 223-9
Water pollution 223-9

SUBDIVISION OF LAND
See MAJOR

SUBDIVISIONS
See MINOR

SUBDIVISIONS
SURCHARGES

SEWERS 200-24; 200-33
SWIMMING POOLS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-15

Municipal Departments
7-21

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-1

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-14

WATER 260-23; 260-30;
260-33

ZONING 275-2.2

— T —
TAX ASSESSOR

See ASSESSOR
TAX COLLECTOR

Bonds of City Officials 7-80
Finance 7-52; 7-53
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-2
Legal Basis and

Departmental
Organization 7-2

Municipal Departments 7-8;
7-22

SEWERS 200-25
TAXICAB STANDS

Taxicabs 254-45; 254-49
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-18
TAXICABS

Appeals 254-46; 254-47;
254-48

Business districts 254-49
Certificates of insurance

254-46
Chief of Police 254-46;

254-47; 254-48;
254-49; 254-50

City Council 254-46
Compensation 254-45
Complaints 254-49
Declaration of policy

254-44
Definitions 254-45
Fees 254-46; 254-47;

254-48
General requirements

254-49
Hearings 254-49; 254-50
Holidays 254-47; 254-48;

254-50
Inspections 254-46; 254-47;

254-49
Insurance 254-46; 254-47

Investigations 254-46;
254-48

Licenses and permits
254-46; 254-47;
254-48; 254-49; 254-50

Motor vehicles 254-44;
254-45; 254-49

Notices 254-50
Parking 254-49
Police Chief 254-47
Police Department 254-49
Records 254-46; 254-48;

254-49
Safety standards 254-49
Suspension or revocation of

permit or license
254-50

Taxicab driver's license and
fee 254-48

Taxicab operator permit and
fee 254-46

Taxicab permit and fee
254-47

Taxicab stands 254-45;
254-49

Taxicabs 254-44; 254-45;
254-46; 254-47;
254-48; 254-49; 254-50

Vehicles 254-45; 254-46;
254-47; 254-48; 254-49

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-18;
254-44\254-51

Violations and penalties
254-46; 254-48;
254-49; 254-50; 254-51

ZONING 275-2.2
TENANTS

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Fire Prevention 75-13
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-2
Performance Standards

275-28.2
SEWERS 200-25
WATER 260-18
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-29.14
TERMS OF OFFICE

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-28

CITY CHARTER C-6;
C-23; C-31; C-48; C-66

PLANNING BOARD 176-3
TESTS

Fire Prevention 75-9
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-11
Performance Standards

275-28.3
SEWERS 200-7; 200-10;

200-11; 200-12;
200-16; 200-19;
200-24; 200-33

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-8; 218-9; 218-14

WATER 260-6; 260-10;
260-11; 260-12;
260-33; 260-35;
260-38; 260-39;
260-42; 260-43;
260-44; 260-45;
260-46; 260-48

ZONING 275-2.2
THEATERS

AMUSEMENTS AND
ENTERTAINMENT
22-1

Blanket licenses; fees 22-1
Fees 22-1
Licenses and permits 22-1

THROUGH STREETS
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-7
TIMBER HARVESTING

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.8

ZONING 275-2.2
TIRES

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-10
ZONING 275-20.2

TOILET FACILITIES
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
See Also SANITARY

FACILITIES
SEWERS 200-1; 200-3
ZONING 275-2.2

TOPSOIL PROTECTION
See DIRT
See EXCAVATIONS
See FILL

TOPSOIL REMOVAL
See DIRT
See EXCAVATIONS

TOWERS
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-19.2; 275-20.2
TOWING

Overnight Parking or
Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-21

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-15;
254-43; 254-52;
254-53; 254-54;
254-55; 254-56;
254-57; 254-58; 254-59

ZONING 275-2.2
TOWN CLERK

CITY CHARTER C-51
TOXIC SUBSTANCES

See Also HAZARDOUS
MATERIALS AND
SUBSTANCES

See Also HAZARDOUS
WASTES

SEWERS 200-16
TOXIC WASTES

See HAZARDOUS
MATERIALS AND
SUBSTANCES

See HAZARDOUS
WASTES

TRAILERS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
See Also CONSTRUCTION

TRAILERS
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3

WATER 260-30
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-29.9

TRANSIENT VENDORS
See PEDDLING AND

SOLICITING
See SALES

TRASH
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.5
See Also GARBAGE,

RUBBISH AND
REFUSE

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.10

NUISANCES 149-1

STREETS AND SIDEWALKS...

ROCHESTER INDEX

34 Supp 2, May 2019

T

8/29/19 

89 



Outdoor Dining
Establishments 80-15;
80-20

SOLID WASTE 210-1
See Also SOLID WASTE
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-14

ZONING 275-2.2
TREASURER

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-29

Finance 7-52; 7-55; 7-59
TREES

Aviation Overlay District
(AOD) 275-11.1;
275-11.3; 275-11.5;
275-11.6; 275-11.7;
275-11.8; 275-11.9

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.8

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.1; 275-33.6

Finance 7-63
Fire Prevention 75-16
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-4
Municipal Departments

7-18
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-15
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
See Also SHRUBS
SOLID WASTE 210-1
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-27.2;
275-29.11

TRENCHES
See Also EXCAVATIONS
SEWERS 200-7
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-6

WATER 260-7
ZONING 275-27.2

TRESPASSING
Performance Standards

275-28.4
TRUCKS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Food Service

Establishments 80-2
Home Occupations 275-24.1
Roads and Parking 275-26.3
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-12
WATER 260-30
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

TRUSTEES
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-24; 7-29
CEMETERIES 49-1
CITY CHARTER C-22
Finance 7-51; 7-67
Municipal Departments

7-11
TWO-FAMILY

DWELLINGS
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.5

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.2

Roads and Parking 275-26.1

— U —
UNDERGROUND

STORAGE TANKS
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.11

See Also STORAGE
TANKS

URINATION
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
UTILITIES

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-24; 7-36
CITY CHARTER C-19
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.5
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.1

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.1; 275-33.3;
275-33.4; 275-33.9

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.5

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.8;
275-8.11

Legislative Body 7-49
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-3; 135-4; 135-6
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-20
PLANNING BOARD

176-8; 176-9
SEWERS 200-1; 200-13;

200-23; 200-26; 200-30
Special Exceptions 275-22.2
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-6; 218-9

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-21

WATER 260-2; 260-7;
260-13; 260-17;
260-19; 260-28;
260-35; 260-49

ZONING 275-1.3;
275-1.11; 275-2.2;
275-18.2; 275-19.2;
275-20.2; 275-27.2;
275-27.3

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

UTILITY POLES
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-14
ZONING 275-29.9;

275-29.13
U-TURNS

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-1; 254-5

— V —
VACANCIES

Appointment, Election and
Removal of City
Officers 7-76; 7-78;
7-79

Boards, Commissions and
Committees 7-26; 7-27;
7-28; 7-29; 7-32; 7-35

CITY CHARTER C-6;
C-22; C-23; C-31;
C-53; C-67; C-68; C-70

PLANNING BOARD 176-5
VEHICLES AND

TRAFFIC 254-56
WATER 260-28
Zoning Board of

Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.4

VACANT LOTS
CEMETERIES 49-2
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-3
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-11
VAPORS

See FUMES
VARIANCES

Aviation Overlay District
(AOD) 275-11.3;
275-11.6; 275-11.8

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.13

Fire Prevention 75-9
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.6

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.4;
275-14.5

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.1
Zoning Board of

Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

VECTORS
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-11
See Also INSECTS
See Also RODENTS

VEHICLES
Accessory Uses 275-23.1;

275-23.2
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.11

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-18

See Also COMMERCIAL
VEHICLES

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.12

See Also EMERGENCY
VEHICLES

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.5

Hawkers, Peddlers and
Itinerant Vendors 171-4

Home Occupations
275-24.1; 275-24.4;
275-24.7

JUNK AND
SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-7

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-3

See Also MOTOR
VEHICLES

Overnight Parking or
Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-17; 167-18;
167-20; 167-21

Purchases and Contracts
7-40

See Also RECREATIONAL
VEHICLES

Roads and Parking 275-26.3
Special Downtown Overlay

District (SDOD)
275-15.2

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-9; 218-14

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-3;
223-8; 223-20; 223-21

Taxicabs 254-45; 254-46;
254-47; 254-48; 254-49

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-3; 254-4; 254-5;
254-6; 254-8; 254-9;
254-10; 254-12;
254-13; 254-14;
254-15; 254-16;
254-17; 254-18;
254-19; 254-20;
254-22; 254-23;
254-25; 254-26;
254-27; 254-28;
254-36; 254-37;
254-38; 254-40;
254-41; 254-42;
254-43; 254-54; 254-57

WATER 260-30
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-29.9
VEHICLES, ABANDONED

See ABANDONED
VEHICLES

See ABANDONMENT
VEHICLES, ALL-TERRAIN

See ALL-TERRAIN
VEHICLES

VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC
Abandoned vehicles 254-1;

254-43
Abandonment 254-57
Additional parking

regulations 254-28
Administration 254-59
Advertising 254-20
Animals 254-1; 254-38
Application procedure

254-53
Approval process 254-55
Bicycles 254-7; 254-38
Blocks 254-43
Bridges 254-25
Bus and taxicab stands

254-18
Bus stops 254-18
Business districts 254-1;

254-7
Charges 254-57
Chief of Police 254-4;

254-7; 254-17; 254-20;
254-21; 254-23;
254-31; 254-42;
254-55; 254-59

Churches 254-1
City Council 254-1; 254-28;

254-29
City Manager 254-11;

254-31
City-owned parking lots

254-15
Columbus Avenue parking

lot permit parking
254-31

Commercial vehicle and
truck travel restricted
254-12

TRASH...

ROCHESTER INDEX

35 Supp 2, May 2019

V

8/29/19 

90 



Commercial vehicles
254-12

Compensation 254-54
Contract between City and

towing service 254-56
Costs and expenses 254-15;

254-57
Crosswalks 254-1; 254-6;

254-25; 254-32
Curbs 254-1; 254-25;

254-27; 254-28
Definitions 254-1; 254-10
Disability 254-25; 254-29
Disabled persons 254-29
Disabled vehicles 254-26
Driveways 254-1; 254-25
Driving through and passing

processions 254-3
Duty of Police Department

254-33
Emergencies 254-10;

254-14; 254-19;
254-21; 254-33;
254-37; 254-57

Emergency restrictions on
parking 254-21

Emergency vehicles 254-1;
254-10; 254-25;
254-37; 254-43

Enforcement 254-33\254-38
Exemption of authorized

emergency vehicles
254-37

Fees 254-43; 254-53;
254-56

Fire Department 254-1
Fire hydrants 254-25;

254-43
Fire lanes 254-1; 254-22
Free parking for disabled

persons and for official
purposes 254-29

Funeral or other processions
254-4

Garages 254-15
Gas 254-10
Glass 254-57
Grades and grading 254-27
Hospitals 254-1
Impoundment 254-57
Insurance 254-54
Liability insurance 254-54
Licenses and permits

254-25; 254-55;
254-56; 254-59

Limitations on backing and
movement from parked
position 254-6

Loading zones 254-23
Lots 254-7; 254-11; 254-15;

254-24
Meetings 254-29
Misuse of power 254-9
Motor vehicles 254-1;

254-11; 254-15;
254-24; 254-29

Motor vehicles on park,
recreation area and
school property 254-11

Noise 254-8; 254-10
Notice of violation 254-41
Notices 254-12; 254-16;

254-17; 254-22;
254-31; 254-41

Notices of violations
254-41; 254-42

Obedience to police 254-35
Obstructions 254-1; 254-25
Off-road vehicles 254-11
One-way streets 254-2
Operation of Motor

Vehicles 254-2\254-12

Owner responsibility for
illegal parking 254-40

Parking 254-1; 254-6;
254-7; 254-11; 254-13;
254-14; 254-15;
254-16; 254-17;
254-19; 254-21;
254-24; 254-25;
254-26; 254-28;
254-29; 254-30;
254-31; 254-37;
254-40; 254-43

Parking prohibited during
certain hours in
designated places
254-16

Parking prohibited in certain
places 254-13

Parking time limited in
designated places
254-17

Parking within lines 254-24
Parks and recreation 254-7;

254-11
Peddling and soliciting

254-18
Pedestrians 254-1; 254-6;

254-32; 254-33
Pedestrians crossing street

in urban area 254-32
Penalties 254-39\254-43
Persons subject to traffic

regulations 254-38
Plumbers 254-17
Police Chief 254-14
Police Department 254-1;

254-33; 254-42;
254-43; 254-53; 254-57

Police officers 254-1; 254-3;
254-25; 254-35;
254-37; 254-41

Procedure in paying
penalties 254-42

Public employees to obey
traffic regulations
254-36

Purpose and intent 254-52
Qualifications 254-54;

254-55
Rate structure 254-58
Recreation areas 254-11
Registration 254-41
Reports 254-41
Required obedience to

traffic regulations
254-34

Rights and Duties of
Pedestrians 254-32

Roller blades 254-7
Roller skates 254-7
Safety standards 254-1;

254-5; 254-6; 254-37
Sales 254-19
Schools 254-11; 254-30
Services to be performed

254-57
Shopping centers 254-1
Sidewalks 254-1; 254-7;

254-25
Signs 254-1; 254-2; 254-5;

254-12; 254-16;
254-17; 254-21;
254-22; 254-23;
254-25; 254-31; 254-37

Skateboards 254-7
Snow and ice removal

254-43
Stopping, Standing and

Parking 254-13\254-31
Stopping, standing or

parking outside
business or residence
districts 254-26

Stopping, standing or
parking prohibited in
specified places 254-25

Storage 254-15; 254-43;
254-54; 254-57

Street excavations 254-25
Taxicab stands 254-18
Taxicabs 254-18
See Taxicabs 254-44\254-51
Tires 254-10
Towing 254-15; 254-43;

254-52; 254-53;
254-54; 254-55;
254-56; 254-57;
254-58; 254-59

Towing Services 254-52\
254-59

Towing vehicles 254-43
Trucks 254-12
U-turn prohibited on

designated streets
254-5

U-turns 254-1; 254-5
Unattended vehicle 254-27
Unlawful parking 254-19
Unnecessary noise 254-8
Use of bicycles, roller

blades, roller skates and
skateboards 254-7

Using vehicles for primary
purpose of advertising
254-20

Vacancies 254-56
Vehicles 254-1; 254-3;

254-4; 254-5; 254-6;
254-8; 254-9; 254-10;
254-12; 254-13;
254-14; 254-15;
254-16; 254-17;
254-18; 254-19;
254-20; 254-22;
254-23; 254-25;
254-26; 254-27;
254-28; 254-36;
254-37; 254-38;
254-40; 254-41;
254-42; 254-43;
254-54; 254-57

Vendors 254-57
Veterans 254-29
Violations and penalties

254-1; 254-10; 254-34;
254-36; 254-39;
254-40; 254-41;
254-42; 254-57

Winter all-night parking
prohibited 254-14

Yeagley Way student
parking 254-30

VEHICLES,
COMMERCIAL

See COMMERCIAL
VEHICLES

VEHICLES,
IMPOUNDMENT OF

See IMPOUNDMENT
VEHICLES,

RECREATIONAL
See RECREATIONAL

VEHICLES
VEHICLES, TOWING OF

See TOWING
VENDING MACHINES

Food Service
Establishments 80-4

VENDORS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.3
Food Service

Establishments 80-4

Hawkers, Peddlers and
Itinerant Vendors
171-2; 171-3; 171-5;
171-8; 171-10; 171-11

See Also PEDDLING AND
SOLICITING

Purchases and Contracts
7-40

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-57

VENTILATION
Fire Prevention 75-9
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.4

VERMIN
Performance Standards

275-28.2; 275-28.4
VERNAL POOLS

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.2; 275-12.3;
275-12.5; 275-12.6

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-7

VETERANS
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-15

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-29

ZONING 275-2.2
VIBRATIONS

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Home Occupations 275-24.1
Performance Standards

275-28.2; 275-28.4
ZONING 275-2.2

VIOLATIONS AND
PENALTIES

Adoption of Code 1-11;
1-15

ADULT-ORIENTED
ESTABLISHMENTS
11-3; 11-4

ALARM SYSTEMS 16-5;
16-6; 16-7; 16-8; 16-11

ANIMALS 28-2; 28-4; 28-6
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.14

Aviation Overlay District
(AOD) 275-11.7

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-12; 40-15

CITATIONS 54-1; 54-3
CITY CHARTER C-70
Fire Prevention 75-14;

75-16
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3

Food Service
Establishments 80-7

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1-1

Hawkers, Peddlers and
Itinerant Vendors
171-8; 171-12

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-8

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.13

Home Occupations 275-24.1

VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC...

ROCHESTER INDEX

36 Supp 2, May 2019

V

8/29/19 

91 



JUNK AND
SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-9

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-7; 135-8

See Also NOTICES OF
VIOLATIONS

NUISANCES 149-3
Outdoor Dining

Establishments 80-22
Overnight Parking or

Camping on City-
Owned Property
167-20; 167-21; 167-22

PARKS, RECREATION
AND ARENA 158-7

PEACE AND GOOD
ORDER 167-12;
167-14

Performance Standards
275-28.2; 275-28.5

Pinball and Video Games
and Machines 22-15;
22-18

SEWERS 200-1; 200-7;
200-16; 200-17;
200-18; 200-20;
200-24; 200-33

SOLID WASTE 210-16
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-7; 218-11; 218-14;
218-15

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-3;
223-5; 223-16; 223-18;
223-22; 223-26;
223-28; 223-30

Taxicabs 254-46; 254-48;
254-49; 254-50; 254-51

VEHICLES AND
TRAFFIC 254-1;
254-10; 254-34;
254-36; 254-39;
254-40; 254-41;
254-42; 254-57

WATER 260-7; 260-25;
260-30; 260-33; 260-38

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.4;
275-27.3; 275-29.12

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

VOLUNTEER FIRE
DEPARTMENT

See FIRE DEPARTMENT
VOLUNTEER FIRE

FIGHTERS
See FIRE DEPARTMENT

— W —
WAIVERS

ALARM SYSTEMS 16-8
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-7
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.5
Roads and Parking 275-26.1
SEWERS 200-3; 200-5;

200-7; 200-16
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-14

WATER 260-4
ZONING 275-3.3;

275-20.2; 275-27.3

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1

WALLS
Accessory Uses 275-23.2
ADULT-ORIENTED

ESTABLISHMENTS
11-1

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.3

Conditional Uses 275-21.4
Conservation Subdivisions

275-33.6
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.5

HEALTH AND
SANITATION 94-9

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.5;
275-14.14

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-4

SEWERS 200-1; 200-7
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
WATER 260-45
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-3.3;

275-20.2; 275-29.11;
275-29.12; 275-29.13;
275-29.14

WARRANTS
Municipal Departments 7-8;

7-11
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-6

WATER
Abandonment 260-42
Additional rules and

regulations;
amendments 260-50

Administration 260-40
Adoption of Code 1-15
Advisory Board 260-2;

260-13; 260-17;
260-19; 260-28; 260-49

Agreement 260-1
Agreements and shutoffs

260-20
Air conditioning 260-9
Animals 260-30
Apartments 260-2; 260-3;

260-24
Appeals 260-13; 260-19;

260-28; 260-30; 260-49
Application for service

260-4
Appointments 260-28
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.2; 275-10.3;
275-10.4; 275-10.9

Authority 260-36
Auxiliary water sources

260-42
Aviation Overlay District

(AOD) 275-11.1
Billing and payment 260-18
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-36
Bonds 260-6; 260-31
Charges 260-2; 260-4;

260-6; 260-10; 260-11;
260-13; 260-17;
260-18; 260-19;
260-20; 260-21;
260-22; 260-23;
260-24; 260-25;
260-28; 260-33

CITY CHARTER C-19

City Council 260-17;
260-28; 260-29;
260-30; 260-31

City Manager 260-6;
260-17; 260-18;
260-19; 260-20;
260-28; 260-30; 260-49

Claims for damages and
liability 260-27

Complaints 260-11; 260-25
Condominiums 260-2;

260-24
Conflicting provisions;

severability 260-47
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.1; 275-12.3;
275-12.6; 275-12.9;
275-12.14

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.4

Construction 260-27;
260-29; 260-31

Construction/extension of
water mains for new
development 260-29

Costs and expenses 260-2;
260-3; 260-4; 260-6;
260-9; 260-10; 260-13;
260-15; 260-17;
260-21; 260-22;
260-25; 260-29;
260-31; 260-33;
260-39; 260-46

Cross-Connections 260-34\
260-51

Curbs 260-2; 260-6
Definitions 260-2; 260-35
Degree of hazard 260-41
Department of Public Works

260-1; 260-2; 260-4;
260-6; 260-7; 260-8;
260-9; 260-10; 260-11;
260-12; 260-13;
260-14; 260-15;
260-17; 260-18;
260-23; 260-24;
260-26; 260-27;
260-29; 260-35;
260-38; 260-45

Dogs 260-14
Duties of Department of

Public Works 260-38
Easements 260-2; 260-6
Emergencies 260-4; 260-13;

260-15; 260-30
Escrow accounts 260-6
Establishment of water rates

260-17
Excavations 260-6; 260-7
Existing backflow

prevention devices
260-44

Extension of existing water
mains in accepted
roadways 260-31

Fees 260-4; 260-6; 260-11;
260-13; 260-15;
260-17; 260-20;
260-30; 260-32;
260-33; 260-38;
260-39; 260-43

Fire Chief 260-32
Fire hydrants 260-7; 260-32;

260-33
Fire protection 260-2;

260-30; 260-32; 260-33
Fires 260-38
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.4;
275-13.5

Gas 260-7

Gases 260-35
Grades and grading 260-45
Grievances 260-19; 260-30;

260-49
HEALTH AND

SANITATION 94-3
Hearings 260-17
Home Occupations 275-24.1
Hospitals 260-3
Industrial user 260-35
Inspections 260-9; 260-15;

260-33; 260-35;
260-38; 260-39;
260-42; 260-43;
260-44; 260-45; 260-46

Installation 260-45
Interpretation 260-48
Interruption of service

260-26
Landscaping 260-30
Lawns 260-30
Liability 260-8; 260-27
Liability insurance 260-6
Licenses and permits 260-6;

260-30; 260-33;
260-35; 260-38;
260-42; 260-43; 260-44

Liens 260-18; 260-21;
260-31

Lots 260-8
Mayor 260-28
Meetings 260-30
Membership 260-28
Meter repairs 260-10
Meter testing 260-11
Meters 260-2; 260-3; 260-4;

260-5; 260-6; 260-8;
260-9; 260-10; 260-11;
260-12; 260-13;
260-14; 260-24;
260-27; 260-33

Miscellaneous bills 260-21
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-3; 135-4; 135-5;
135-7; 260-3

Mobile homes 260-2
Municipal Departments

7-18
Nonconforming Property

275-30.5
Notices 260-7; 260-15;

260-18; 260-19;
260-20; 260-22;
260-24; 260-27;
260-30; 260-38; 260-43

Nuisances 260-14
Outside reader 260-14
PARKS, RECREATION

AND ARENA 158-2
Performance Standards

275-28.4
Periodic testing 260-46
Permits 260-43
Pipes and fixtures 260-7
PLANNING BOARD 176-8
Plumbers 260-24
Plumbing 260-35; 260-38;

260-39; 260-48
Plumbing Code 260-8
Policy statement 260-3
Private fire protection

260-32
Public assemblies 260-45;

260-46
Purpose 260-34
Records 260-4; 260-31;

260-38
Registration 260-11; 260-12
Regulation of water usage

during emergency
260-30

Requirements of owner
260-39

VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES...

ROCHESTER INDEX

37 Supp 2, May 2019

W

8/29/19 

92 



Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.4

Responsibilities of
Department 260-37

Safety standards 260-30;
260-35; 260-45; 260-47

Sales 260-24
Schools 260-3
Sealing of meter 260-12
Service installation and

repair 260-6
Sewer deduct meter 260-9
SEWERS 200-1; 200-7;

200-8; 200-9; 200-10;
200-11; 200-15;
200-16; 200-24;
200-33; 260-2; 260-3;
260-7; 260-9

Sidewalks 260-6
Size of service and meter

required 260-5
SOLID WASTE 210-1
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
Sprinkler systems 260-4;

260-9; 260-30
Storage 260-35
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-1; 218-6; 218-7;
218-8; 218-9; 218-14;
218-15

STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS 223-9

Swimming pools 260-23;
260-30; 260-33

Tampering with meter
260-13

Tenants 260-18
Tests 260-6; 260-10;

260-11; 260-12;
260-33; 260-35;
260-38; 260-39;
260-42; 260-43;
260-44; 260-45;
260-46; 260-48

Trailers 260-30
Transfers 260-24
Trenches 260-7
Trucks 260-30
Turning on and off 260-22
Use Regulations and Rates

260-1\260-33
Utilities 260-2; 260-7;

260-13; 260-17;
260-19; 260-28;
260-35; 260-49

Utility Advisory Board
260-28

Vacancies 260-28
Vehicles 260-30
Violations 260-25
Violations and penalties

260-7; 260-25; 260-30;
260-33; 260-38

Waivers 260-4
Walls 260-45
WATER 260-1; 260-2;

260-4; 260-5; 260-6;
260-7; 260-8; 260-9;
260-10; 260-11;
260-13; 260-15;
260-17; 260-18;
260-19; 260-20;
260-21; 260-22;
260-23; 260-24;
260-25; 260-26;
260-27; 260-28;
260-29; 260-30;
260-31; 260-32;
260-33; 260-34;
260-35; 260-36;
260-37; 260-38;

260-39; 260-40;
260-41; 260-42;
260-43; 260-45;
260-46; 260-51

Water emergencies 260-30
Water meters 260-2;

260-13; 260-33;
260-35; 260-38; 260-45

Water Rate and Fee
Schedule 260-33

Water supply 260-7;
260-17; 260-25;
260-30; 260-34;
260-35; 260-38;
260-39; 260-40;
260-41; 260-42; 260-45

Wells 260-39; 260-42
When effective; repealer

260-51
ZONING 275-1.11;

275-2.2; 275-19.2;
275-20.2; 275-27.3;
275-27.5

WATER EMERGENCIES
See Also EMERGENCIES
WATER 260-30

WATER METERS
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-1

WATER 260-2; 260-13;
260-33; 260-35;
260-38; 260-45

WATER POLLUTION
Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.4

Performance Standards
275-28.2; 275-28.4

See Also POLLUTION
SEWERS 200-1
STREETS AND

SIDEWALKS 223-9
WATER QUALITY

Aquifer Protection Overlay
District (APOD)
275-10.6; 275-10.9

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.1

SEWERS 200-1; 200-24
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-8; 218-9; 218-11;
218-13; 218-14

WATER SUPPLY
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE 40-8

CITY CHARTER C-19
Conditional Uses 275-21.3
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.1

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-5

Municipal Departments
7-13; 7-18

SEWERS 200-8
WATER 260-7; 260-17;

260-25; 260-30;
260-34; 260-35;
260-38; 260-39;
260-40; 260-41;
260-42; 260-45

ZONING 275-27.3

WATERCOURSES
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.1

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.3; 275-13.4

SEWERS 200-1
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-7; 218-14

ZONING 275-1.11
WEAPONS

See FIREARMS
WEBSITES

Finance 7-66
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-8

WEEDS
See BRUSH, GRASS AND

WEEDS
WELLHEAD

PROTECTION
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3; 275-10.4;
275-10.9

WELLS
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3; 275-10.4;
275-10.9

Bonds of City Officials 7-82
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.9

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.3; 275-33.9

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-9

WATER 260-39; 260-42
ZONING 275-20.2

WETLANDS
Aquifer Protection Overlay

District (APOD)
275-10.3

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.5

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.1; 275-12.2;
275-12.3; 275-12.4;
275-12.5; 275-12.6;
275-12.7; 275-12.8;
275-12.9; 275-12.10;
275-12.14

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.1; 275-33.3;
275-33.4

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.4

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.7;
275-8.9; 275-8.10

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.4

Special Exceptions 275-22.3
STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AND
EROSION CONTROL
218-1; 218-6; 218-8;
218-9; 218-12; 218-14

ZONING 275-1.11;
275-2.2; 275-19.2

WILD ANIMALS
See ANIMALS

WILDLIFE
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.1; 275-12.8

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.6

WIND ENERGY SYSTEMS
ZONING 275-20.2

WIND ENERGY SYSTEMS,
SMALL

ZONING 275-20.2
WIRELESS

COMMUNICATIONS
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2

— XYZ —
YARD SALES

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
See Also GARAGE SALES
Home Occupations 275-24.7
JUNK AND

SECONDHAND
DEALERS 110-1

See Also SALES
ZONING 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-29.13
YARD WASTE

See Also BRUSH, GRASS
AND WEEDS

See Also GRASS
CLIPPINGS

See Also LAWNS
SOLID WASTE 210-1;

210-2; 210-4; 210-19
YARDS

Accessory Uses 275-23.1;
275-23.2

Aquifer Protection Overlay
District (APOD)
275-10.9

BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE 40-9

Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.3;
275-6.4

Home Occupations
275-24.1; 275-24.7

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-3; 135-4

Residential Zoning Districts
275-5.5

SOLID WASTE 210-1
Special Exceptions

275-22.1; 275-22.3
ZONING 275-2.2; 275-20.2

ZONING
Abandoned property

275-29.12
Abandonment 275-20.2;

275-29.11; 275-29.12
Abbreviations 275-2.3
Accessory buildings and

structures 275-2.2;
275-20.2

Accessory uses 275-18.7
See Accessory Uses

275-23.1\275-23.2
Accessory uses and

structures 275-2.2;
275-3.3; 275-18.7;
275-19.2; 275-20.1;
275-20.2

Administration 275-3.1\
275-3.5

Adult entertainment 275-2.2
Adult-oriented

establishments 275-2.2

WATER...

ROCHESTER INDEX

38 Supp 2, May 2019

XYZ

8/29/19 

93 



Advertising 275-29.9;
275-29.10; 275-29.11;
275-29.13; 275-29.14

Agricultural districts
275-1.8; 275-20.2

Air conditioning 275-19.2
Alcoholic beverages 275-2.2
All-terrain vehicles 275-2.2
Amendments 275-3.5
Animals 275-2.2; 275-18.2;

275-20.2; 275-29.11
Antennas 275-2.2; 275-19.2
Apartments 275-2.2;

275-19.2
Appeals 275-3.1; 275-20.2;

275-27.3
Applicability of use

regulations 275-18.1
Applicable regulations

275-29.1
Application of regulations

275-1.4
Application process

275-29.5
Appointments 275-3.1
See Aquifer Protection

Overlay District
(APOD) 275-10.1\
275-10.17

Assessments 275-20.2;
275-27.3

Attorneys fees 275-3.4
Authority 275-1.2
See Aviation Overlay

District (AOD)
275-11.1\275-11.9

Batteries 275-2.2; 275-20.2
Bed and breakfast 275-2.2;

275-20.2
Billboards 275-29.11;

275-29.13
Blocks 275-2.2; 275-19.2;

275-29.13
Board of Adjustment

275-29.13
Boats and Boating 275-2.2
Bonds 275-20.2; 275-27.3
Bowling alleys 275-2.2
Bridges 275-20.2
Brush, grass and weeds

275-2.2
Buffers 275-2.2; 275-19.2;

275-20.2; 275-27.1
Buffers for residential

property 275-27.1
Building construction

275-2.2; 275-3.3;
275-27.3

Building Inspector 275-2.2;
275-27.3

Building permits 275-3.1;
275-3.3; 275-20.2;
275-27.3; 275-29.13

Burning 275-20.2
Campgrounds 275-2.2
Camping 275-2.2
Camps 275-2.2
Carnivals 275-2.2
Cats 275-2.2
Cease and desist orders

275-3.4
Cemeteries 275-27.2
Certificates of occupancy

275-2.2; 275-3.3;
275-27.3; 275-29.13

Changes to signs 275-29.7
Chimneys 275-19.2
Christmas trees 275-2.2
Churches 275-19.2
Circuses 275-2.2
Citations 275-3.4
City Attorney 275-3.1;

275-3.5

City Clerk 275-3.5
City Council 275-1.12;

275-2.2; 275-3.1;
275-3.5; 275-20.2;
275-27.3; 275-29.12;
275-29.14

City Manager 275-3.1;
275-3.5; 275-29.12;
275-29.13

City Solicitor 275-3.4
Commercial districts

275-1.8; 275-19.1;
275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-29.2; 275-29.13

Commercial vehicles
275-2.2

See Commercial Zoning
Districts 275-6.1\
275-6.5

Composting 275-2.2;
275-20.2

Conditional uses 275-1.16;
275-2.2; 275-18.4;
275-18.7; 275-19.2;
275-20.1; 275-20.2;
275-29.14

See Conditional Uses
275-21.1\275-21.4

Conditional uses and special
exceptions 275-1.16

Conditions for particular
uses 275-20.2

Condominiums 275-2.1;
275-2.2

Conservation Commission
275-2.2; 275-20.2

See Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.1\275-12.14

See Conservation
Subdivisions 275-33.1\
275-33.9

Construction 275-2.2;
275-3.3; 275-20.2;
275-27.2; 275-27.3;
275-29.1; 275-29.6;
275-29.13

Construction documents
275-29.6

Construction signs
275-29.13

Convalescent homes
275-2.2

Convenience stores 275-2.2
Costs and expenses 275-3.1;

275-3.4; 275-20.2;
275-27.3; 275-29.12

Curbs 275-3.3; 275-29.13
Decks 275-2.2; 275-19.2;

275-20.2
Definitions 275-2.2;

275-29.11
Definitions and

Terminology 275-2.1\
275-2.3

Demolition 275-2.2
Dimensional provisions

275-19.2
Dimensional Regulations

275-19.1\275-19.2
Dining facilities 275-2.2
Dirt 275-2.2
District boundaries 275-1.11
Dogs 275-2.2
Drainage 275-20.2;

275-27.3
Driveways 275-1.11;

275-2.2; 275-3.3;
275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-29.14

Drugs and drug
paraphernalia 275-2.2

Dumps and dumping
275-20.2

Dust 275-2.2
Easements 275-2.2
Effect of other laws 275-3.2
Elevators 275-19.2
Emergencies 275-2.2
Encroachments 275-19.2
Enforcement 275-3.4
Establishment of districts

275-1.8
Examples 275-1.14
Excavations 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-27.2
Exempt signs 275-29.10
Explosives 275-2.2
Fair housing 275-2.2
Farms and farming 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-29.13
Fast-food restaurants

275-2.2
Fees 275-2.2; 275-3.1;

275-3.5; 275-20.2;
275-27.3; 275-29.8;
275-29.14

Fences 275-2.2; 275-3.3;
275-20.2; 275-27.1;
275-27.2; 275-29.11

Fill 275-20.2
Filling stations 275-2.2
Fire protection 275-27.3
Flammables 275-2.2
See Flood Hazard Overlay

District (FHOD)
275-13.1\275-13.6

Floodplains 275-20.2
Forestry 275-2.2
Fowl 275-2.2; 275-20.2
Fuel 275-2.2; 275-19.2;

275-20.2
Garage sales 275-2.2
Garages 275-2.2; 275-20.2
Gas 275-2.2
Gas stations 275-2.2;

275-20.2
General Provisions 275-1.1\

275-1.16; 275-2.1;
275-3.1; 275-20.1;
275-29.12

Glare 275-2.2; 275-29.12
Glass 275-2.2
Golf courses 275-2.2
Grades and grading 275-2.2;

275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-29.12

Grandfathering 275-20.2;
275-29.3

See Granite Ridge
Development (GRD)
275-8.1\275-8.11

Grievances 275-27.3
Groundwater 275-20.2
Guarantees 275-27.3
Gutters 275-19.2
Handicapped persons

275-29.13
Hazardous materials and

substances 275-2.2
Hazardous wastes 275-2.2
Headings 275-1.15
Hearings 275-2.2; 275-3.1;

275-3.5; 275-20.2
Heating 275-2.2
Height regulations 275-2.2;

275-2.3; 275-19.2;
275-20.2; 275-27.2;
275-29.12; 275-29.13;
275-29.14

Highway commercial
districts 275-1.8

Historic districts 275-2.2;
275-2.3; 275-29.5;
275-29.13; 275-29.14

See Historic Overlay
District (HOD)
275-14.1\275-14.16

Home occupations 275-2.2;
275-18.7; 275-20.2;
275-29.13

See Home Occupations
275-24.1\275-24.7

Horses 275-2.2; 275-20.2
Hospitals 275-1.8; 275-2.2;

275-29.14
Hotels 275-2.2; 275-20.2
Hydronic heaters 275-20.2
Impact fees 275-27.3
Improvements 275-2.2;

275-3.3; 275-27.3
In-law apartments 275-2.2
Industrial districts 275-1.8;

275-2.2; 275-19.1;
275-20.2; 275-29.13;
275-29.14

See Industrial Zoning
Districts 275-7.1\
275-7.3

Inspections 275-3.1
Investigations 275-2.2
Junk 275-2.2
Junkyards 275-2.2; 275-20.2
Kennels 275-2.2
Landfills 275-2.2
Landlords 275-29.11;

275-29.12
Landscaping 275-1.3;

275-2.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.2; 275-29.13

Lawns 275-20.2
Letters of credit 275-27.3
Liability 275-29.12
Library 275-27.3
Licenses and permits

275-2.1; 275-2.2;
275-3.1; 275-3.3;
275-3.4; 275-19.2;
275-20.2; 275-27.7;
275-29.3; 275-29.5;
275-29.6; 275-29.12;
275-29.13; 275-29.14

Liens 275-20.2; 275-27.3
Lighting 275-20.2;

275-29.2; 275-29.9;
275-29.11; 275-29.12;
275-29.13

Livestock 275-2.2; 275-20.2
Lots 275-2.2; 275-3.5;

275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.4; 275-27.6;
275-29.13; 275-29.14

Lots split by municipal
boundaries 275-27.4

Lots split by zoning district
boundaries 275-27.6

Magazines 275-2.2
Major subdivisions 275-2.2
Manufactured home parks

275-2.2
Manufactured homes

275-2.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.3

Manure 275-20.2
Marinas 275-2.2
Markers 275-1.11; 275-2.2
Master Plan 275-1.3;

275-3.1
Mayor 275-3.5
Meetings 275-2.2; 275-19.2
Minimum requirements

275-1.7
Mining 275-2.2
Minor subdivisions 275-2.2
Miscellaneous Provisions

275-27.1\275-27.8
Mixed use districts 275-1.8;

275-29.13

ZONING...

ROCHESTER INDEX

39 Supp 2, May 2019

XYZ

8/29/19 

94 



Mobile home parks
275-20.2

Mobile homes 275-2.2
Monuments 275-2.2
Most specific description to

apply 275-18.9
Motels 275-2.2
Motor vehicles 275-2.2
Multifamily dwellings

275-19.2; 275-20.2
Museums 275-2.2; 275-20.2
Natural features 275-1.11
Newspaper 275-2.2
Noise 275-2.2
Nonconforming lots 275-2.2
See Nonconforming

Property 275-30.1\
275-30.9

Nonconforming signs
275-29.3; 275-29.11

Nonconforming structures
275-2.2

Nonconforming uses
275-2.2; 275-20.2

Nonconformities 275-19.2
Notices 275-2.2; 275-3.1;

275-3.4; 275-3.5;
275-20.2; 275-29.3;
275-29.10; 275-29.12

Notices of violations
275-3.4

Nursing homes 275-2.2;
275-20.2

Odors 275-2.2
Off-road vehicles 275-2.2
Open space 275-2.2;

275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.3; 275-29.13

Other applicable law
275-1.5

Overlay zoning districts
275-1.9

Overview 275-19.1
Paper 275-2.2; 275-29.11
Parking 275-2.2; 275-20.2;

275-27.1; 275-27.2
Parks and recreation 275-1.3
Patios 275-2.2
Pedestrians 275-2.2;

275-29.11; 275-29.13
Performance standards

275-3.1; 275-20.2
See Performance Standards

275-28.1\275-28.5
Permit fees 275-29.8
Permit required 275-29.4
Permitted uses 275-2.2;

275-18.3; 275-18.7;
275-19.2; 275-20.1

Permitting 275-3.3
Planned unit developments

275-2.2; 275-2.3;
275-27.8; 275-29.13

Planning Board 275-1.7;
275-2.2; 275-3.1;
275-3.3; 275-3.5;
275-18.4; 275-19.2;
275-20.2; 275-27.1;
275-27.3; 275-29.13;
275-29.14

Plastics 275-2.2
Plumbing 275-2.2
Police Department 275-3.4
Political signs 275-29.11;

275-29.13
Porches 275-2.2; 275-19.2;

275-20.2
Poultry 275-2.2
Prohibited signs 275-29.9
Prohibited uses 275-2.2;

275-3.1; 275-18.6
PUD 275-2.2; 275-2.3
Purpose 275-1.3

Purpose and intent 275-29.2
Radiation 275-2.2
Real estate signs 275-29.11;

275-29.13
Records 275-2.2; 275-3.4;

275-27.3
Recreational vehicles

275-2.2
Recyclable materials

275-2.2
Recycling 275-1.8; 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-27.3;
275-27.6; 275-29.14

Registration 275-2.2
Registry 275-2.2
Reports 275-3.1; 275-20.2;

275-27.3
Requirements by zoning

district 275-29.14
Residential districts 275-1.8;

275-2.2; 275-19.1;
275-29.13

See Residential Zoning
Districts 275-5.1\
275-5.5

Restaurants 275-2.2;
275-20.2; 275-29.11

Retirement 275-2.2
Rivers and shoreland

protection 275-27.5
See Roads and Parking

275-26.1\275-26.6
Roofs 275-2.2; 275-19.2;

275-29.11
Safety hazards 275-29.13
Safety standards 275-1.3;

275-2.2; 275-3.4;
275-20.2; 275-27.3;
275-29.9; 275-29.10;
275-29.13

Sales 275-2.2; 275-18.2;
275-18.9; 275-20.2;
275-29.11; 275-29.13

Sanitary facilities 275-2.2
Satellite dish antennas

275-19.2
Schools 275-2.2; 275-27.3;

275-29.10
Scooters 275-2.2
Screens and screening

275-2.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.1

Senior citizens 275-27.3
Senior housing 275-2.2
Setbacks 275-2.2; 275-19.2;

275-20.2; 275-29.13
Severability 275-1.6
Sewers 275-20.2; 275-27.3
Sheds 275-2.2
Shopping centers 275-29.11;

275-29.12
Shrubs 275-2.2
Sidewalks 275-19.2;

275-29.13
Signage 275-29.1\275-29.14
Signs 275-1.3; 275-2.1;

275-2.2; 275-3.3;
275-20.2; 275-27.2;
275-29.1; 275-29.2;
275-29.3; 275-29.4;
275-29.5; 275-29.6;
275-29.7; 275-29.8;
275-29.9; 275-29.10;
275-29.11; 275-29.12;
275-29.13; 275-29.14

Single-family dwellings
275-2.2; 275-27.1

Site plan review and
approval 275-19.2;
275-20.2

Site plans 275-1.7; 275-2.1;
275-2.2; 275-3.1;
275-3.3; 275-20.2;
275-27.3

Smoke 275-2.2
Snowmobiles 275-2.2
Solid waste 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-27.3
See Special Downtown

Overlay District
(SDOD) 275-15.1\
275-15.2

Special exceptions
275-1.16; 275-2.2;
275-18.5; 275-18.7;
275-19.2; 275-20.1;
275-20.2; 275-27.2;
275-29.13

See Special Exceptions
275-22.1\275-22.3

See Special Zoning Districts
275-9.1\275-9.3

Specific sign requirements
275-29.13

Standards for Specific
Permitted Uses
275-20.1\275-20.2

Steep slopes 275-2.2
Storage 275-2.2; 275-18.2;

275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.1; 275-29.9;
275-29.12

Stormwater 275-20.2;
275-27.3

Street trees 275-29.9
Suggestions 275-1.13
Swimming pools 275-2.2
Taxicabs 275-2.2
Temporary noncompliance

275-27.7
Tenants 275-2.2; 275-29.14
Tests 275-2.2
Timber harvesting 275-2.2
Tires 275-20.2
Title 275-1.1
Toilet facilities 275-2.2
Towers 275-2.2; 275-19.2;

275-20.2
Towing 275-2.2
Trailers 275-2.2; 275-29.9
Trash 275-2.2
Trees 275-2.2; 275-20.2;

275-27.2; 275-29.11
Trenches 275-27.2
Trucks 275-2.2; 275-20.2
Use Regulations 275-18.1\

275-18.9
Use tables 275-18.2
Uses not listed 275-18.8
Uses not permitted/

prohibited uses
275-18.6

Utilities 275-1.3; 275-1.11;
275-2.2; 275-18.2;
275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.2; 275-27.3

Utility poles 275-29.9;
275-29.13

Variances 275-2.2; 275-3.1
Vehicles 275-2.2; 275-20.2;

275-29.9
Veterans 275-2.2
Vibrations 275-2.2
Violations and penalties

275-2.2; 275-3.4;
275-27.3; 275-29.12

Waivers 275-3.3; 275-20.2;
275-27.3

Walls 275-2.2; 275-3.3;
275-20.2; 275-29.11;
275-29.12; 275-29.13;
275-29.14

Water 275-1.11; 275-2.2;
275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.3; 275-27.5

Water supply 275-27.3
Watercourses 275-1.11
Wells 275-20.2
Wetlands 275-1.11; 275-2.2;

275-19.2
When effective 275-1.12
Wind energy systems

275-20.2
Wind energy systems, small

275-20.2
Wireless communications

275-2.2
Yard sales 275-2.2;

275-20.2; 275-29.13
Yards 275-2.2; 275-20.2
Zoning Administrator

275-1.11; 275-3.1;
275-3.4; 275-18.8;
275-29.12

Zoning Board of
Adjustment 275-2.2;
275-2.3; 275-3.1;
275-18.5; 275-20.2

See Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1\
275-4.4

Zoning districts 275-1.8;
275-1.9; 275-1.10;
275-2.2; 275-3.1;
275-3.5; 275-18.1;
275-18.2; 275-18.3;
275-18.4; 275-18.5;
275-18.6; 275-18.7;
275-18.8; 275-19.1;
275-19.2; 275-20.2;
275-27.6; 275-29.13;
275-29.14

Zoning Map 275-1.10
Zoning Maps 275-1.9;

275-1.10; 275-1.11;
275-19.2

ZONING
ADMINISTRATOR

MOBILE HOME PARKS
135-7; 135-8

Roads and Parking 275-26.2
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
ZONING 275-1.11;

275-3.1; 275-3.4;
275-18.8; 275-29.12

ZONING BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT

Accessory Uses 275-23.2
Aviation Overlay District

(AOD) 275-11.3
See Also BOARD OF

ADJUSTMENT
Boards, Commissions and

Committees 7-24; 7-30
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE 40-2

Conditional Uses 275-21.1
Conservation Overlay

District (COD)
275-12.13

Flood Hazard Overlay
District (FHOD)
275-13.6

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.9;
275-14.13; 275-14.15

Home Occupations
275-24.1; 275-24.6

Legislative Body 7-49
MOBILE HOME PARKS

135-8

ZONING...

ROCHESTER INDEX

40 Supp 2, May 2019

XYZ

8/29/19 

95 



PLANNING BOARD 176-2
Special Exceptions

275-22.1; 275-22.2;
275-22.3

ZONING 275-2.2; 275-2.3;
275-3.1; 275-18.5;
275-20.2

Zoning Board of
Adjustment and
Building Code Board of
Appeals 275-4.1;
275-4.3; 275-4.4

ZONING BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT AND
BUILDING CODE
BOARD OF APPEALS

Additional provisions
275-4.2

Administration 275-4.4
Appeals 275-4.1; 275-4.2;

275-4.3
Board of Appeals 275-4.1
Building Inspector 275-4.1
City Council 275-4.4
Conflicts of interest 275-4.4
Construction 275-4.1
Costs and expenses 275-4.1
Disability 275-4.1
Fees 275-4.4
Grievances 275-4.1
Hearings 275-4.3; 275-4.4
Licenses and permits

275-4.2
Master Plan 275-4.1
Mayor 275-4.4
Membership 275-4.4
Notices 275-4.3
Notices of violations

275-4.1
Nuisances 275-4.1
Parking 275-4.2
Pedestrians 275-4.1
Powers of Board 275-4.1
Procedures 275-4.3
Signs 275-4.2
Special exceptions 275-4.1
Utilities 275-4.1
Vacancies 275-4.4
Variances 275-4.1
Violations and penalties

275-4.1
Waivers 275-4.1
ZONING 275-4.1\275-4.4
Zoning Board of

Adjustment 275-4.1;
275-4.3; 275-4.4

ZONING DISTRICTS
Accessory Uses 275-23.1;

275-23.2
Commercial Zoning

Districts 275-6.1;
275-6.2

Conservation Overlay
District (COD)
275-12.6; 275-12.8;
275-12.14

Conservation Subdivisions
275-33.3; 275-33.4;
275-33.7; 275-33.8

Home Occupations 275-24.1
Industrial Zoning Districts

275-7.1
Nonconforming Property

275-30.4; 275-30.5
Performance Standards

275-28.3
Residential Zoning Districts

275-5.1
Roads and Parking 275-26.2
Special Exceptions 275-22.3
Special Zoning Districts

275-9.1

ZONING 275-1.8; 275-1.9;
275-1.10; 275-2.2;
275-3.1; 275-3.5;
275-18.1; 275-18.2;
275-18.3; 275-18.4;
275-18.5; 275-18.6;
275-18.7; 275-18.8;
275-19.1; 275-19.2;
275-20.2; 275-27.6;
275-29.13; 275-29.14

ZONING HEARING
BOARD

See HEARING OFFICER
See HEARINGS

ZONING MAPS
Adoption of Code 1-15
Aviation Overlay District

(AOD) 275-11.9
BUILDING

CONSTRUCTION
AND PROPERTY
MAINTENANCE
40-13

Granite Ridge Development
(GRD) 275-8.2

Historic Overlay District
(HOD) 275-14.7;
275-14.8

See Also OFFICIAL MAP
Special Downtown Overlay

District (SDOD)
275-15.1

ZONING 275-1.9;
275-1.10; 275-1.11;
275-19.2

ZONING OFFICER
See BUILDING

INSPECTOR
ZONING PERMITS

See BUILDING PERMITS
See LICENSES AND

PERMITS

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT...

ROCHESTER INDEX

41 Supp 2, May 2019

XYZ

8/29/19 

96 


	Agenda
	3.    Acceptance of Minutes 
	4.    Chapter 28 Animals 
	5.    Donation Bins
	6.    Rental Inpsection Program
	7.    Waiver to Certain Permit Fees 
	Rate for Fence Permits 

	9.    Ordinance Enrollment Chapter 275

